
               
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. SECTION 38-431 THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WILL HOLD AN OPEN MEETING IN THE
SUPERVISORS’ AUDITORIUM, 1400 EAST ASH STREET, GLOBE, ARIZONA. ONE OR MORE BOARD MEMBERS MAY PARTICIPATE IN THE
MEETING BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL OR BY INTERACTIVE TELEVISION VIDEO (ITV). ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC IS

WELCOME TO ATTEND THE MEETING VIA ITV WHICH IS HELD AT 610 E. HIGHWAY 260, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ CONFERENCE

ROOM, PAYSON, ARIZONA. THE AGENDA IS AS FOLLOWS:

REGULAR MEETING - TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 1, 2011 - 10 A.M.

               

 
1 Call to Order - Pledge of Allegiance – Invocation  
 

2 PRESENTATIONS:  
 

A Presentation of the Officer of the Quarter award by Daisy Flores, Gila County Attorney, to

Sgt. Joni Varga of the Payson Police Department.

 

 

B Recognition of the following 3 employees for January's "Spotlight on Employees" Program:

Pam Fisher, Robert Gould and Scott Marcanti. (Juley Bocardo-Homan) 

 

 

3 PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 

A Public Hearing  - Information/Discussion/Action to approve Order No. LL-11-01, an

application submitted by Penny Anne West for a new Series 10 beer and wine store license

with an interim permit to operate for Jake's Corner Store located just outside of Payson.

(Marian Sheppard) 

 

 

4 REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

A Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 11-02-01 making known the Board of

Supervisors' commitment of support for the Copper Basin Coalition and the Payson

Community Prevention Council in bringing the underaged drinking problem within our

communities to light and their tireless efforts in trying to curb underage drinking among our

youth. (William Herrera)

 

 

B Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No.

HG161095) between Gila County and the Arizona Department of Health Services in the

amount of $75,000 to provide preconception health for women and Gila County resident injury

prevention for the period of January 1, 2011, through December 31, 2011.  (Paula Horn)

 

 

C Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Agreement for Energy Assistance for Renewable

Neighborhoods Implementation between Gila County Community Action/Housing Services

and Arizona Public Service Company to allocate funds in the amount of $79,200, which will

be used to help residents who meet program qualifications for the period July 1, 2010, through

March 31, 2011.  (Malissa Buzan)

 

 

D Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for Request for Sealed Bids No.

040108-1 for the Globe Gila County Courthouse ADA/Access Improvement; award to the

lowest, responsible and qualified bidder; and authorize the Chairman's signature on the Award

Contract for the winning bidder.  (Steve Stratton)

 



 

E Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for Request for Sealed Bids No.

092210-1 for the Central Heights Auditorium Remodel Project; award to the lowest,

responsible and qualified bidder; and authorize the Chairman's signature on the Award

Contract for the winning bidder.  (Steve Stratton)

 

 

F Information/Discussion/Action to adopt "Policy and Procedure for the Abandonment of

County Highways, Local Streets, Avenues, Alleys and for the Extinguishment of Easements

within Gila County", which replaces "Guidelines for Vacation of Public Roadways" policy. 

(Steve Sanders)

 

 

5 CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  
 

A Approval of Amendment No. 2 to the 2010-2011 Independent Contractor Agreement

(Contract No. ACAA07012010) for 2010-2011 Utility Assistance Programs between the

Arizona Community Action Association and the Gila County Community Action Program to

allocate an additional $8,355 of funding, which will be used to help residents who meet

program qualifications for the period August 17, 2010, through June 30, 2011.

 

 

B Approval of the submission of the Notice of Request for Proposal No. ADHS11-00000347 and

approval of the Offer and Acceptance with the Arizona Department of Health Services in the

amount of $88,829.19 to provide HIV care and support services for the period of April 1,

2011, through March 31, 2012.

 

 

C Approval of Amendment No. 3 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No.

DE111006001) between the Arizona Department of Economic Security and Gila County

Board of Supervisors increasing the Contract amount from $2,987,834 to $3,025,643,

an increase of $37,809. 

 

 

D Approval of Amendment No. 2 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No.

DE111006001) between the Arizona Department of Economic Security and Gila County

Board of Supervisors increasing the contract amount from $2,631,208 to $2,987,834, an

increase of $356,626.

 

 

E Authorization of the Chairman's signature on various documents entered into between Gila

County and Konica Minolta Business Solutions U.S.A., Inc. (KMBS) for the purchase of a

Konica Minolta Bizhub C-280 copier that will be used by the Payson Regional Constable as

follows: Order Agreement in the amount of $4,930.00, Advantage CPS Maintenance Contract

at a cost of $68.50 per month ($822.00 per year); and Contract Information Form.

 

 

F Authorization of the Chairman's signature on Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 050709-1

between Gila County and Southwest Asphalt to extend the Contract, per Section 2.2, from the

period of December 17, 2010, to December 16, 2011; and to provide for the purchase of 1/2"

chips and asphalt, all of which are used in the Copper Region of Gila County.

 

 

G Approval of Subgrantee Agreement Amendment #1 09-AZDOHS-HSGP-555300-03 between

the Arizona Department of Homeland Security and the Gila County Division of Health and

Emergency Services for the purpose performance period extension through December 31,

2010.

 

 

H Acknowledgement of Mr. Walter Lee Hunsaker's resignation from the Pine Water Association  



H Acknowledgement of Mr. Walter Lee Hunsaker's resignation from the Pine Water Association

Domestic Water Improvement District Governing Board and the appointment of Mr. Michael

Ward to complete the term of Mr. Hunsaker, which expires December 31, 2014. 

 

 

I Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement for Election Services between Gila County

Division of Elections and the Town of Hayden to provide mayoral election services on March

8, 2011, and run-off election services on May 17, 2011 (if needed).

 

 

J Approval of an Application for Special Event License submitted by the Kiwanis Club of

Tonto Basin Community Service Foundation to serve liquor at a fund-raiser event on February

26, 2011, in Tonto Basin.

 

 

K Approval of an Application for Special Event License submitted by the Lions Club of Globe,

Arizona, Inc. to serve liquor at the Gila County Sheriff's Reserve Dance on February 12, 2011,

in Globe.

 

 

L Approval of the July 14, 2010, July 27, 2010, and August 3, 2010, BOS meeting minutes.  
 

M Approval of the December 2010 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the Payson

Regional Constable.

 

 

N Approval of the December 2010 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the

Recorder's Office.

 

 

O Approval of the December 2010 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the Globe

Regional Justice Court

 

 

P Approval of the December 2010 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the Payson

Regional Justice of the Peace.

 

 

Q Approval of personnel reports for the weeks of January 25, 2011, and February 1, 2011.  
 

R Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of January 25, 2011, and

February 1, 2011.

 

 

6 CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public benefit to allow individuals

to address issue(s) within the Board’s jurisdiction. Board members may not discuss items that

are not specifically identified on the agenda. Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute

§38-431.01(G), action taken as a result of public comment will be limited to directing staff to

study the matter, responding to criticism, or scheduling the matter for further discussion and

decision at a future date.

 

 

7 At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02(K), members of the Board of

Supervisors and the Chief Administrator may present a brief summary of current events. No

action may be taken on issues presented.

 

 



IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928) 425-3231 AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO
ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATIONS. FOR TTY, PLEASE DIAL 7-1-1 TO REACH THE ARIZONA RELAY SERVICE AND ASK THE OPERATOR
TO CONNECT YOU TO (928) 425-3231.

THE BOARD MAY VOTE TO HOLD AN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING LEGAL ADVICE FROM THE BOARD’S
ATTORNEY ON ANY MATTER LISTED ON THE AGENDA PURSUANT TO A.R.S. SECTION 38-431.03(A)((3)

THE ORDER OR DELETION OF ANY ITEM ON THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION AT THE MEETING



    Presentation Agenda Item   Item #:  2- A     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 02/01/2011  

Submitted For: Daisy Flores,

County Attorney

Submitted By: Sharon Listiak, County Attorney

Department: County Attorney

Presenter's Name: Daisy

Flores,Gila

County

Attorney 

Information

Request/Subject

Presentation of Officer of the Quarter by Daisy Flores, Gila County Attorney, to Sgt. Joni Varga of the

Payson Police Department.

Background Information

Daisy Flores, Gila County Attorney, selects an officer quarterly for the Officer of the Quarter from the

nominations from her staff. The staff nominates an officer for his or her availability for preparation and

carrying out prosecution, their reports being complete and readable, court appearances, assistance and

cooperation with the attorney of record, and service above and beyond.  Two plaques will be presented,

one for the officer and one for his or her agency.

Evaluation

N/A

Conclusion

N/A

Recommendation

N/A

Suggested Motion

Presentation of the Officer of the Quarter award by Daisy Flores, Gila County Attorney, to Sgt. Joni

Varga of the Payson Police Department.



    Presentation Agenda Item   Item #:  2- B     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 02/01/2011  

Submitted For: Juley Bocardo-Homan, Deputy Personnel Director

Submitted By: Erica Raymond, Deputy County Manager

Department: Deputy County Manager Division: Personnel

Presenter's Name: Juley Bocardo-Homan 

Information

Request/Subject

Monthly recognition of Gila County employees.

Background Information

Purpose is to provide recognition for the following qualities: team work, quality, morale building, integrity,

customer service and initiative.

Evaluation

N/A

Conclusion

N/A

Recommendation

N/A

Suggested Motion

Recognition of the following 3 employees for January's "Spotlight on Employees" Program: Pam Fisher, Robert

Gould and Scott Marcanti. (Juley Bocardo-Homan) 



    Public Hearing   Item #:  3- A     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 02/01/2011  

Submitted For: Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk, BOS

Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Presenter's Name: Marian Sheppard 

Information

Request/Subject

Gila County Order No. LL-11-01, a Liquor License Application submitted by Penny Anne West for

Jake's Corner Store, Inc. 

Background Information

Penny West has submitted an application to the State Department of Liquor Licenses and Control

(Department) for a new Series 10 beer and wine store license with an interim permit to operate for Jake's

Corner Store located just outside of Payson. Part of the statutory process is once the Department accepts

and processes the license, it is sent to the local governing body in which city, town or county the

establishment is located. Upon the local governing body's review of the application, a recommendation

is then issued by the local governing, which in Gila County it is the Board of Supervisors (Board), to the

Department to either approve, deny or issue a "no recommendation" decision.

Per statutory requirements, a notice of hearing by the Board was posted at the establishment for a period

of 20 days, specifically to inform any person residing or owning or leasing property within a one-mile

radius of the establishment regarding this application. To date, the Clerk of the Board's Department has

not received any objections to this application.

Evaluation

This application has been forwarded to the Gila County Clerk of the Board of Supervisors' Department

for submission to the Board. An internal review has been conducted by both the Gila County Planning

and Zoning Department and the Health Department. Both departments have submitted paperwork stating

there are no issues related to this application with regard to their departmental policies/procedures. 

Conclusion

All of Gila County's requirements have been met with regard to this application; no one has submitted a

written objection to this application; therefore, a public hearing should be held by the Board to entertain

any comments from the public with regard to this application before the Board takes an action to issue a

recommendation to the Department.

Recommendation

The Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board of Supervisors recommends that the Board issue an approval

recommendation to the Department. 

Suggested Motion

Public Hearing - Information/Discussion/Action to approve Order No. LL-11-01, an application



Public Hearing - Information/Discussion/Action to approve Order No. LL-11-01, an application

submitted by Penny Anne West for a new Series 10 beer and wine store license with an interim permit to

operate for Jake's Corner Store located just outside of Payson.

(Marian Sheppard) 

Attachments

Link: Jake's Corner Store Liquor License Application

Link: Jake's Corner Store County Internal Reviews

Link: Jake's Corner Store Sheriff's Affidavit of Posting























































    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- A     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 02/01/2011  

Submitted For: David Fletcher, Health and Community Services Division Director

Submitted By: David Fletcher, Health & Community Services Division

Department: Community Services Division

Presenter's Name: William Herrera, Copper Basin Coalition

Coordinator 

Information

Request/Subject

Adoption of Resolution No. 11-02-01 regarding underage drinking.

Background Information

The Copper Basin Coalition was established in August 2006 and met bimonthly for the first year. The Coalition looked at

substance abuse in the Copper Basin area, focusing efforts on youth and adult binge drinking among 18-25 year olds, youth

alcohol consumption among 12-18 year olds, and alcohol-related car crash injuries among 18-25 year olds. Since the

Coalition's establishment, the Coalition now reaches out to a greater area, widening the potential impact of their work.

Community services have been extended to Hayden/Winkelman, Kearny, Payson, Peridot, San Carlos, Superior, Tonto Basin

and Young.  The Coalition's mission is to  "Build a strong healthy future for our community through the prevention and

reduction of substance abuse among our youth."

Evaluation

Each year an Arizona Youth Survey is conducted.  Some of the findings for 2010 are that underage drinking is the #1

substance abuse problem facing youth in Arizona. It is the most commonly reported used and abused substance by Gila

County's 8th, 10th, and 12th graders. 33.9% of 8th graders, 40.9% of 10th graders and 50.6% of 12 graders reported drinking

within the past 30 days.  Gila County ranks 1st in Arizona for underage drinking.  Based on these results alone, there is still a

lot of work to do on this issue.

Conclusion

By the Board of Supervisors adopting this resolution, it will affirm the Board's commitment of support for the Copper Basin

Coalition's and the Payson Community Prevention Council's efforts to curb underage drinking among our youth. It will also

bring underage drinking to the public's conscience and further affirms that it is not acceptable for adults to provide alcohol to

persons under the legal drinking age, for to do so is against state law.

Recommendation

It is recommended that the Gila County Board of Supervisors adopt this resolution making known the Board's commitment of

support for the Copper Basin Coalition and the Payson Community Prevention Council in bringing the underage drinking

problem within our communities to light and their tireless efforts in trying to curb underage drinking amongst our youth.

Suggested Motion

Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 11-02-01 making known the Board of Supervisors' commitment of

support for the Copper Basin Coalition and the Payson Community Prevention Council in bringing the underaged drinking

problem within our communities to light and their tireless efforts in trying to curb underage drinking among our youth. 

(William Herrera)

Attachments

Link: Resolution 11-02-01-Underage Drinking



 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 11-02-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF GILA COUNTY, 
ARIZONA, MAKING KNOWN ITS COMMITMENT OF SUPPORT FOR THE 
COPPER BASIN COALITION AND THE PAYSON COMMUNITY 
PREVENTION COUNCIL IN BRINGING THE UNDERAGE DRINKING 
PROBLEM WITHIN OUR COMMUNITIES TO LIGHT AND THEIR TIRELESS 
EFFORTS IN TRYING TO CURB UNDERAGE DRINKING AMONGST OUR 
YOUTH. 
 

 
WHEREAS, underage alcohol consumption is against the law in Arizona; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is a criminal offense for persons over the age of 21 to provide alcohol to underage 
persons; and 
 
WHEREAS, underage drinking is a threat to public health, safety and general welfare as well as harm to 
the underage drinker; and 
 
WHEREAS, Gila County is ranked number one in this state for underage drinking; and 
 
WHEREAS, the number one way that youth within our communities obtain alcohol is through persons of 
legal drinking age providing it. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Gila County Board of Supervisors are making 
known its commitment of support for the Copper Basin Coalition and the Payson Community Prevention 
Council in bringing the underage drinking problem within our communities to light and their tireless 
efforts in trying to curb underage drinking amongst our youth. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors hereby wishes all persons living, 
working, doing business or traveling through Gila County to know that underage drinking is not 
acceptable and those persons of legal drinking age who provide alcohol to our youth or any person of 
legal drinking age in Arizona who knowingly permit or fail to take reasonable action to prevent the illegal 
consumption of alcohol by underage persons on premises owned by the person or under the person’s 
control, do so in violation of Arizona State Statutes. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 1st day of February 2011, at Globe, Gila County, Arizona 

 
 
Attest:  GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
______________________________ __________________________________  
Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 



    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- B     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 02/01/2011  

Submitted For: Paula Horn, Health Programs Coordinator

Submitted By: Paula Horn, Health & Community Services Division

Department: Community Services Division Division: Health Department

Fiscal Year: 2011  Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates - Begin & End: January 1, 2011 - December 31, 2011 

Grant?: Yes

Matching Requirement?: No  Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: Paula Horn 

Information

Request/Subject

Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. HG161095) with the Arizona Department of Health Services.

Background Information

This is new funding provided by the Arizona Department of Health Services to address injury prevention strategies

within Gila County.  The objectives of the IGA are to improve the health of women prior to pregnancy and to

reduce the rate of injuries, both intentional and unintentional.  The agreement will address a variety of strategies

designed to impact health at the community, organizational, individual and policy levels in order to promote a

holistic approach to improving the health of individuals, their families and their communities.

Evaluation

The funding will allow Gila County the ability to address local needs regarding prevention strategies.  The

objectives of the IGA are to improve the health of women prior to pregnancy and to reduce the rate of injuries, both

intentional and unintentional. The agreement will address a variety of strategies designed to impact health at the

community, organizational, individual and policy levels in order to promote a holistic approach to improving the

health of individuals, their families and their communities.

Conclusion

Without this funding we would be unable to implement stratiegies to improve the health of women prior to

pregnancy and to reduce the rate of injuries, both intentional and unintentional.

Recommendation

It is the recommendation of the Deputy Director of Prevention Services that the Board of Supervisors approve

the Intergovernmental Agreement No. HG161095 between Gila County and the Arizona Department of Health

Services in the amount of $75,000 to provide injury prevention for the period of January 1, 2011, through

December 31, 2011.

Suggested Motion

Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. HG161095) between

Gila County and the Arizona Department of Health Services in the amount of $75,000 to provide preconception

health for women and Gila County resident injury prevention for the period of January 1, 2011, through December

31, 2011.  (Paula Horn)

Attachments

Link: Community Health Grant



 

 
INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT (IGA) 

 
Contract No. HG161095 

ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF 
HEALTH SERVICES 

1740 West Adams, Room 303 
Phoenix, Arizona 85007 

(602) 542-1040 
(602) 542-1741 FAX 

 

 
 

1 

Project Title: Community Health Grant 

 
Geographic Service Area: Gila County 

Begin Date: January 1, 2011 

 
Termination Date: December 31, 2015 
 

 
Arizona Department of Health Services has authority to contract for services specified herein in accordance with A.R.S. §§ 11-951, 11-952, 36-
104 and 36-132.  The Contractor represents that it has authority to contract for the performance of the services provided herein pursuant to:  

X   Counties: A.R.S. §§ 11-201, 11-951, 11-952 and 36-182. 

   Indian Tribes: A.R.S. §§ 11-951, 11-952 and the rules and sovereign authority of the contracting Indian Nation. 

   School Districts:   A.R.S. §§ 11-951, 11-952, and 15-342. 

   City of Phoenix:    Chapter II, §§ 1 & 2, Charter, City of Phoenix. 

   City of Tempe: Chapter 1, Article 1, §§ 1.01 & 1.03, Charter, City of Tempe. 
 
Amendments signed by each of the parties and attached hereto are hereby adopted by reference as a part of this Contract, from the effective 
date of the Amendment, as if fully set out herein.                              

 Arizona Transaction (Sales) Privilege:   
 
Federal Employer Identification No.:  
 
Tax License No.:  
 
Contractor Name: Gila County Health Department 
 
Address: 1400 East Ash 
                Globe, Arizona 85501 
                                                            

 FOR CLARIFICATION, CONTACT: 
 

Name:   Paula Horn 
 
Phone:  928-402-8813 
 
FAX No:  928-425-0794 
 
Email:  phorn@co.gila.az.us 
 

 

CONTRACTOR SIGNATURE: 
The Contractor agrees to perform all the services set forth in the 
Agreement and Work Statement.  In accordance with A.R.S. 35-
391.06 and A.R.S. 35-393.06, the Contractor hereby certifies that the 
Contractor does not have scrutinized business operations in Sudan or 
Iran. 

 

  This Contract shall henceforth be referred to as Contract  
 
No.      HG161095                                         The Contractor is 
hereby cautioned not to commence any billable work or provide 
any material, service or construction under this Contract until 
Contractor receives a fully executed copy of the Contract. 
 

 

Signature of Person Authorized to Sign               Date    
 
Michael A. Pastor,  Chairman of the Board of Supervisors 

State of Arizona 

Signed this   day of    , 2011                              
 
 

Print Name and Title 

Procurement Officer 

CONTRACTOR ATTORNEY SIGNATURE: 
Pursuant to A.R.S. § 11-952, the undersigned Contractor’s 
Attorney has determined that this Intergovernmental Agreement is 
in proper form and is within the powers and authority granted 
under the laws of Arizona.  
 
 

 RESERVED FOR USE BY THE SECRETARY OF STATE 
 
 

Under House Bill 2011, A.R.S. § 11-952 was 

amended to remove the requirement that 

Intergovernmental Agreements be filed with the 

Secretary of State. 
 
 

Signature of Person Authorized to Sign               Date    
 
Bryan B. Chambers 

Print Name and Title 

Attorney General Contract, No. PIGA2011000344, which is an 
Agreement between public agencies, has been reviewed pursuant 
to A.R.S. § 11-952 by the undersigned Assistant Attorney 
General, who has determined that it is in the proper form and is 
within the powers granted under the laws of the State of Arizona 
to those parties to the Agreement represented by the Attorney 
General. 
The Attorney General, BY: 
 
 

 

Signature                           Date 
Assistant Attorney General:  Ronald E. Johnson 

mailto:phorn@co.gila.az.us


Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS HG161095 

 

 
 

1 

                                                       

 
1. Definition of Terms.  As used in this Contract, the terms listed below are defined as follows: 
 

1.1 “Attachment” means any document attached to the Contract and incorporated into the Contract.  
 
1.2 “ADHS” means Arizona Department of Health Services.  

 
1.3 “Budget Term” means the period of time for which the contract budget has been created and during 

which funds should be expended.   
 

1.4 “Change Order” means a written order that is signed by a Procurement Officer and that directs the 
Contractor to make changes authorized by the Uniform Terms and Conditions of the Contract.   

 
1.5 “Contract” means the combination of the Uniform and Special Terms and Conditions, the 

Specifications and Statement or Scope of Work, Attachments, Referenced Documents, any Contract 
Amendments and any terms applied by law.   

 
1.6 “Contract Amendment” means a written document signed by the Procurement Officer and the 

Contractor that is issued for the purpose of making changes in the Contract.   
 

1.7 “Contractor” means any person who has a Contract with the Arizona Department of Health Services.  
 

1.8 “Cost Reimbursement” means a contract under which a contractor is reimbursed for costs, which are 
reasonable, allowable and allocable in accordance with the contract terms and approved by ADHS.  

 
1.9 “Days” means calendar days unless otherwise specified.   

 
1.10 “Fixed Price” establishes a set price per unit of service.  The set price shall be based on costs, which 

are reasonable, allowable and allocable.   
 

1.11 “Gratuity” means a payment, loan, subscription, advance, deposit of money, services, or anything of 
more than nominal value, present or promised, unless consideration of substantially equal or greater 
value is received.   

 
1.12 “Materials” unless otherwise stated herein, means all property, including but not limited to 

equipments, supplies, printing, insurance and leases of property.   
 

1.13 “Procurement Officer” means the person duly authorized by the State to enter into and administer 
Contracts and make written determinations with respect to the Contract.   

 
1.14 “Purchase Order” means a written document that is signed by a Procurement Officer, that requests a 

vendor to deliver described goods or services at a specific price and that, on delivery and acceptance 
of the goods or services by ADHS, becomes an obligation of the State.   

 
1.15 “Services” means the furnishing of labor, time or effort by a Contractor or Subcontractor.   

 
1.16 “Subcontract” means any contract, express or implied, between the Contractor and another party or 

between a subcontractor and another party delegating or assigning, in whole or in part, the making or 
furnishing of any material or any service required for the performance of this Contract.   

 
1.17 “State” means the State of Arizona and/or the ADHS.  For purposes of this Contract, the term “State” 

shall not include the Contractor. 



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS HG161095 

 

 
 

2 

 
2. Contract Type. 
  
 This Contract shall be: (check one)  
 
    Fixed Price  
 X   Cost Reimbursement 
    Not to Exceed 
 
3. Contract Interpretation. 
 

3.1 Arizona Law. The law of Arizona applies to this Contract including, where applicable, the Uniform 
Commercial Code as adopted by the State of Arizona. 

 
3.2 Implied Contract Terms.  Each provision of law and any terms required by law to be in this Contract are a 

part of this Contract as if fully stated in it. 
 
3.3 Contract Order of Precedence.  In the event of a conflict in the provisions of the Contract, as accepted by 

the State and as they may be amended, the following shall prevail in the order set forth below: 
 

3.3.1 Terms and Conditions; 
 
3.3.2 Statement or Scope of Work; 
 
3.3.3 Attachments; 
 
3.3.4 Referenced Documents. 

 
3.4 Relationship of Parties.  The Contractor under this Contract is an independent Contractor.  Neither party to 

this Contract shall be deemed to be the employee or agent of the other party to the Contract. 
 
3.5 Severability.  The provisions of this Contract are severable.  Any term or condition deemed illegal or invalid 

shall not affect any other term or condition of the Contract. 
 
3.6 No Parole Evidence.  This Contract is intended by the parties as a final and complete expression of their 

agreement.  No course of prior dealings between the parties and no usage of the trade shall supplement or 
explain any terms used in this document. 

 
3.7 No Waiver.  Either party’s failure to insist on strict performance of any term or condition of the Contract 

shall not be deemed a waiver of that term or condition even if the party accepting or acquiescing in the 
nonconforming performance knows of the nature of the performance and fails to object to it. 

 
3.8 Headings.  Headings are for organizational purposes only and shall not be interpreted as having legal 

significance or meaning. 
 
4. Contract Administration and Operation. 
  

4.1 Term.  As indicated on the signature page of the Contract, the Contract shall be effective as of the Begin 
Date and shall remain effective until the Termination Date.  

 
4.2 Contract Renewal.  This Contract shall not bind, nor purport to bind, the State for any contractual 

commitment in excess of the original Contract period.  The term of the Contract shall not exceed five years.  
However, if the original Contract period is for less than five years, the State shall have the right, at its sole 
option, to renew the Contract, so long as the original Contract period together with the renewal periods does 
not exceed five years.  If the State exercises such rights, all terms, conditions and provisions of the original 
Contract shall remain the same and apply during the renewal period with the exception of price and Scope 
of Work, which may be renegotiated.   



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS HG161095 

 

 
 

3 

 
4.3 New Budget Term.   If a budget term has been completed in a multi-term Contract, the parties may agree to 

change the amount and type of funding to accommodate new circumstances in the next budget term. Any 
increase or decrease in funding at the time of the new budget term shall coincide with a change in the 
Scope of Work or change in cost of services as approved by the Arizona Department of Health Services. 

 
4.4 Non-Discrimination.  The Contractor shall comply with State Executive Order No. 09-09, as applicable, and 

all other applicable Federal and State non-discrimination laws, rules and regulations, including, but not 
limited to Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 
1975, Federal Executive Order 11246, Sections 503 and 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as 
amended, Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 
(Public Law 101-366), and all other acts required for compliance with the federal funding source.  

 
4.5 Records and Audit.  Under A.R.S. § 35-214 and A.R.S. § 35-215, the Contractor shall retain and shall 

contractually require each subcontractor to retain all data and other records (“records”) relating to the 
acquisition and performance of the Contract for a period of five years after the completion of the Contract.  
All records shall be subject to inspection and audit by the State and where applicable the Federal 
Government at reasonable times.  Upon request, the Contractor shall produce a legible copy of any or all 
such records. 

 
4.6 Financial Management.  For all contracts, the practices, procedures, and standards specified in and 

required by the Accounting and Auditing Procedures Manual for the ADHS funded programs shall be used 
by the Contractor in the management of Contract funds and by the State when performing a Contract audit.  
Funds collected by the Contractor in the form of fees, donations and/or charges for the delivery of these 
Contract services shall be accounted for in a separate fund.   

 
4.6.1 Federal Funding. Contractors receiving federal funds under this Contract shall comply with the 

certified finance and compliance audit provision of the Office of Management and Budget (OMB) 
Circular A-133, if applicable.  The federal financial assistance information shall be stated in a 
Change Order or Purchase Order. 

 
4.6.2 State Funding.  Contractors receiving state funds under this Contract shall comply with the certified 

compliance provisions of A.R.S. § 35-181.03. 
 

4.7 Inspection and Testing.  The Contractor agrees to permit access, at reasonable times, to its facilities. 
 
4.8 Notices.  Notices to the Contractor required by this Contract shall be made by the State to the person 

indicated on the signature page by the Contractor, unless otherwise stated in the Contract.  Notices to the 
State required by the Contract shall be made by the Contractor to an ADHS Procurement Officer, unless 
otherwise stated in the Contract.  An authorized ADHS Procurement Officer and an authorized Contractor 
representative may change their respective person to whom notice shall be given by written notice, and an 
amendment to the Contract shall not be necessary. 

 
4.9 Advertising and Promotion of Contract.  The Contractor shall not advertise or publish information for 

commercial benefit concerning this Contract without the prior written approval of an ADHS Procurement 
Officer. 

 
4.10 Property of the State.   

 
4.10.1 Equipment.  Except as provided below or otherwise agreed to by the parties, the title to any and all 

equipment acquired through the expenditure of funds received from the State shall remain the 
property of the State by and through the ADHS and, as such, shall remain under the sole direction, 
management and control of the ADHS.  When this Contract is terminated, the disposition of all 
such property shall be determined by the ADHS.  For Fixed Price contracts, when the Contractor 
provides the services/materials required by the Contract, any and all equipment purchased by the 
Contractor remains the property of the Contractor.  All purchases of equipment need to be reported 
to the ADHS Office of Inventory Control.  



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS HG161095 

 

 
 

4 

 
 
4.10.2 Title and Rights to Materials.  As used in this section, the term “Materials” means all products 

created or produced by the Contractor under this Contract, including, but not limited to: written and 
electronic information, recordings, reports, research, research findings, conclusions, abstracts, 
results, software, data and any other intellectual property or deliverables created, prepared, or 
received by the Contractor in performance of this Contract.  Contractor acknowledges that all 
Materials are the property of the State by and through the ADHS and, as such, shall remain under 
the sole direction, management and control of the ADHS.  The Contractor is not entitled to a patent 
or copyright on these Materials and may not transfer a patent or copyright on them to any other 
person or entity.  To the extent any copyright in any Materials may originally vest in the Contractor, 
the Contractor hereby irrevocably transfers to the ADHS, for and on behalf of the State, all 
copyright ownership.  The ADHS shall have full, complete and exclusive rights to reproduce, 
duplicate, adapt, distribute, display, disclose, publish, release and otherwise use all Materials.  The 
Contractor shall not use or release these Materials without the prior written consent of the ADHS.  
When this Contract is terminated, the disposition of all such Materials shall be determined by the 
ADHS.  Further, the Contractor agrees to give recognition to the ADHS for its support of any 
program when releasing or publishing program Materials. 

 
 Notwithstanding the above, if the Contractor is a State agency, the following shall apply instead:  It 

is the intention of ADHS and Contractor that all material and intellectual property developed under 
this Agreement be used and controlled in ways to produce the greatest  benefit to the parties to this 
Contract and the citizens of the State of Arizona.  As used in this paragraph, “Material” means all 
written and electronic information, recordings, reports, findings, research information, abstracts, 
results, software, data, discoveries, inventions, procedures and processes of services developed 
by the Contractor and any other materials created, prepared or received by the Contractor and 
subcontractors in performance of this Agreement.  “Material” as used herein shall not include any 
pre-existing data, information, materials, discoveries, inventions or any form of intellectual property 
invented, created, developed or devised by Contractor (or its employees, subcontractors or agents) 
prior to the commencement of the services funded by this Agreement or that may result from 
Contractor’s involvement in other service activities that are not funded by the Agreement. 

 
 Title and exclusive copyright to all Material shall vest in the State of Arizona, subject to any rights 

reserved on behalf of the federal government.  As State agencies and instrumentalities, both ADHS 
and Contractor shall have full, complete, perpetual, irrevocable and non-transferable rights to 
reproduce, duplicate, adapt, make derivative works, distribute, display, disclose, publish and 
otherwise use any and all Material.  The Contractor’s right to use Material shall include the 
following rights:   the right to use the Material in connection with its internal, non-profit research and 
educational activities, the right to present at academic or professional meetings or symposia and 
the right to publish in journals, theses, dissertations or otherwise of Contractor’s own choosing.  
Contractor agrees to provide ADHS with a right of review prior to any publication or public 
presentation of the Material, and ADHS shall be entitled to request the removal of its confidential 
information or any other content the disclosure of which would be contrary to the best interest of 
the State of Arizona.  Neither party shall release confidential information to the public without the 
prior expressly written permission of the other, unless required by the State public records statutes 
or other law, including a court order.  Each party agrees to give recognition to the other party in all 
public presentations or publications of any Material, when releasing or publishing them.  

 
 In addition, ADHS and Contractor agree that any and all Material shall be made freely available to 

the public to the extent it is in the best interest of the State.  However, if either party wants to 
license or assign an intellectual property interest in the material to a third-party for monetary 
compensation, ADHS and Contractor agree to convene to determine the relevant issues of title, 
copyright, patent and distribution of revenue.  In the event of a controversy as to whether the 
Material is being used for monetary compensation or in a way that interferes with the best interest 
of the state or ADHS, then the Arizona Department of Administration shall make the final decision.  
Notwithstanding the above, “monetary compensation’ does not include compensation paid to an 
individual creator for traditional publications in academia (the copyrights to which are Employee-



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS HG161095 

 

 
 

5 

Excluded Works under ABOR Intellectual Property Policy Section 6-908C.4.), an honorarium or 
other reimbursement of expenses for an academic or professional presentation, or an unprofitable 
distribution of Material.  

 
5. Costs and Payments  
 

 5.1 Payments.  Payments shall comply with the requirements of A.R.S. Titles 35 and 41, net 30 days. Upon 
receipt and acceptance of goods or services, the Contractor shall submit a complete and accurate 
Contractor’s Expenditure Report for payment from the State within thirty (30) days, as provided in the 
Accounting and Auditing Procedures Manual for the ADHS. 

 
5.2 Recoupment of Contract Payments.  

 
5.2.1 Unearned Advanced Funds.  Any unearned State funds that have been advanced to the Contractor 

and remain in its possession at the end of each budget term, or at the time of termination of the 
Contract, shall be refunded to the ADHS within forty-five (45) days of the end of a budget term or of 
the time of termination. 

 
5.2.2 Contracted Services.  In a fixed price contract, if the number of services provided is less than the 

number of services for which the Contractor received compensation, funds to be returned to the 
ADHS shall be determined by the Contract price.  Where the price is determined by cost per unit of 
service or material, the funds to be returned shall be determined by multiplying the unit of service 
cost by the number of services the Contractor did not provide during the Contract term.  Where the 
price for a deliverable is fixed, but the deliverable has not been completed, the Contractor shall be 
paid a pro rata portion of the completed deliverable.  In a cost reimbursement contract, the ADHS 
shall pay for any costs that the Contractor can document as having been paid by the Contractor 
and approved by ADHS.  In addition, the Contractor will be paid its reasonable actual costs for 
work in progress as determined by Generally Accepted Accounting Procedures up to the date of 
contract termination.   

 
5.2.3 Refunds.  Within forty-five (45) days after the end of each budget term or of the time of termination 

of the Contract, the Contractor shall refund the greater of:  i) the amount refundable in accordance 
with paragraph 4.2.1, Unearned Advanced Funds; or ii) the amount refundable in accordance with 
paragraph 5.2.2, Contracted Services.   

 
5.2.4 Unacceptable Expenditures.  The Contractor agrees to reimburse the ADHS for all Contract funds 

expended, which are determined by the ADHS not to have been disbursed by the Contractor in 
accordance with the terms of this Contract.  The Contractor shall reimburse ADHS within 45 days 
of the determination of unacceptability. 

 
5.3 Unit Costs/Rates or Fees.  Unit costs/rates or fees shall be based on costs, which are determined by ADHS 

to be reasonable, allowable and allocable as outlined in the Accounting and Auditing Procedures Manual 
for the ADHS. 

 
5.4 Applicable Taxes. 

 
5.4.1 State and Local Transaction Privilege Taxes.  The State of Arizona is subject to all applicable state 

and local transaction privilege taxes.  Transaction privilege taxes apply to the sale and are the 
responsibility of the seller to remit.  Failure to collect taxes from the buyer does not relieve the 
seller from its obligation to remit taxes. 

 
5.4.2 Tax Indemnification.  The Contractor and all subcontractors shall pay all federal, state and local 

taxes applicable to its operation and any persons employed by the Contractor.  Contractor shall 
require all subcontractors to hold the State harmless from any responsibility for taxes, damages 
and interest, if applicable, contributions required under Federal, and/or state and local laws and 
regulations and any other costs, including transaction privilege taxes, unemployment compensation 
insurance, Social Security and Worker’s Compensation. 



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS HG161095 

 

 
 

6 

 
5.4.3 I.R.S. W9 Form.  In order to receive payment under any resulting Contract, the Contractor shall 

have a current I.R.S. W9 Form on file with the State of Arizona.   
 

5.5 Availability of Funds for the Next Fiscal Year.  Funds may not be presently available for performance under 
this Contract beyond the first year of the budget term or Contract term.  The State may reduce payments or 
terminate this Contract without further recourse, obligation or penalty in the event that insufficient funds are 
appropriated in the subsequent budget term.  The State shall not be liable for any purchases or 
Subcontracts entered into by the Contractor in anticipation of such funding. The Procurement Officer shall 
have the discretion in determining the availability of funds.    

 
5.6 Availability of Funds for the Current Contract Term.  Should the State Legislature enter back into session 

and decrease the appropriations through line item or general fund reductions, or for any other reason these 
goods or services are not funded as determined by ADHS, the following actions may be taken by ADHS: 

 
5.6.1 Accept a decrease in price offered by the Contractor; 

5.6.2 Reduce the number of goods or units of service and reduce the payments accordingly; 

5.6.3 Offer reductions in funding as an alternative to Contract termination; or 

5.6.4 Cancel the Contract.    

6. Contract Changes 
 

6.1 Amendments, Purchase Orders and Change Orders.  This Contract is issued under the authority of the 
Procurement Officer who signed this Contract.  The Contract may be modified only through a Contract 
Amendment, Purchase Order and/or Change Order within the scope of the Contract, unless the change is 
administrative or otherwise permitted by the Special Terms and Conditions.  Changes to the Contract, 
including the addition of work or materials, the revision of payment terms, or the substitution of work or 
materials, directed by an unauthorized State employee or made unilaterally by the Contractor are violations 
of the Contract and of applicable law.  Such changes, including unauthorized Contract Amendments, 
Purchase Orders and/or Change Orders, shall be void and without effect, and the Contractor shall not be 
entitled to any claim under this Contract based on those changes. 

 
6.2 Subcontracts.  The Contractor shall not enter into any subcontract under this Contract without the advance 

written approval of the Procurement Officer.  The subcontract shall incorporate by reference all material 
and applicable terms and conditions of this Contract. 

 
6.3  Assignments and Delegation.  The Contractor shall not assign any right nor delegate any duty under this 

Contract without the prior written approval of the Procurement Officer.  The State shall not unreasonably 
withhold approval. 

 
7.  Risk and Liability 
 

7.1 Risk of Loss.  The Contractor shall bear all loss of conforming material covered under this Contract until 
received and accepted by authorized personnel at the location designated in the Purchase Order, Change 
Order or Contract.  Mere receipt does not constitute final acceptance.  The risk of loss for nonconforming 
materials shall remain with the Contractor regardless of receipt. 

 
7.2 Mutual Indemnification.  Each party (as “indemnitor”) agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the 

other party (as “indemnitee”) from and against any and all claims, losses, liability, costs or expenses 
(including reasonable attorney’s fees) (hereinafter collectively referred to as “claims”) arising out of bodily 
injury of any person (including death) or property damage, but only to the extent that such claims, which 
result in vicarious/derivative liability to the indemnitee, are caused by the act, omission, negligence, 
misconduct, or other fault of the indemnitor, its officers, officials, agents, employees or volunteers. 

 



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS HG161095 

 

 
 

7 

7.3 Indemnification - Patent and Copyright.  To the extent permitted by A.R.S. § 41-621 and A.R.S. § 35-154, 
the Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the State against any liability, including costs and 
expenses, for infringement of any patent, trademark or copyright arising out of performance of the Contract 
or use by the State of materials furnished by or work performed under this Contract.  The State shall 
reasonably notify the Contractor of any claim for which it may be liable under this paragraph. 

 
7.4 Force Majeure. 

 
7.4.1 Liability and Definition.  Except for payment of sums due, neither party shall be liable to the other 

nor deemed in default under this Contract if and to the extent that such party’s performance of this 
Contract is prevented by reason of force majeure.  The term “force majeure” means an occurrence 
that is beyond the control of the party affected and occurs without its fault or negligence.  Without 
limiting the foregoing, force majeure includes acts of God; acts of the public enemy; acts of 
terrorism; war; riots; strikes; mobilization; labor disputes; civil disorders; fire; flood; lockouts; 
injunctions-interventions not caused by or resulting from the act or failure to act of the parties; 
failures or refusals to act by government authority not caused by or resulting from the act or failure 
to act of the parties; and other similar occurrences beyond the control of the party declaring force 
majeure, which such party is unable to prevent by exercising reasonable diligence. 

 
7.4.2 Exclusions.  Force Majeure shall not include the following occurrences: 

 
7.4.2.1 Late delivery of Materials caused by congestion at a manufacturer’s plant or elsewhere, or 

an oversold condition of the market; 
 
7.4.2.2 Late performance by a subcontractor unless the delay arises out of a force majeure 

occurrence in accordance with this force majeure term and condition; or 
 
7.4.2.3 Inability of either the Contractor or any subcontractor to acquire or maintain any required 

insurance, bonds, licenses or permits. 
 

7.4.3 Notice.  If either party is delayed at any time in the progress of the work by force majeure, the 
delayed party shall notify the other party in writing of such delay, as soon as is practicable and no 
later than the following working day of the commencement thereof, and shall specify the causes of 
such delay in such notice.  Such notice shall be delivered or mailed certified-return receipt and 
shall make a specific reference to this article, thereby invoking its provisions.  The delayed party 
shall cause such delay to cease as soon as practicable and shall notify the other party in writing 
when it has done so.  The time of completion shall be extended by Contract Amendment for a 
period of time equal to the time that the results or effects of such delay prevent the delayed party 
from performing in accordance with this Contract. 

 
7.4.4 Default.  Any delay or failure in performance by either party hereto shall not constitute default 

hereunder or give rise to any claim for damages or loss of anticipated profits if, and to the extent 
that, such delay or failure is caused by force majeure. 

 
7.5 Third Party Antitrust Violations.  The Contractor assigns to the State any claim for overcharges resulting 

from antitrust violations to the extent that those violations concern materials or services supplied by third 
parties to the Contractor for or toward the fulfillment of this Contract. 

 
8. Description of Materials The following provisions shall apply to Materials only: 
 

8.1 Liens. The Contractor agrees that the Materials supplied under this Contract are free of liens.  In the event 
the Materials are not free of liens, Contractor shall pay to remove the lien and any associated damages or 
replace the Materials with Materials free of liens. 

 
8.2 Quality. Unless otherwise modified elsewhere in these terms and conditions, the Contractor agrees that, for 

one year after acceptance by the State of the Materials, they shall be: 
 



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS HG161095 

 

 
 

8 

8.2.1  Of a quality to pass without objection in the Contract description; 
 
8.2.2 Fit for the intended purposes for which the Materials are used; 
 
8.2.3 Within the variations permitted by the Contract and are of even kind, quantity, and quality within 

each unit and among all units; 
 
8.2.4 Adequately contained, packaged and marked as the Contract may require; and  
 
8.2.5 Conform to the written promises or affirmations of fact made by the Contractor. 

 
8.3 Inspection/Testing.  Subparagraphs 8.1 through 8.2 of this paragraph are not affected by inspection or 

testing of or payment for the Materials by the State. 
 
8.4 Compliance With Applicable Laws.  The Materials and services supplied under this Contract shall comply 

with all applicable federal, state and local laws, and the Contractor shall maintain all applicable license and 
permit requirements. 

 
8.5 Survival of Rights and Obligations After Contract Expiration and Termination. 
 

8.5.1 Contractor’s Representations.  All representations and warranties made by the Contractor under 
this Contract in paragraphs 7 and 8 shall survive the expiration or termination hereof.  In addition, 
the parties hereto acknowledge that pursuant to A.R.S. § 12.510, except as provided in A.R.S. § 
12-529, the State is not subject to or barred by any limitations of actions prescribed in A.R.S. Title 
12, Chapter 5. 

 
8.5.2 Purchase Orders and Change Orders.  Unless otherwise directed in writing by the Procurement 

Officer, the Contractor shall fully perform and shall be obligated to comply with all Purchase Orders 
and Change Orders received by the Contractor prior to the expiration or termination hereof, 
including, without limitation, all Purchase Orders and Change Orders received prior to but not fully 
performed and satisfied at the expiration or termination of this Contract. 

 
9. State’s Contractual Remedies 
 

9.1 Right to Assurance.  If the State, in good faith, has reason to believe that the Contractor does not intend to, 
or is unable to, perform or continue performing under this Contract, the Procurement Officer may demand 
in writing that the Contractor give a written assurance of intent to perform.  Failure by the Contractor to 
provide written assurance within the number of Days specified in the demand may, at the State’s option, be 
the basis for terminating the Contract. 

 
9.2 Stop Work Order. 

 
9.2.1 Terms.  The State may, at any time, by written order to the Contractor, require the Contractor to 

stop all or any part of the work called for by this Contract for a period up to ninety (90) Days after 
the order is delivered to the Contractor, and for any further period to which the parties may agree.  
The order shall be specifically identified as a stop work order issued under this clause.  Upon 
receipt of the order, the Contractor shall immediately comply with its terms and take all reasonable 
steps to minimize the incurrence of costs allocable to the work covered by the order during the 
period of work stoppage. 

 
9.2.2 Cancellation or Expiration.  If a stop work order issued under this clause is canceled or the period 

of the order or any extension expires, the Contractor shall resume work. The Procurement Officer 
shall make an equitable adjustment in the delivery schedule or Contract price, or both, and the 
Contract shall be amended in writing accordingly.  

 
9.3 Non-exclusive Remedies.  The rights and remedies of ADHS under this Contract are not exclusive, and 

ADHS is entitled to all rights and remedies available to it, including those under the Arizona Uniform 



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS HG161095 

 

 
 

9 

Commercial Code and Arizona common law. 
 
9.4 Right of Offset.  The State shall be entitled to offset against any sums due the Contractor in any Contract 

with the State or damages assessed by the State because of the Contractor’s non-conforming performance 
or failure to perform this Contract.  The right to offset may include, but is not limited to, a deduction from an 
unpaid balance and a collection against the bid and/or performance bonds.  Any offset taken for damages 
assessed by the State shall represent a fair and reasonable amount for the actual damages and shall not 
be a penalty for non-performance.  
 

10. Contract Termination 
 

10.1 Cancellation for Conflict of Interest.  Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-511, the State may cancel this Contract within 
three (3) years after Contract execution without penalty or further obligation if any person significantly 
involved in initiating, negotiating, securing, drafting or creating the Contract on behalf of the State is, or 
becomes at any time while the Contract or an extension of the Contract is in effect, an employee of or a 
consultant to any other party to this Contract with respect to the subject matter of the Contract.  The 
cancellation shall be effective when the Contractor receives written notice of the cancellation, unless the 
notice specifies a later time.  If the Contractor is a political subdivision of the State, it may also cancel this 
Contract as provided in A.R.S. § 38-511. 

 
10.2 Gratuities.  The State may, by written notice, terminate this Contract, in whole or in part, if the State 

determines that employment or a Gratuity was offered or made by the Contractor or a representative of the 
Contractor to any officer or employee of the State for the purpose of influencing the outcome of the 
procurement, securing the Contract or an Amendment to the Contract, or receiving favorable treatment 
concerning the Contract, including the making of any determination or decision about Contract 
performance.  The State, in addition to any other rights or remedies, shall be entitled to recover exemplary 
damages in the amount of three times the value of the Gratuity offered by the Contractor. 

 
10.3 Suspension or Debarment.  The State may, by written notice to the Contractor, immediately terminate this 

Contract if the State determines that the Contractor or its subcontractor has been debarred, suspended or 
otherwise lawfully prohibited from participating in any public procurement activity, including but not limited 
to, being disapproved as a subcontractor of any public procurement unit or other governmental body.   

 
10.4 Termination Without Cause. 
 
 10.4.1 Both the State and the Contractor may terminate this Contract at any time with thirty (30) days 

notice in writing specifying the termination date.  Such notices shall be given by personal delivery 
or by certified mail, return receipt requested. 

 
 10.4.2 If the Contractor terminates this Contract, any monies prepaid by the State, for which no service 

or benefit was received by the State, shall be refunded to the State within 5 days of the 
termination notice.  In addition, if the Contractor terminates the Contract, the Contractor shall 
indemnify the State for any sanctions imposed by the funding source as a result of the 
Contractor’s failure to complete the Contract. 

 
 10.4.3 If the State terminates this Contact pursuant to this Section, the State shall pay the Contractor the 

Contract price for all Services and Materials completed up to the date of termination.  In a fixed 
price contract, the State shall pay the amount owed for the Services or Materials by multiplying 
the unit of service or item cost by the number of unpaid service units or items.  In a cost 
reimbursement contract, the ADHS shall pay for any costs that the Contractor can document as 
having been paid by the Contractor and approved by ADHS.  In addition, the Contractor will be 
paid its reasonable actual costs for work in progress as determined by GAAP up to the date of 
termination.  Upon such termination, the Contractor shall deliver to the ADHS all deliverables 
completed.  ADHS may require Contractor to negotiate the terms of any remaining deliverables 
still due. 

 
10.5 Mutual Termination.  This Contract may be terminated by mutual written agreement of the parties 



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS HG161095 

 

 
 

10 

specifying the termination date and the terms for disposition of property and, as necessary, submission of 
required deliverables and payment therein. 

 
10.6 Termination for Default.  The State reserves the right to terminate the Contract in whole or in part due to 

the failure of the Contractor to comply with any material obligation, term or condition of the Contract, to 
acquire and maintain all required insurance policies, bonds, licenses and permits, or to make satisfactory 
progress in performing the Contract.  In the event the ADHS terminates the Contract in whole or in part as 
provided in this paragraph, the ADHS may procure, upon such terms and in such manner as deemed 
appropriate, Services or Materials, similar to those terminated, and Contractor shall be liable to the ADHS 
for any excess costs incurred by the ADHS in obtaining such similar Services or Materials. 

 
10.7 Continuation of Performance Through Termination.  Upon receipt of the notice of termination and until the 

effective date of the notice of termination, the Contractor shall perform work consistent with the 
requirements of the Contract and, if applicable, in accordance with a written transition plan approved by the 
ADHS.  If the Contract is terminated in part, the Contractor shall continue to perform the Contract to the 
extent not terminated.  After receiving the notice of termination, the Contractor shall immediately notify all 
subcontractors, in writing, to stop work on the effective date of termination, and on the effective date of 
termination, the Contractor and subcontractors shall stop all work.  

 
10.8 Disposition of Property.  Upon termination of this Contract, all property of the State, as defined herein, shall 

be delivered to the ADHS upon demand. 
 
11. Arbitration  Pursuant to A.R.S. § 12-1518, disputes under this Contract shall be resolved through the use of 

arbitration when the case or lawsuit is subject to mandatory arbitration pursuant to rules adopted under A.R.S. § 
12 -133. 

  
12. Communication 
 

12.1 Program Report.  When reports are required by the Contract, the Contractor shall provide them in the 
format approved by ADHS.  

 
12.2 Information and Coordination.  The State will provide information to the Contractor pertaining to activities 

that affect the Contractor’s delivery of services, and the Contractor shall be responsible for coordinating 
their activities with the State’s in such a manner as not to conflict or unnecessarily duplicate the State’s 
activities.  As the work of the Contractor progresses, advice and information on matters covered by the 
Contract shall be made available by the Contractor to the State throughout the effective period of the 
Contract. 

 
13. Client Grievances  If applicable, the Contractor and its subcontractors shall use a procedure through which 

clients may present grievances about the operation of the program that result in the denial, suspension or 
reduction of services provided pursuant to this Contract and which is acceptable to and approved by the State.  

 
14. Sovereign Immunity Pursuant to A.R.S. § 41-621(O), the obtaining of insurance by the State shall not be a 

waiver of any sovereign immunity defense in the event of suit. 
 
15. Fingerprint and Certification Requirements/Juvenile Services.  
 

15.1 Paid and Unpaid Personnel.  The Contractor shall ensure that all paid and unpaid personnel who are 
required or are allowed to provide Services directly to juveniles have obtained fingerprint clearance cards in 
accordance with A.R.S. § 41-1758 et. seq.   

 
15.2 Costs.  The Contractor shall assume the costs of fingerprint certifications and may charge these costs to its 

fingerprinted personnel. 
 

16. Administrative Changes  The Procurement Officer, or authorized designee, reserves the right to correct any 
obvious clerical, typographical or grammatical errors, as well as errors in party contact information (collectively, 
“Administrative Changes”), prior to or after the final execution of a Contract or Contract Amendment.  



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS HG161095 

 

 
 

11 

Administrative Changes subject to permissible corrections include: misspellings, grammar errors, incorrect 
addresses, incorrect Contract Amendment numbers, pagination and citation errors, mistakes in the labeling of the 
rate as either extended or unit, and calendar date errors that are illogical due to typographical error.  The 
Procurement Office shall subsequently send to the Contractor notice of corrections to administrative errors in a 
written confirmation letter with a copy of the corrected Administrative Change attached. 

 
17.   Survival of Terms After Termination or Cancellation of Contract  All applicable Contract terms shall survive 

and apply after Contract termination or cancellation to the extent necessary for Contractor to complete and for the 
ADHS to receive and accept any final deliverables that are due after the date of the termination or cancellation. 

 
18. Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA)  The Contractor warrants that it is 

familiar with the requirements of HIPAA and HIPAA’s accompanying regulations and will comply with all 
applicable HIPAA requirements in the course of this Contract.  Contractor warrants that it will cooperate with the 
Arizona Department of Health Services (ADHS) in the course of performance of the Contract so that both the 
ADHS and Contractor will be in compliance with HIPAA, including cooperation and coordination with the ADHS 
Privacy Officer and other compliance officials required by HIPAA and its regulations.  Contractor will sign any 
documents that are reasonably necessary to keep the ADHS and Contractor in compliance with HIPAA, including, 
but not limited to, business associate agreements. 

 
If requested by the ADHS, Contractor agrees to sign the “Arizona Department of Health Services Pledge To 
Protect Confidential Information” and to abide by the statements addressing the creation, use and disclosure of 
confidential information, including information designated as protected health information and all other confidential 
or sensitive information as defined in policy.  In addition, if requested, Contractor agrees to attend or participate in 
HIPAA training offered by the ADHS or to provide written verification that the Contractor has attended or 
participated in job related HIPAA training that is: (1) intended to make the Contractor proficient in HIPAA for 
purposes of performing the services required and (2) presented by a HIPAA Privacy Officer or other person or 
program knowledgeable and experienced in HIPAA and who has been approved by the ADHS HIPAA 
Compliance Officer. 

 
19. Compliance Requirements for A.R.S. § 41-4401, Government Procurement:  E-Verify Requirement 
 

19.1 The Contractor warrants compliance with all Federal immigration laws and regulations relating to 
employees and warrants its compliance with Section A.R.S. § 23-214, Subsection A. (That subsection 
reads: “After December 31, 2007, every employer, after hiring an employee, shall verify the employment 
eligibility of the employee through the E-Verify program.) 

 
19.2 A breach of a warranty regarding compliance with immigration laws and regulations shall be deemed a 

material breach of the Contract and the Contractor may be subject to penalties up to and including 
termination of the Contract. 

  
19.3 Failure to comply with a State audit process to randomly verify the employment records of Contractors and 

subcontractors shall be deemed a material breach of the Contract and the Contractor may be subject to 
penalties up to and including termination of the Contract.  

 
19.4 The State Agency retains the legal right to inspect the papers of any employee who works on the Contract 

to ensure that the Contractor or subcontractor is complying with the warranty under paragraph 1. 
 
20. A.R.S. 35-393 and A.R.S. 35-391 In accordance with A.R.S. 35-393 and A.R.S. 35-391, the Contractor shall not 

have scrutinized business operations in Iran or Sudan. 
 
21. Comments Welcome   The ADHS Procurement Office periodically reviews the Uniform Terms and Conditions 

and welcomes any comments you may have. Please submit your comments to: ADHS Procurement 
Administrator, Arizona Department of Health Services, 1740 West Adams, Suite 303, Phoenix, Arizona, 85007. 

 



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
SCOPE OF WORK HG161095 

 

 
 

12 

SCOPE OF WORK 
 

1. BACKGROUND 
 

The Arizona Department of Health Services (ADHS), Bureau of Women’s and Children’s Health (BWCH), mission is 
to strengthen the family and the community by promoting and improving the health and safety of women, infants, and 
children.  This is accomplished through the provision of community-based services and the facilitation of systems 
development.  BWCH manages and distributes funding that provides services to reduce the mortality and morbidity 
among women and children, increase access to health care, and reduce health disparities.  For more information on 
the specific programs, go to www.azdhs.gov/phs/owch/. 
 
BWCH administers the Title V Maternal and Child Health (MCH) Block Grant.  Title V of the Social Security Act of 
1935 is a federal program that focuses on improving the health of all mothers and children.  Each year states apply for 
the block grant in an application that includes a report on past performance, plan for meeting needs, and a description 
of how the funds will be used. 
 
Every five (5) years, State Title V MCH agencies are required to conduct a comprehensive needs assessment 
to identify state MCH needs and prioritize them for strategic planning.  While needs assessment is always 
part of an ongoing planning cycle, the five-year needs assessment is an opportunity to formally examine 
trends and issues, review progress, and set priorities for the next five (5) years.  Although statewide needs 
have been identified based on data, public input, and a comprehensive needs assessment, the Women’s and 
Children’s Community Health Intergovernmental Agreements (Agreement) allow Counties to prioritize efforts 
based on the severity of these issues within their own County.  By zeroing in on the most critical issues 
impacting women’s and children’s health in a particular County and, in turn, the State, ADHS BWCH has the 
best chance of making an impact and long term change. 
 
The Women’s and Children’s Community Health Agreements will fund collaborative efforts at the County level that 
can result in improvements to specific women’s and children’s health outcomes.  The County level efforts shall 
emphasize partnership building with those entities that can most effectively contribute to improving the health 
outcomes listed below.  The chosen statewide priorities were derived from Arizona’s 2010 comprehensive needs 
assessment.  The Maternal, Infant, and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program Needs Assessment was also utilized 
to identify communities at greater risk of poor health outcomes.    

 
2. OBJECTIVE 
 

2.1 Implement multi-faceted strategies at the community level that work to: 
 

2.1.1 Improve the health of women prior to pregnancy; and 
 
2.1.2 Reduce the rate of injuries, both intentional and unintentional.   

 
3. SCOPE OF SERVICE 
 

3.1  The Agreement will address a variety of strategies designed to impact health at the community, organizational, 
individual and policy levels in order to promote a holistic approach to improving the health of individuals, their 
families and their communities.  The “Spectrum of Prevention” (Spectrum) serves as a guideline for addressing 
complex issues at a number of levels as a means of instituting systemic and effective prevention strategies.  
The Spectrum identifies multiple levels of intervention and helps people/communities view prevention from a 
broader perspective than merely personal behavior decisions.  The Spectrum is a framework for a more 
comprehensive understanding of prevention that includes six (6) levels for strategy development. These levels, 
delineated below, are complementary and when used together produce a synergy that results in greater 
effectiveness than would be possible by implementing any single activity or linear initiative. At each level, the 
most important activities related to prevention objectives should be identified.  As these activities are identified 
they will lead to interrelated actions at other levels of the Spectrum.   

 
http://www.preventioninstitute.org/component/jlibrary/article/id-105/127.html  The levels of the Spectrum are as 
follows: 

http://www.azdhs.gov/phs/owch/
http://www.preventioninstitute.org/component/jlibrary/article/id-105/127.html


Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
SCOPE OF WORK HG161095 

 

 
 

13 

 
3.1.1 Influencing Policy and Legislation – Developing strategies to change laws and policies to influence 

outcomes; 
 

3.2.1 Changing Organizational Practices – Adopting regulations and shaping norms to improve health and 
safety; 

 
3.3.1 Fostering Coalitions and Networks – Convening groups and individuals for broader goals and greater 

impact; 
 
3.4.1  Educating Providers – Informing providers who will transmit skills and knowledge to others; 
 
3.5.1 Promoting Community Education – Reaching groups of people with information and resources to 

promote health and safety; and 
 
3.6.1  Strengthening Individual Knowledge and Skills – Enhancing an individual’s capability of preventing 

injury or illness and promoting safety and health. 
 

3.2  Counties are expected to implement strategies at multiple levels of the Spectrum in accordance with local 
community needs.  Strategies that influence policy, change organizational practices, and foster coalitions are 
required.  BWCH encourages and supports integration with existing county public health programs as 
appropriate. Evidence-based strategies should be utilized whenever available and appropriate.  

 
3.2.1  Priority 1:  Improve the health of women prior to pregnancy.  Promote improvement of 

preconception health, utilizing the Life Course Perspective.  The Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention is a valuable resource for learning more about preconception heath and their website 
provides comprehensive information regarding preconception health 
http://www.cdc.gov/ncbddd/preconception/default.htm.   Research continues to support the concept 
that the most effective means of improving birth outcomes is by improving the health of the mother 
before she becomes pregnant.  The life course perspective promotes looking at life as a continuum 
versus periodic life events and takes into account the various risk and protective factors that impact 
an individual’s health.  A life course toolkit is available on the CityMatCH website to assist with 
integrating the life course perspective into maternal and child health programs. 
http://www.citymatch.org/lifecoursetoolbox/.  Preconception health takes into account physical, 
mental and social wellbeing of men and women of childbearing age. Examples of health factors that 
impact preconception health include healthy weight, stress management, management of chronic 
diseases, reproductive health, smoking and physical activity. Interconception health or the heath of a 
woman between pregnancies is also referred to as preconception health.  During the summer of 
2010 the BWCH convened a task force charged with developing a Preconception Health Strategic 
Plan for Arizona.  The Spectrum was one of several guiding tools used during the development of the 
plan.  Activities funded through this Agreement should utilize multiple strategies as a means of not 
only supporting the strategic plan but meeting the requirements regarding components of the 
Spectrum.  BWCH also encourages the utilization of Every Woman, Arizona, preconception health 
materials developed as an educational tool for use with clients/patients 
http://www.azdhs.gov/phs/owch/publicat.htm.   Interventions shall target women of childbearing age 
but can also include children, adolescents and male family members. 

 
3.2.2  Priority 2:  Reduce the rate of injuries, both intentional and unintentional.  Counties should review 

local data to determine which injury areas are in most need of intervention.  Examples of injury areas 
that may be addressed include, but are not limited to: motor vehicles crashes, falls, drowning, 
poisoning, fire/burns, firearm-related injuries, domestic violence, self-inflicted injuries, and suicide.  
BWCH encourages addressing adolescent suicide, adolescent motor vehicle crash injuries, bullying, 
childhood injuries, and infant safe sleep.  Counties should utilize strategies from The Arizona Injury 
Surveillance and Prevention Plan, 2006-2010 (http://www.azdhs.gov/phs/owch/pdf/injury_plan_06-
10.pdf) and/or the draft update of the plan as it becomes available.  Interventions shall target 
adolescents and younger children, but can also include families.   

 

http://www.cdc.gov/ncbddd/preconception/default.htm
http://www.citymatch.org/lifecoursetoolbox/
http://www.azdhs.gov/phs/owch/publicat.htm
http://www.azdhs.gov/phs/owch/pdf/injury_plan_06-10.pdf
http://www.azdhs.gov/phs/owch/pdf/injury_plan_06-10.pdf


Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
SCOPE OF WORK HG161095 

 

 
 

14 

4. TASKS 
 

The Contractor shall: 
 
4.1 Complete a logic model outlining project design based on the Spectrum; 
 
4.2  Submit narrative description of how project activities fit with the Spectrum;  
 
4.4 Identify specific target populations and/or communities; 

 
4.4 Annually submit a revised logic model plan implementation plan based on the Spectrum; 
 
4.5 Implement approved strategies; 
 
4.6 Work with tribal communities present in the County; 
 
4.7 Participate in any statewide evaluation lead by BWCH; 
 
4.8 Participate in contractor meetings; 
 
4.9 Participate in training organized by BWCH; 
 
4.10 Develop and submit a proposed budget for the coming year and each subsequent year; 
 
4.11 Submit monthly report; 
 
4.12 Submit monthly Contractor’s Expenditure Report;  
 
4.13 Submit Annual Report based on findings that includes cumulative year to date data of services provided; and 
 
4.14 Submit annual Title V unduplicated numbers form. 

 
5. REQUIREMENTS  

 
5.1 County shall provide a copy of all printed or broadcast media or any other educational materials developed 

using funds awarded under this Agreement to the ADHS Program Manager for approval.  Media and/or printed 
educational materials shall adhere to the required wording as follows: “Funded in part by the Bureau of 
Women’s and Children’s Health as made available through the Arizona Department of Health Services.”  
Additionally, media and/or printed educational materials shall also adhere to the required wording as follows:  
“This project is supported by funds from the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS), Health 
Resources and Services Administration, Maternal and Child Health Bureau, under Grant number 93.994 and 
title for $ (to be filled in by County upon receipt of Agreement and awarded amount).  The information or content 
and conclusions are those of the author and should not be construed as the official position or policy of, nor 
should be any endorsements be inferred by the U.S. Government, DHHS, or HRSA.” 

 
5.2 MCH Block Grant funds shall not be used for: 
 

5.2.1 Inpatient services, other than inpatient services provided to children with special health care needs or 
to high-risk pregnant women and infants and such other inpatient services approved by the Secretary 
of the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS); 

 
5.2.2 Cash payments to intended service recipients of Health Services; 
 
5.2.3 The purchase or improvements of land; the purchase, construction or permanent improvement (other 

than minor remodeling) of any building or other facility; or the purchase of major medical equipment – 
unless the State has obtained a waiver from the Secretary of DHHS; 

 



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
SCOPE OF WORK HG161095 

 

 
 

15 

5.2.4 Satisfying any requirement for the expenditure of non-federal funds as a condition for the receipt of 
federal funds;   

 
5.2.5 Providing funds for research or training to any entity other than a public or non-profit private entity; 

and 
 
5.2.6 Payment for any item of service (other than an emergency item or service) furnished by or at the 

medical direction or prescription of an ineligible or uncertified individual or entity. 
 

5.3 Sub Contracts.  The County shall not enter into any Subcontract under this Agreement for the performance of 
this Agreement without the advance written approval of the ADHS Program Manager and the ADHS 
Procurement Office.  The County shall clearly list any proposed subcontractors and the subcontractor’s 
proposed responsibilities.  The Subcontract shall incorporate by reference the Terms and Conditions of this 
Agreement. 

 
 
6. REFERENCE DOCUMENTS  
 

6.1 Title V Maternal and Child Health Block Grant 2010 Needs Assessment and 2011 Block Grant Application 
(http://www.azdhs.gov/phs/owch/index.htm); 

 
6.2 Maternal, Infant, and Early Childhood Home Visiting Program Needs Assessment 

http://www.azdhs.gov/phs/owch/index.htm; 
 
6.3 Every Woman Arizona Preconception Materials http://www.azdhs.gov/phs/owch/publicat.htm#mchblockgrant ; 
 
6.4 Arizona Nutrition & Physical Activity State Plan (http://www.eatsmartgetactive.org/); 
 
6.5  The Arizona Injury Surveillance and Prevention Plan, 2006-2010, 

http://www.azdhs.gov/phs/owch/pdf/injury_plan_06-10.pdf);  
 
6.6 The Prevention Institute Spectrum of Prevention, http://www.preventioninstitute.org/component/jlibrary/article/id-

105/127.html; and 
 
6.7  Contra Costa Health Services Spectrum of Prevention, http://cchealth.org/topics/prevention/spectrum.php.  

 
7. STATE PROVIDED ITEMS 
 

ADHS will provide: 
 

7.1 Contractor Expenditure Report; 
 
7.2 Monthly Report Format; 
 
7.3 Annual Report Format; 
 
7.4 Title V Unduplicated Count Report Format;  
 
7.5 Logic Model Format; 
 
7.6 DVD of Preconception Health Summit, April 30, 2010 (upon execution of Agreement); 
 
7.7 Draft Arizona Preconception Health Plan (upon availability); and 
 
7.8 Draft 2011-2015 Arizona Injury Prevention Plan (upon availability). 

 
 

http://www.azdhs.gov/phs/owch/index.htm
http://www.azdhs.gov/phs/owch/index.htm
http://www.azdhs.gov/phs/owch/publicat.htm#mchblockgrant
http://www.eatsmartgetactive.org/
http://www.azdhs.gov/phs/owch/pdf/injury_plan_06-10.pdf
http://www.preventioninstitute.org/component/jlibrary/article/id-105/127.html
http://www.preventioninstitute.org/component/jlibrary/article/id-105/127.html
http://cchealth.org/topics/prevention/spectrum.php


Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
SCOPE OF WORK HG161095 

 

 
 

16 

 
8. APPROVALS  

 
8.1 The Logic Model that will be implemented during the next Agreement period shall be submitted to ADHS for 

approval.  County shall include the specific target populations and/or communities; 
 
8.2 The narrative description of how project activities fit with the Spectrum of Prevention shall be submitted to 

ADHS for approval;  
 
8.3 Strategies shall be approved; 
 
8.4 Annually submit a proposed budget for approval; 
 
8.5 The Monthly Report to include activities performed for each of the specified tasks, a year to date cumulative 

report of the services provided, as well as problems encountered and potential solutions shall be approved by 
ADHS prior to reimbursement;  

 
8.6 The monthly Contractor’s Expenditure Report (invoice) shall be approved by ADHS prior to reimbursement; 
 
8.7 The Annual Report based on findings that includes cumulative year to date data of services provided shall be 

approved by ADHS; 
 
8.8 Title V Unduplicated Numbers; and  
 
8.9 All marketing materials (brochures, posters, public service announcements, videos, etc.) which have been 

written, published or recorded by the County and paid for with Title V funds shall first be approved by ADHS.  
This approval must be made by the ADHS Public Information Officer prior to the dissemination of such materials 
or airing of such announcements. 

 
9. DELIVERABLES 
 

The Contractor shall or shall provide: 
 
9.1 The name, phone numbers, and resume of program staff if replaced, due within thirty (30) days of hire; 
 
9.2 An annual Logic Model plan and narrative description including the specific target populations and/or 

communities due forty-five (45) days after the beginning of each contract period; 
 
9.3 Strategies;  
 
9.4 Documentation of work with Tribal communities present in the County; 
 
9.5 Participate in any statewide evaluation lead by BWCH; 
 
9.6 Participate in contractor meetings; 
 
9.7 Participate in training organized by BWCH; 
 
9.8 Annually develop and submit a proposed budget; 
 
9.9 A Monthly report of program activity, including cumulative data of services rendered due thirty (30) days 

following the month of service; 
 
9.10 A monthly Contractor’s Expenditure Report due thirty (30) days following each month of service; 
 
9.11 An Annual report including evaluation data and analysis due forty-five (45) days following the contract period; 

and. 



Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
SCOPE OF WORK HG161095 

 

 
 

17 

 
9.12 Title V Unduplicated Numbers, due with the annual report. 

 
10. NOTICES, CORRESPONDENCE, AND REPORTS 
 

Notices, correspondence, reports and invoices/CERs from the contractor to ADHS shall be sent to: 
 

Arizona Department of Health Services 
Bureau of Women’s and Children’s Health 
Community Health Program Manager 
150 North 18

th
 Avenue, Suite 320 

Phoenix, AZ  85007 
Telephone:  602-364-1400   
Facsimile:  602-364-1496 
E-Mail:  kuhfusk@azdhs.gov  

 
Notices, correspondence, and reports (and payments if sent to same address) from ADHS to the contractor shall be 
sent to:  

 
David Fletcher, Director 
Gila County Health Department  
Location: 5515 South Apache Avenue, Suite 100 
Mailing: 1400 East Ash Street 
Globe, Arizona 85501 
Tel: 928-402-8801 
Fax: 928-425-0794 
Email: dfletcher@co.gila.az.us 
 

Payments from ADHS to the Contractor will be sent to: 
 
  

mailto:kuhfusk@azdhs.gov
mailto:dfletcher@co.gila.az.us


Contract Number INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
PRICE SHEET HG161084 

 

 
 

18 

 

PRICE SHEET 
 

Cost Reimbursement 
 

ACCOUNT CLASSIFICATION AMOUNT 

Personnel $30,673.36 

ERE $8,855,48 

Professional & Outside Services $1,000.00 

Travel Expense $4,955.00 

Out of state travel $0.00 

Operating Expenses $22,697.98 

Other  $0.00 

Indirect (if authorized) $6,818.18 

  

TOTAL $75,000.00 

 

 

With prior written approval from the Program manager, the Contractor is authorized to transfer up to a maximum 
of Ten Percent (10%) of the total budget amount between line items. Transfers of funds are only allowed 
between funded line items. Transfers exceeding Ten Percent (10%) or to a non-funded line item shall require a 
Contract Amendment. 

 



    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- C     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 02/01/2011  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, Housing Services Program Manager

Submitted By: Cecilia Bejarano, Health & Community Services Division

Department: Community Services Division Division: Housing Services

Fiscal Year: 2010 -2011  Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates - Begin & End: July 1, 2010 through March 31, 2011 

Grant?: Yes

Matching Requirement?: No  Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: Malissa Buzan 

Information

Request/Subject

Agreement for Energy Assistance for Renewable Neighborhoods Implementation between Gila County Community

Action/Housing Services and Arizona Public Service Co.

Background Information

On January 11, 2010, the Arizona Corporation Commission approved the Arizona Public Service Distributed Public Assistance

Program in Decision No. 71459, now known as the Energy Assistance for Renewable Neighborhoods.  APS and the Contractor

(Gila County Community Action/Housing Services) desire to have the Contractor coordinate and implement the Program.  The

Contractor will provide the following services: provide for the installation of a solar water heating system (SWHS) in a

Customer's Qualified Home.  The Customer must meet the requirements as noted: the individual resides in a Qualified Home;

the Qualified Home is served by APS; and the individual has a maximum gross household income of 200% of the Federal

poverty guideline as defined by the Arizona Department of Economic Security, as adjusted by DES on a yearly basis every

July 1st.  (Income determination guidelines will be based on the countable income definition in the Contractor's Weatherization

Assistance Program guidelines.)  A Qualified Home may be any of the following: an owner-occupied single family dwelling

unit, which may be detached or attached to other owner-occupied dwelling units, (e.g., duplex, triplex), including stationary

mobile homes that have had the wheels removed and are supported by foundation or blocking; on a case-by-case basis and with

APS' prior written consent, which consent APS may withhold in its sole and absolute discretion, a multi-family dwelling

located in a structure containing more than dwelling unit (multi-family housing) provided that each unit is individually metered

for its electricity usage; a rental property, provided that the renters provide the Contractor with the property owner's written

permission for the property to receive a SHWS, and the property owner agrees in writing to not increase the rent for 12 months

after completion of the installation.  A copy of the owner's consent and written agreement must be provided to Contractor prior

to installing the SWHS.  Verification of ownership of housing will be obtained by the Contractor.  The following documents

will be acceptable forms of verification: homeowner: deed or property tax statement; and Renter: Proof that the property owner

is the owner of the rental property (deed or property tax statement).

Evaluation

It is important for the Board of Supervisors to approve Agreement for Energy Assistance for Renewable Neighborhoods

Implementation between Gila County Community Action/Housing Services and Arizona Public Service Company which

allocates funds in the amount of $79,200 for the term.  These monies would provide for the installation of a solar water heating

system in a customer's qualified home.  Customers must meet the terms of the agreement to be eligible.

Conclusion

By the Board of Supervisors approving Agreement for Energy Assistance for Renewable Neighborhoods Implementation

between Gila County Community Action/Housing Services and Arizona Public Service Company, the Gila County Community

Action/Housing Services will be able to provide installation of solar water heating systems to eligible citizens of Gila County.

Recommendation

The Gila County Community Action/Housing Services Manager recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve this

agreement.

Suggested Motion

Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Agreement for Energy Assistance for Renewable Neighborhoods Implementation



Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Agreement for Energy Assistance for Renewable Neighborhoods Implementation

between Gila County Community Action/Housing Services and Arizona Public Service Company to allocate funds in the

amount of $79,200, which will be used to help residents who meet program qualifications for the period July 1, 2010, through

March 31, 2011.  (Malissa Buzan)

Attachments

Link: Agreement for Energy Assistance























    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- D     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 02/01/2011  

Submitted For: Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director

Submitted By: Valrie Bejarano, Public Works Division

Department: Public Works Division Division: Administration

Fiscal Year: FY 2010-2011  Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates - Begin & End: Jan to March 2011 

Grant?: No

Matching Requirement?: No  Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: Steve Stratton 

Information

Request/Subject

Request to award Bid No. 040108-1 for the Gila County Courthouse ADA/Access Improvement Project.

Background Information

Since May 2007 the Gila County Elections, Engineering Services and Facilities Departments have

worked together to make ADA access to the Courthouse easier and safer for the public and employees.

Developments in security and drainage issues have modified the original design with these

improvements. This is the first time Public Works has sent out bids for this project.

Evaluation

Award of this bid would allow for improvement in security, drainage and ADA access design for the

Globe Courthouse. The new ADA ramp at the front entrance and Board of Supervisors entrance,

sidewalks and new stairway will make the entrance more appealing and accessible. To eliminate water

leaking into the basement and first floor offices all planters against the building will be removed and

replaced with sidewalks. 

Conclusion

With the present economy the cost for construction is still reasonable and Gila County will optimize

expenditures.

Recommendation

After extensive review of all submitted proposals the Public Works Director recommends the Board of

Supervisors approve the award of Request for Bids No 040108-1 for the the Gila County Courthouse

ADA/Access Improvement Project to Valwest Construction in the amount of $166,950.  

Contract period: For construction in the contract documents, the project shall be completed within Sixty

(60) Calendar Days of the Notice To Proceed.

Suggested Motion

Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for Request for Sealed Bids No. 040108-1

for the Globe Gila County Courthouse ADA/Access Improvement; award to the lowest, responsible and

qualified bidder; and authorize the Chairman's signature on the Award Contract for the winning bidder. 

(Steve Stratton)

Attachments



Link: Contract 040108-1

Link: Bid Tab Form





























































































































































































































GILA COUNTY                       BID NO.:       040108-1            DATE:    12-29-10               
BID TAB FORM    

                             BID TITLE:  Gila County Courthouse ADA/Access Improvement 

R
an

k
in

g 

 
 

Contractor  /  Vendor  /  Firm 

 
 

Bid Amount 

 
 

Comments 

 
1 

 

Valwest Construction 

 

 

$ 166,950.00 

 

 
2 

 

Sky Engineering 

 

 

$ 192,261.00 

 

 
3 

 

LaCasa Bella Building 

 

 

$ 250,000.00 

 

 
4 

 

Oddonetto Construction 

 

 

$ 260,496.00 

 

 
5 

 

 

 

  

 
6 

 

 

 

  

 
7 

 

 

 

  

 
8 

 

 

 

  

 
9 

 

 

 

  

 
10 

 

 

 

  

 



    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- E     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 02/01/2011  

Submitted For: Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director

Submitted By: Valrie Bejarano, Public Works Division

Department: Public Works Division Division: Administration

Fiscal Year: FY 2010-2011  Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates - Begin & End: Jan to March 2011 

Grant?: No

Matching Requirement?: No  Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: Steve Stratton 

Information

Request/Subject

Request to award Bid No. 092201-1 for the Central Heights Auditorium Remodel Project.

Background Information

Award of this bid would relocate the Elections Office which would allow the County to comply with

Federal and State laws concerning viewing and streaming during elections, and to facilitate storage of

election material and training needs of the department.  It would also provide for a more logical flow of

work area and a much more secure ballot area.  The award would also allow for a monetary savings due

to the relocation of the Public Fiduciary's Office of which the County is currently leasing office space.

Evaluation

The new office space for Elections and the Public Fiduciary will save the County money and will meet

election laws.

Conclusion

The cost of construction is very reasonable right now and Public Works believes that the remodeled

space is cost beneficial. The new space will allow adequate work space for employees and a comfortable

waiting room for the Public Fiduciary clients. The entrances for each department will be separate.

Recommendation

After extensive review of all submitted proposals the Public Works Director recommends the Board of

Supervisors approve the award of Request for Bids No. 092210-1 for the Central Heights Auditorium

Remodel Project to Blackwell Building, LLC, in the amount of $324,900.  Contract Period:  For

construction in the contract documents, the project shall be completed within Seventy (70) calendar days

of the Notice to Proceed.

Suggested Motion

Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for Request for Sealed Bids No. 092210-1

for the Central Heights Auditorium Remodel Project; award to the lowest, responsible and qualified

bidder; and authorize the Chairman's signature on the Award Contract for the winning bidder.  (Steve

Stratton)

Attachments

Link: Bid Tab Form



Link: Bid Packet # 092210-1

Link: Addendum #1 Date Changes

Link: Addendum #2 Pgs 1-84

Link: Addendum #2 85-162

Link: Addendum #2 163-251

Link: Addendum #3



GILA COUNTY                       BID NO.:       092210-1            DATE:    1-5-11                   
BID TAB FORM    

                             BID TITLE:     Central Heights Auditorium Remodel  

R
an

k
in

g 

 
 

Contractor  /  Vendor  /  Firm 

 
 

Bid Amount 

 
 

Comments 

 
1 

 

Blackwell Building 

 

 

$ 324,900.00 

 

 
2 

 

Hunter & Hunter Construction 

 

 

$ 332,360.00 

 

 
3 

 

Spire Engineering 

 

 

$ 343,164.00 

 

 
4 

 

Division Nine Contracting 

 

 

$ 352,782.00 

 

 
5 

 

Sky Engineering 

 

 

$ 373,431.00 

 

 
6 

 

Norquay Construction 

 

 

$ 375,000.00 

 

 
7 

 

International Contracting 

 

 

$ 387,363.00 

 

 
8 

 

Oddonetto Construction 

 

 

$ 467,557.00 

 

 
9 

 

 

 

  

 
10 

 

 

 

  

 























































































1 

 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
BID NO.:  092210-1 CENTRAL HEIGHTS AUDITORIUM REMODEL, GLOBE, AZ 

 

Note:   All Addendums must accompany submitted proposal.  The following amendments are hereby 
incorporated into the bid documents for the above stated project: 

 

ADDENDUM NO. 1 
 

The dates in the Bid Document have been amended as follows: 
 
Page 1 
 

SUBMITTAL BID DUE:       11:00, A.M. AZ Time, Wednesday, December 29, 2010 
 
Mandatory Walk Through:    2:00 P.M AZ Time, Monday, December 13, 2010 

 
 
Page 4 
 

NOTE:  There will be a mandatory walk through held Monday, December 13, 2010 at 2:00 
PM, 5515 S. Apache Ave., Globe, AZ. 

 
 
Page 11 
 

The Proposal shall be submitted in a sealed envelope, a minimum of Three (3) copies with original 
signatures shall be provided by the Contractor.  The words “REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL” with Proposal 
Title “CENTRAL HEIGHTS AUDITORIUM REMODEL”, Contract Number, “092210-1”, Date “DECEMBER 29, 
2010”, and Time “11:00 AM” of Proposal opening shall be written on the envelope.  The Contractor shall 
assume full responsibility for timely delivery at the location designated in the Notice. 

 

Page 14 
 

Registered/Licensed (paragraph 3) 
 
Sentence 1)  The Bidder shall submit 2 copies of a written request for substitution to the 
Public Works office at least ten (10) calendar days prior to the original bid opening date. 
 
Sentence 2)  The submittal envelope MUST be clearly marked with the invitation for bid 
number and “Request for Approved Alternate” and must be time and date stamped by the 
Public Works Division by 1:00 pm, December 20, 2010. 
 

Page 39 
 
Last sentence on page:  All proposals shall be filed with the Gila County Public Works 
Division in the Guerrero Building at 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, on or before Wednesday, 
December 29, 2010, 11:00 AM. 



































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- F     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 02/01/2011  

Submitted For: Steve Sanders, Public Works Deputy Director

Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Presenter's Name: Steve Sanders 

Information

Request/Subject

Adoption of  "Policy and Procedure for the Abandonment of County Highways, Local Streets, Avenues, Alleys and

for the Extinguishment of Easements within Gila County", which replaces the "Guidelines for Vacation of Public

Roadways" policy.

Background Information

This agenda item was presented to the Board of Supervisors on January 18, 2011.  During the discussion of this

item, it was discovered that the attachment entitled "New Proposed Roadway Vacation Guidelines" was actually a

copy of the Summary of Changes to Roadway Vacation Guidelines, which was also included as a separate

attachment.  The Board of Supervisors voted unanimously to continue any action of this agenda item

until its February 1, 2011, meeting so that the public may have an opportunity to view the New Proposed Roadway

Vacation Guidelines. All of the other information has been unchanged from the information presented at the

January 18th meeting.

On July 27, 1999, the Gila County Board of Supervisors adopted "Guidelines for Vacation of Public Roadways."

An updated policy is being presented to the Board of Supervisors for its adoption, which is entitled "Policy and

Procedure for the Abandonment of County Highways, Local Streets, Avenues, Alleys and for the Extinguishment

of Easements within Gila County". This more detailed and informative policy will replace the "Guidelines for

Vacation of Public Roadways" policy.

The guidelines have not been updated since 1999. The existing guidelines did not address county highways nor

did they address extinguishments of easements. Gila County has been getting more and more abandonment

requests so we felt it was time to develop new guidelines and provide detailed information to the public and staff

on the abandonment process. We began by polling the fourteen other counties in the state to see what guidelines

they had in place. We received replies from the following counties. Apache, Cochise, Greenlee, Maricopa,

Mohave, Pima, and Yavapai. The new policy follows the guidelines governed by Arizona Revised

Statutes §28-7201 through §28-7215 and incorporates some of the guidelines used by other counties.

Application and processing fees from other counties ranged from $0 to $5000 for abandonments. Gila County's

current guidelines have a $250 fee. If the new guidelines are adopted the fee would be $500.  The current

guidelines do not set a value on the abandonment other than to state "the recipient of the deed must pay

consideration to Gila County in an amount deemed by the Board of Supervisors to be commensurate with the value

of the vacated roadway." The new guidelines state that consideration based upon the current assessed value land in

the area shall be deemed commensurate with the value of the road. If the applicant does not agree with the assessed

value in the area they may, at their own cost, have an appraisal done on the roadway being considered for

abandonment. There is also a statute in place that gives the Board the right to vacate the roadway without receiving

compensation if the Board determines the roadway has no public use or market value.

Evaluation

The purpose of the update is to establish some general procedures and guidelines for the abandonment of roads and



The purpose of the update is to establish some general procedures and guidelines for the abandonment of roads and

easements under the jurisidiction of the Board of Supervisors. 

This policy has more details and provides more information to the public.  It also provides staff with a

clearer direction on the process needed to abandon roads and extinguish easements.

While the application fee would increase from $250 to $500, Public Works staff believes the fee is justified in the

amount of time and hours needed to process the application. The time frame for abandonments can take up to six

months to complete.

Conclusion

In closing we feel it is time to update the current guidelines and to provide the public and staff with clear direction

on the abandonment process. This new policy will assist everyone involved in processing abandonments.

Recommendation

It is the recommendation of the Public Works Division to approve and adopt the Policy and Procedure for the

Abandonment of County Highways, Local Streets, Avenues, Alleys and for the Extinguishment of Easements

within Gila County.

Suggested Motion

Information/Discussion/Action to adopt "Policy and Procedure for the Abandonment of County Highways, Local

Streets, Avenues, Alleys and for the Extinguishment of Easements within Gila County", which replaces

"Guidelines for Vacation of Public Roadways" policy.  (Steve Sanders)

Attachments

Link: Current Guidelines

Link: New Proposed Roadway Vacation Guidelines 

Link: Summary of Changes to Roadway Vacation Guidelines











Page 1 of 5 
 
 

 

 

GILA COUNTY POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

FOR THE ABANDONMENT OF COUNTY 

HIGHWAYS, LOCAL STREETS, AVENUES, 

ALLEYS AND FOR THE EXTINGUISHMENT 

OF EASEMENTS WITHIN GILA COUNTY 

 

Adopted by the Board of Supervisors on February 1, 2011 

 



Page 2 of 5 
 
 

I. PURPOSE 

The purpose of this policy is to establish general procedures and guidelines for the abandonment 
of public rights-of-way, public roadway easements, or any other public easement under the 
jurisdiction of Gila County and governed by Arizona Revised Statutes § 28-7201 through A.R.S. 
§ 28-7215. This policy supersedes all existing policies including the one adopted by the Gila 
County Board of Supervisors dated July 27th, 1999. 
 
II. GENERAL POLICY STATEMENTS 

 
A. If the Board of Supervisors determines that a public roadway within the County’s 

jurisdiction is no longer needed for public use the Board may dispose of the roadway. 
B. The policies and procedures set forth herein serve as a guideline for staff and the Board in 

their review of abandonment requests. These guidelines shall not preclude the Board 
from taking any action deemed appropriate and in the best interest of the public. 

C. County Highways are public roads that have been formally designated as County 
Highways by the Board of Supervisors. 

D. Public Roads are roads that have been designated for use by the public in a recorded 
document. Some of these roads may only exist on paper and have never been built. 

E. Maintained Roads are public roads that the County has accepted for maintenance into the 
Gila County Maintained Roadway System. 

F. Easements are the right to use the land of another for a specific purpose. 
G. Easements may be extinguished by a resolution from the Board of Supervisors. 
H. A roadway or portion of a roadway may be exchanged with an abutting owner for all or 

part of a new public roadway. 
I. The Board of Supervisors may authorize the sale of the land within the roadway and 

convey the roadway by quitclaim deed. 
 

III. GENERAL PROCEDURES FOR ABANDONMENT 
 

A. A petition signed by ten (10) or more resident taxpayers of Gila County requesting the 
abandonment of a County Highway, public road, maintained road, or easement as 
described above, including a description of the beginning, end, general course and 
direction, approximate condition of the roadway or easement to be abandoned. The 
petition should also cite the record reference of any known instruments which established 
the road or easement. A current Gila County Assessor’s Tax Parcel Map or other map 
acceptable to the County showing Section, Township, and Range of the roadway or 
easement shall accompany the petition. The County may require a survey, legal 
description, and Record of Survey Map by a Registered Land Surveyor licensed in the 
State of Arizona. The petition and supporting documentation will be submitted to the 
Public Works Department. 

B. County Staff may initiate abandonment proceedings with approval from the Board. 
 
 



Page 3 of 5 
 
 

C. County Staff will conduct a site visit and determine the County’s authority to pursue the 
request, as well as the current and future impact on issues such as legal access, traffic 
circulation, access to public lands, access by emergency service providers, encroachment 
issues. 

D. Public Works will present petition along with a recommendation to the Board for their 
consideration. If the Board does not accept the petition the roadway is deemed necessary 
for public use and no further action will be taken. If the Board accepts the petition and 
declares the roadway is no longer needed for public use then staff will move forward with 
abandonment proceedings. 

E. Notification letters will be sent by County staff to affected property owners, utility 
companies, and emergency service providers giving them time to support or oppose the 
abandonment, exchange, or extinguishment. If there is opposition to the Abandonment 
County Staff will notify the applicant and it shall be the responsibility of the applicant to 
resolve the issue. 

F. If the County decides to sell the roadway the guidelines set forth in A.R.S. § 28-7204 
shall be followed. 

G. If the County exchanges the roadway for a new roadway the guidelines set forth in A.R.S. 
§ 28-7203 shall be followed. 

H. If the Board of Supervisors determines that the public roadway has no public use or 
market value, the Board may vacate the roadway without compensation as set forth in 
A.R.S. §28-7215 

I. If the County is extinguishing an easement the guidelines set forth in A.R.S. § 28-7214 
shall be followed. 

 
IV. PROCESSING FEES AND ACTIONS 
 

A. A Non-Refundable fee of $500.00 shall accompany all petitions and applications for 
abandonment. 

B. Should the County choose to sell or vacate the roadway the County shall receive 
consideration commensurate with value of the abandoned roadway. Consideration based 
upon current assessed value of the land in the area shall be deemed commensurate with 
the value of the road. The County may also accept the certified appraisal of an Appraiser 
licensed in the State of Arizona as proof of consideration deemed commensurate with the 
value of the roadway. Any and all costs associated with an appraisal shall be at the 
expense of the applicant. 

C. This is a lengthy process and could take up to one hundred eighty (180) days to complete 
from the acceptance of the petition. 

D. Any action by the Board of Supervisors to sell, exchange, vacate, or extinguish under this 
policy shall be adopted by resolution of the Board. 

 
 
 



Page 4 of 5 
 
 

 
V. APPLICATION AND PETITION 

 
Gila County Engineering Department 

 
Application for 

 
____Right-of-Way Abandonment ____Extinguishment of Easement 

 
Name: ______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Mailing Address: _____________________________________________________________________ 
 
City: ______________________________ State: _____________________ Zip: __________________ 
 
Phone: (_____) _______________________ 
 
Assessor’s Parcel Number ______________________________________________________________ 
 
Describe the reason for the request: ______________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
LOCATION INFORMATION: 
 
Section: _______________ Township: ____________________Range: _________________________ 
 
Road Name: _________________________________________________________________________ 
 
List any known utilities in the requested abandonment area: _________________________________ 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________________ 
Signature of Applicant*        Date 
 
*Applicant is required to be the current owner (or a legally authorized representative of the owner, proof of which 
must be submitted with this form) of a property adjacent to the requested roadway or easement. 
 
FOR DEPARTMENTAL USE ONLY 
Application Fee $500.00 
 
 
 

Amount Received: Date: Receipt No.: Received by: 



Page 5 of 5 
 
 

PETITION TO VACATE A ROADWAY OR EXTINGUISHMENT AN EASEMENT 
 
We the undersigned, all being resident taxpayers in Gila County, Arizona, do hereby petition the 
Honorable Gila County Board of Supervisors for the vacation or extinguishment of the above 
described property: 
 
Petition must have a minimum of ten (10) signatures that support the application. While not a 
requirement it is suggested residents surrounding the proposed vacation or extinguishment be 
given the opportunity to sign the petition. 
 
 
NAME ADDRESS     DATE 
 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 



CHANGES IN THE GUIDELINES OF ROADWAY VACATIONS 

 
The application fee for the current guidelines is $250.00. The application fees for the new 
proposed guidelines are $500.00. 

The current guidelines require a record of survey map and legal description to be submitted with 
the application and the property being petitioned to be surveyed and stakes set. After reviewing 
submittals staff will conduct a field visit and determine feasibility of the request. New proposed 
guidelines would require some type of map such as Assessor’s tax map to be submitted with the 
petition. Staff would then conduct a field visit to determine the feasibility of the request. If the 
request was feasible staff would move the request forward. A record of survey map and legal 
would be required prior to abandonment. 

Current guidelines only notify and solicit comments from utility companies serving the area of 
the abandonment. If objections are received staff attempts to resolve the objections. New 
guidelines will notify and solicit comments from utility companies and property owners in the 
area along with emergency responders. If there are objections it will be the responsibility of the 
petitioner to resolve objections before the county will move the abandonment forward. 

Existing guidelines do not provide or set a minimum bid amount for the vacated property. The 
new proposed guidelines use the Assessor’s assessed valuation of property in the area as a 
minimum amount and give the petitioner the option of providing an appraisal by a licensed 
appraiser if they disagree with the assessed value. 

Current guidelines do not have definitions of various types of roads that may be vacated. 
Proposed new guidelines provide definitions. 

Current guidelines focus on the technical aspect of the process and do not provide a lot of 
information or direction to the public on the process. The new proposed guidelines provide 
information, guidance, and direction to staff and the public. 

Current guidelines do not have a standardized application form to use with them other than the 
petition. New Proposed guidelines have an application form and petition in the guidelines. 

 

 

 



    Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- A     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 02/01/2011  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, Housing Services Program Manager

Submitted By: Cecilia Bejarano, Health & Community Services Division

Department: Community Services Division Division: Housing Services

Fiscal Year: 2010-2011  Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates - Begin & End: July 1, 2010 through June 30, 2011 

Grant?: Yes

Matching Requirement?: No  Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information

Request/Subject

Amendment No. 2 to the 2010-2011 Independent Contractor Agreement for the 2010-2011 Utility Assistance Programs

between the Arizona Community Action Association and Gila County Community Action Program.

Background Information

This program has been in place for many years and helps households that meet the eligibility criteria which are; households

must be facing financial hardship, have a household income less than or equal to 200% of the Federal Poverty Guidelines,

households may receive assistance one-time per 12-month period and maximum amount of bill assistance per household is

$600 annually.  Gila County residents benefit from this program by receiving help to obtain propane assistance.

Evaluation

It is important for the Gila County Board of Supervisors to approve this amendment No. 2 to the 2010-2011 Independent

Contractor Agreement for the 2010-2011 Utility Assistance Programs to existing contract No. ACAA07012010. Amendment

#2 allocates additional funds from SemStream Arizona Propane  program in the amount of $8,355 to provide propane

assistance to eligible families residing in Gila County.  The total allocation will be used for direct program services.

Conclusion

By the Board of Supervisors approving Amendment No. 2  of Contract No. ACAA07012010, the Gila County Community

Action Program will be able to continue providing services to income eligible citizens of Gila County.

Recommendation

The Gila County Community Action Program Manager recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve  this contract

amendment.

Suggested Motion

Approval of Amendment No. 2 to the 2010-2011 Independent Contractor Agreement (Contract No. ACAA07012010) for

2010-2011 Utility Assistance Programs between the Arizona Community Action Association and the Gila County Community

Action Program to allocate an additional $8,355 of funding, which will be used to help residents who meet program

qualifications for the period August 17, 2010, through June 30, 2011.

Attachments

Link: Amendment No. 2 to ACAA Contract

Link: ACAA07012010



















































































































    Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- B     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 02/01/2011  

Submitted For: Paula Horn, Health Programs Coordinator

Submitted By: Paula Horn, Health & Community Services Division

Department: Community Services Division Division: Health Department

Fiscal Year: 2011-2012  Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates - Begin & End: April 1, 2011 through March 31, 2012 

Grant?: Yes

Matching Requirement?: No  Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information

Request/Subject

Notice of Request for Proposal No. ADHS11-00000347 with Arizona Department of Health Services.

Background Information

Gila County has been providing HIV care and support services to Gila County, Apache and Navajo Counties for

over five years. The objective of the program is to provide care and support services as a part of the continuum of

care in which addressing the needs of individuals with HIV disease and their families are coordinated,

comprehensive, culturally appropriate, and accessible.

Evaluation

This funding will allow Gila County to continue to provide HIV care and support services in Gila, Apache and

Navajo Counties.  The mission of the Gila County HIV/AIDS Case Management Program is to increase knowledge

and awareness of HIV/AIDS, and improve the quality of life for those who are HIV positive and their affected

caregivers. The program provides them with resources within their communities and assists with barriers that

would prevent them from receiving medical care and maintaining a safe environment in which to live.

Conclusion

Without this funding Gila County would be unable to provide HIV care and support services to Gila, Apache and

Navajo Counties.

Recommendation

The Deputy Director of Prevention Services recommends approval to submit the Notice of Request for Proposal

No. ADHS11-00000347 and approval of the Offer and Acceptance with the Arizona Department of Health

Services in the amount of $88,829.19 to provide HIV care and support services for the period of April 1, 2011,

through March 31, 2012.

Suggested Motion

Approval of the submission of the Notice of Request for Proposal No. ADHS11-00000347 and approval of the

Offer and Acceptance with the Arizona Department of Health Services in the amount of $88,829.19 to provide

HIV care and support services for the period of April 1, 2011, through March 31, 2012.

Attachments

Link: Executive Summary

Link: Request for proposal

Link: Attachment 1

Link: Attachment 2

Link: Attachment 3



Link: Attachment 4

Link: Attachment 5

Link: Attachment 6

Link: Attachment 7

Link: Attachment 8

Link: Attaachment 9

Link: Attachment 10

Link: Attachment 11

Link: Cultural Compentency plan

Link: Letters of support

Link: Offeror and amendments 1 and amendment 2



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

 

The Mission of the Gila County HIV/AIDS Case Management Program is to increase knowledge 

and awareness of HIV/AIDS, and improve the quality of life for those who are HIV positive and 

their affected caregivers. The program provides them with resources within their communities 

and assist with barriers that would prevent them from receiving medical care and maintaining a 

safe environment in which to live. 

 

The Gila County HIV/AIDS Case Management program has provided services to our targeted 

population since 1998 with the same level of excellence and equality. The service area of our 

three counties is 25,875 square miles. The current Case Manager has been providing service to 

this area for almost 4 years now and has built a rapport and trust with clients and providers 

that are important to the success of the program. Confidentiality is one of the top priorities for 

people living with HIV/AIDS in a small rural community and continuity of care is also important 

for adherence to treatment. 

 

The Case Management services provided through our Program include but are not limited to 

intake, needs assessment, education, risk reduction, counseling, and referral services.   Staff 

also locates and coordinates with available resources in the effort to meet specific needs of our 

clientele.  We make every effort to tailor the services to the clients need and ensure our 

referrals are appropriate and confidentiality is maintained. In our rural service area, HIV 

medical care often requires the burden of distant travel, the access to care is at a minimum of 

50 miles or greater in most cases. As many of our clients do not have transportation it is 

essential for the Case Manager to travel to them for much of the needed documentation when 

time is a factor. 

 

The HIV/AIDS Program staff has established strong interagency linkages to the County Health 

Departments and Indian Health Service Units in our service area to ensure that newly 

diagnosed clients and clients who move into our area are aware of our services and they are 

afforded the opportunity to obtain those services. Area Dentists and Physicians are also 

working with our program to coordinate care in a comfortable environment. This program 

assists in the continuum of care that is necessary for individuals who are infected with HIV/AIDS 

in maintaining medical and medication adherence, and a good quality of life. 

 

Our clients provide feedback that is vital to the adaptation of our program; we have been able 

to increase our resource list of services due to this collaboration.  The clients interact with each 

other as a result of Support Groups that have been developed by the current Case Manager 



enabling them to have a feeling of belonging and reduce the loneliness factor that can be felt in 

these small rural communities. 

 

 

The entire Division of Health and Emergency Services, including the HIV/AIDS Department 

provides services to a diverse and targeted population with the same level of commitment to 

excellence and equality.  Cultural diversity is taken into consideration when services are 

offered. Bilingual staff is available within the department to assist the non-English and 

monolingual population and a sign language interpreter and a Spanish language translator is 

available if the need arises. For our Native American clients we have a liaison from the Apache 

and Navajo tribes that will assist us with translation.  Most program brochures are available in 

English and Spanish.  The HIV/AIDS program provides “family focused” services because the 

family is an essential element in the clients treatment program.  The HIV/AIDS program does 

not discriminate on any basis.  Program staff provides services to our targeted population with 

attention and consideration of cultural issues with various groups within our services area.   In 

addition, staff has received training regarding multi-cultural awareness and will continue to 

seek future trainings to assure cultural sensitivity is ongoing. 

 

This Proposal is submitted in the effort to afford our program the opportunity to continue to 

provide much needed Case Management Services and to provide funding for the support 

services needed to maintain a healthy lifestyle. Services will be provided to all eligible 

individuals who are living with HIV/AIDS and their affected caregivers in our service area, which 

is Gila, Apache, and Navajo counties. There are also services provided to the Navajo and Apache 

Reservations within this area. 

 

The program staff is well trained and has extensive experience and expertise.   The Gila County 

HIV/AIDS Case Management Program team is devoted to identifying the immediate and unmet 

needs of our clientele and in providing quality services. 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

  





























































































































































































ATTACHMENT 1 

PROGRAM IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 

RFP NO. ADHS11-00000347    

 

 
 

PROGRAM IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 
 
 
 

Contractor Name:  __Gila County____________________________________ 
 
 

HRSA, HIV/AIDS Bureau Goal:  to ensure the provision of Core Medical and Support Services as specified by HRSA. Funding issued under 
the Ryan White HIV/AIDS Treatment Extension Act of 2009 is to fill gaps in care not covered by other resources. 
 
  
Program Implementation Plan 
 
Using this format, submit a plan for each separate service category (Service Categories in Exhibit 11) to be delivered during the full funding 
period/project cycle (April 1, 2011 through March 31, 2012).  The goals listed should directly relate to the services to be delivered, and the 
accompanying detailed narrative for each service proposed. Goals should cover such things as planning, implementation, staffing, 
budgeting, start-up and wrap-up strategies, monitoring, or any special considerations in accordance with the information provided in the 
Instructions and Scope of Work of this Proposal.   
 
This plan will be updated each year of the funding cycle. 
 
See Exhibit 2 for more information. 
 
 
 
 
 



ATTACHMENT 1 

PROGRAM IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 

RFP NO. ADHS11-00000347    

 
 
 

  

Case Management (Non-Medical) 
  

Goal #1:  Persons newly diagnosed with HIV/AIDS in Gila, Apache and Navajo Counties will be offered non-medical case 
management services 

Objectives 

 

Activities 

 

Number of 

Clients Served 

Number of Client 

Service Transactions 

1.1: Newly Diagnosed HIV Clients in Gila, 
Apache and Navajo Counties will be 
contacted within 7 days. 
 
1.2:  Newly Diagnosed HIV Clients in Gila, 
Apache and Navajo Counties will be 
evaluated for eligibility and made aware of 
the services available to them. 
 
 
 

1.1a) Maintain contacts with 

ADHS, hospitals and local 

providers. 

1.1b) Contact client to schedule a 

face-to-face appointment 

1.1c)  Hold meeting with 

individual in an environment that 

provides confidentiality, privacy 

and a sense of security for that 

client. 

1.2a) Gather documentation for 

eligibility (identity, income 

residence, HIV status) 

1.2b) Obtain AHCCCS eligibility 

letter. 

1.2c) Discuss all services the 

client is eligible to receive 

 

 

1.1:  3 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1.2:  3  

1.1:  3  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1.2:  3 



ATTACHMENT 1 

PROGRAM IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 

RFP NO. ADHS11-00000347    

 

Goal #2:   Persons living with HIV/AIDS in Gila, Apache and Navajo Counties will receive assistance in obtaining medical, 
social, community, legal, financial, and other needed services. 

Objectives Activities 
Number of 

Clients Served 

Number of Client 

Service Transactions 

2-1: Each client will have a current 
comprehensive, individualized care plan. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2-2: Clients will be provided with a 
comprehensive list of appropriate 
community resources 
 
 

2.1a) Client goals and needs will be 

determined. 

2b) Communication will be 

maintained via telephone, fax, e-

mail, text, and face-to-face contract 

to identify any new/additional 

concerns. 

2.1c)  Re-evaluated care plan at a 

minimum of every 6 months.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

2.2.a) Collaborate with community 

partners to establish a list of current 

community and county resources. 

2.2.b)  Update resources as needed 

2.2.c)  Provide appropriate resources 

to client. 

 

 

 

2.1:  50 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2.2:  50 

 

 

 

 

2.1:  3,500  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2.2:  150 

 

 

 

 



ATTACHMENT 1 

PROGRAM IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 

RFP NO. ADHS11-00000347    

 

 

 

Emergency Financial Assistance 

 

  

Goal #1:  Eligible HIV/AIDS clients in Gila, Apache, and Navajo County will be provided with financial assistance through Ryan 
White as a payer of last resort on a short term basis. 

Objectives 

 

Activities 

 

Number of 

Clients Served 

Number of Client 

Service Transactions 

 
 
1.1:  Determine eligibility for clients 
requesting Emergency Financial 
Assistance 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.2:  Seek outside services available to 
provide client needs 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1.1a)  Gather documentation for 

verification that income is below 

300% FPL. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1.2a) Contact other resources to 

determine if other financial 

services are available. 

1.2.b) Verify that Ryan White will 

be payer of last resort 

 

 

 

1.1:  50 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1.2:     50 

 

 

 

 

1.1: 80 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

         1.2:    80 

 

 



ATTACHMENT 1 

PROGRAM IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 

RFP NO. ADHS11-00000347    

 

Goal #2:   Emergency Financial Assistance will be provided on a temporary basis only. 

Objectives Activities 
Number of 

Clients Served 

Number of Client 

Service Transactions 

 
 
 
2-1: Clients needing emergency 
assistance will be provided with a list of 
current local resources for financial 
assistance 
 
 
 
 
2-2: Clients will obtain financial assistance 
from other sources. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 

2.1a)  A list of current resources 

will be maintained by the Case 

Manager 

2.1b)  Provide client with a list of 

resources to receive further 

assistance. 

 

 

 

 

2.2a) Explain process required 

for applying to additional services 

 

2.2b)  Assist client in eliminating 

any barriers to receiving financial 

assistance 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2.1:  50 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2.2:    50 

 

 

 

 

 

2.1:  80 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2.2:    80 

 

 

 



ATTACHMENT 1 

PROGRAM IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 

RFP NO. ADHS11-00000347    

 

 

Psychosocial Support Services 

 

  

Goal #1:  Clients and their family members will be given the opportunity to receive support and counseling activities in Apache 
and Navajo Counties. 

Objectives 

 

Activities 

 

Number of 

Clients Served 

Number of Client 

Service Transactions 

1.1:  Facilitated Support Group Sessions 
will be scheduled on a monthly basis 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.2:  Clients requiring more individualized 
counseling will be provided with 
resources. 

1.1a)  Group members determine 

date and location of meeting. 

1.1b)  Verify Psychiatric Mental 

Health Nurse Practitioner is 

available. 

1.1c)  A group e-mail reminder is 

sent to clients 

1.1d)  Case Manager attends group 

session. 

1.1e)  Concerns are discussed and 

HIV education is provided. 

 

1.2a)  A list of current resources will 

be maintained by the Case Manager 

1.2b)  Provide client with a list of 

resources to receive further 

assistance. 

 

 

1.1:  8 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1.2:  30 

1.1:  96 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1.2:  4 



ATTACHMENT 1 

PROGRAM IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 

RFP NO. ADHS11-00000347    

 

Goal #2:   Clients and their family members will be given the opportunity to receive support and counseling activities in Gila 
County 

Objectives Activities 
Number of 

Clients Served 

Number of Client 

Service Transactions 

2.1: Establish a support group for clients 
and their families. 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.2:  Clients requiring more individualized 
counseling will be provided with 
resources. 

 

 

 

 

2.1a)  Verify interest in support group 

with client 

2.1b)  Locate a counselor to facilitate 

group. 

2.1c)  Arrange date, time and 

meeting place. 

2.1d)  Arrange transportation for 

group member 

2.1e)  Attend group 

2.1f)  Schedule group meetings 

based on interest 

 

2.2a)  A list of current resources will 

be maintained by the Case Manager 

2.2b)  Provide client with a list of 

resources to receive further 

assistance. 

 

 

 

2.1:  20 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2.2:  20 

 

 

2.1:  240 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2.2:  4 

 



ATTACHMENT 1 

PROGRAM IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 

RFP NO. ADHS11-00000347    

 

 

 

Treatment Adherence Counseling 

 

  

Goal #1: Clients will receive additional support to encourage their compliance with the medical care plan developed by the 
clients’ physician. 

 

Objectives 

 

Activities 

 

Number of 

Clients Served 

Number of Client 

Service Transactions 

1.1: The importance of medical 
compliance is reinforced to the client 
 
 
 
 
1.2: The client will understand the reasons 
behind their medical plan 
 
 
 
 
 
1.3:  Clients will receive support from 
peers.  
 
 
 
 
  

1.1a) Communication is maintained 

between the physician and the case 

manager 

1.1b)  Case manager reinforces the 

importance of compliance with the 

physicians instructions 

1.2a) Communication is maintained 

between the physician and the case 

manager. 

1.2b) The case manager will 

encourage the client to ask questions 

during their medical visits 

1.3a) General issues and concerns 

of group participants will be 

addressed during Support Group 

Meetings 

 

 

1.1:  50 

 

 

1.2:  50 

 

 

 

 

 

1.3:  50 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1.1:  500 

 

 

 

1.2:  500 

 

 

 

 

 

1.3: 160 

 

 

 

 

  



ATTACHMENT 1 

PROGRAM IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 

RFP NO. ADHS11-00000347    

 

Goal #2:  Individuals affected by HIV/AIDS will be provided with support to encourage their assistance in sustaining the medical 
care plan of the client.  

Objectives Activities 
Number of 

Clients Served 

Number of Client 

Service Transactions 

2-1: Family members will receive support 
from case manager. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2-2: Understand the medical care plan 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2-3: Family members are encouraged to 
attend group counseling sessions. 
  

2.1a) Case manager will obtain 

permission from client to 

communicate with affected care 

givers.  

2.1 b)Case manager will maintain 

open communication with affected 

family members  

2.1c) Case manager will encourage 

family member to ask questions. 

 

2.2a) Case manager will provide 

literature on a specific topic of 

interest or concern if available.  

2.2b) Case manager will provide 

contact information for a physician to 

answer any questions. 

 

 

2.3a)  Case manager will encourage 

family members to attend group 

support sessions with clients. 

2.3b)General issues and concerns of 

group participants will be addressed 

during Support Group Meetings 

2.1:    20 

 

 

 

 

 

2.2:    20 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2.3:   10 

 

 

 

 

 

2.1: 150 

 

 

 

 

 

2.2:  30 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2.3:  120 

 

 

 



ATTACHMENT 1 

PROGRAM IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 

RFP NO. ADHS11-00000347    

 

 

Food Bank/ Home-Delivered Meals 

 

  

Goal #1:  Clients will be provided with actual food or meals as needed. 

 

Objectives 

 

Activities 

 

Number of 

Clients Served 

Number of Client 

Service Transactions 

1.1:  Clients will be aware of all resources 
available within their community to provide 
food. 
 
1.2:  Food cards/boxes will be provided to 
clients when needed 

1.1a) A resource list will be provided 

to clients needing food assistance 

1.1b) Clients will be notified of 

unscheduled food bank services. 

 

1.2a) The case manager will 

purchase food cards/boxes for 

clients as needed. 

1.1:  50 

 

 

 

1.2:  50 

1.1:  50 

 

 

 

1.2:  30 

Goal #2:   Clients will be provided with essential household supplies as needed. 

Objectives Activities 
Number of 

Clients Served 

Number of Client 

Service Transactions 

2-1: Clients will be aware of all resources 
available within their community to provide 
household supplies 
 
2-2: Store gift cards will be provided to 
clients needing household supplies and 
hygiene items. 
 
  

2.1a) A resource list will be provided 

to clients needing essential 

household supplies. 

2.2a) Store gift cards will be 

purchased as needed. 

2.2b) Case manager will assist with 

shopping when needed. 

2.1:  50 

 

 

2.2:  50 

 

2.1:  50 

 

 

2.2:  30 

 



ATTACHMENT 1 

PROGRAM IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 

RFP NO. ADHS11-00000347    

 

 

Housing Services 

 

  

Goal #1:  Eligible HIV/AIDS clients in Gila, Apache, and Navajo County will be provided with financial assistance for housing 
through Ryan White as a payer of last resort on a short term basis. 

 

Objectives 

 

Activities 

 

Number of 

Clients Served 

Number of Client 

Service Transactions 

1.1:  Determine eligibility for clients 
requesting Emergency Financial 
Assistance for housing 
 
 
 
 
 
1.2:  Seek outside services available to 
provide client needs 
 

 

 

 

 

 

1.1a)  Gather documentation for 

verification that income is below 

300% FPL. 

 

 

 

 

1.2a) Contact other resources to 

determine if other financial 

services are available. 

1.2.b) Verify that Ryan White will 

be payer of last resort 

 

 

 

1.1:  50 

 

 

 

 

 

1.2:  50 

1.1:  10 

 

 

 

 

 

1.2:  10 



ATTACHMENT 1 

PROGRAM IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 

RFP NO. ADHS11-00000347    

 

 

Medical Transportation Services 

 

  

Goal #1:  Eligible Ryan White HIV/AIDS Program clients in Apache and Navajo Counties will be provided transportation 
assistance to support services as needed. 

Objectives 

 

Activities 

 

Number of 

Clients Served 

Number of Client 

Service Transactions 

1.1 Clients will be aware of transportation 
services within their area. 
 
 

1.2 Ryan White funds will be used only as 
payer of last resort 
 
 
 

1.3 Clients will be provided with financial 
assistance for transportation. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1.1a)  A referral list of transportation 

services will be maintained 

1.1b) A list of transportation services 

will be provided to the client as 

needed 

1.2a)  Gather documentation that the 

client income is 300% FPL. 

1.2b)  Investigate alternative means 

of transportation 

1.3a)  Provide gas card/ taxi, bus or 

van service to the client  

 

 

 

 

1.1:  30 

 

 

1.2:  30 

 

 

1.3:  30 

1.1:  30 

 

 

1.2:  70 

 

 

1.3:  70 



ATTACHMENT 1 

PROGRAM IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 

RFP NO. ADHS11-00000347    

 

Goal #2:   Eligible Ryan White HIV/AIDS Program clients in Gila County will be provided transportation assistance to core 
medical services and support services as needed. 

Objectives Activities 
Number of 

Clients Served 

Number of Client 

Service Transactions 

2-1: Clients will be aware of transportation 
services within their area. 
 
 
 
 
2.2:  Ryan White funds will be used only 
as payer of last resort 

 
 
 
2.3  Clients will be provided with financial 
assistance for transportation 
 
  
 
 
 
 

2.1a)  A referral list of transportation 

services will be maintained 

2.1b) A list of transportation services 

will be provided to the client as 

needed 

 

2.2a)  Gather documentation that the 

client income is 300% FPL. 

2.2b)  Investigate alternative means 

of transportation 

2.3a)  Provide gas card/ taxi, bus or 

van service to the client  

 

 

 

 

 

 

2.1:  20 

 

2.2:  20 

 

2.3:  20 

 

2.1:  20 

 

2.2:  40 

 

 

2.3:  40 

 

 

 

 



ATTACHMENT 2 

CULTURAL COMPETENCY ASSESSMENT 

RFP NO. ADHS11-00000347 

 

Cultural Competency Assessment 
 

 
1. Provide Contractor’s ability or capacity to offer culturally competent programming to the targeted 

populations by describing previous service deliveries, programs or interventions to the targeted 
populations or similar groups along with a brief synopsis of your service delivery outcomes. 

  
 Gila County’s population is very diverse.  This diversity includes three Native American 
 reservations, a large Hispanic and non-Hispanic population.  This diversity mirrors in 
 many ways that of Apache and Navajo Counties.  Gila County has been successful with 
 many programs to provide culturally competent programs.  We encourage our staff to 
 obtain training as available and look to community partners for assistance when indicated.  
 Currently, Gila County manages immunizations, W.I.C., and the Teen Pregnancy 
 Prevention Program just to name a few.  We provide culturally appropriate information to 
 all clients as needed. 
 
2. What percentage of the direct staff and/or direct management complement the demographics of 

the respective service area and/or target population and in what way do they complement the 
service area and/or target population? 

 
 Of the five staff involved in this program, 40% complement the demographics of Gila 
 County.  The majority of this staff has spent a large amount of time interacting with the 
 largest demographic groups. 60% of the staff have received training from multiple venues 
 on cultural competency.  
  
 Describe how all program staff and direct management will receive cultural competency 

orientation within the first six (6) months of hire and how you plan to incorporate ongoing cultural 
competency training will be incorporated throughout the funding cycle. 

 
 Cultural competency training will be acquired by new staff when available.  On the job 
 training will be provided by existing staff.  Annual training will be updated as programs are 
 available. 
 
3. Describe the service categories offered will be provided in a manner compatible with the targeted 

populations’ interpersonal styles, cultural health beliefs, practices, and preferred languages? 
 
 The targeted population’s interpersonal styles and cultural beliefs will be taken into 
 consideration as services are provided and planned for.  Language preferences will be 
 managed within our current staff or as needed with community partners. 
 
4.  Describe the plan to provide limited English proficiency populations with resources in the primary 

language?  (response required only if applicable) 
 
 Since our population contains a large Hispanic group, Spanish is the most  requested 
 language. Most printed information available comes in Spanish and those items that don’t, 
 can be translated. 
 
 Describe how printed, audiovisual materials and post signage will be evaluated for appropriate 

language and literacy. 
 
 Most printed information available comes in Spanish and those items that don’t,  can be 

translated. There is no written Apache translation. 
 



ATTACHMENT 2 

CULTURAL COMPETENCY ASSESSMENT 

RFP NO. ADHS11-00000347 

 

 Describe how you will provide bilingual staff, interpreters, and telephone interpreters if the 
population served requires them. (response required only if applicable) 

 
 For those clients that only speak Apache, Tribal Health Liaisons can be used for 

translation.  Currently, the Health Department has bilingual staff and capability with this 
staff to translate in person and/or by telephone.  

 
5.   Attach the process evaluation form used to evaluate the effectiveness of activities undertaken 

towards developing a culturally competent service delivery system. 
 (See Attached) 
 
 
6.  Describe the methodology of collecting demographic data including (at least) race/ ethnicity, 

gender, and age of participants and how to monitor service delivery to diverse individuals within 
the targeted populations. 

 
 Demographic data on clients is obtained during the client intake process.  Service delivery 

to the targeted populations will be evaluated by the case manager and the Deputy Director 
of Prevention.   

 
 Describe the plan to assess the satisfaction of participants and ensure that responses from 

diverse participants are included in the tabulation of satisfaction surveys.  
 
 Annually, clients will be requested to evaluate program satisfaction including case 

management performance.  These evaluations will be confidential and anonymous.  The 
Deputy Director of Prevention will receive these evaluations and share findings with the 
case manager and all other applicable staff as indicated. 

 
 Describe how this information will be used to support, alter, or expand the culturally appropriate 

services being offered. 
 
 Information will be used to improve, clarify and/or suspend services as indicated. 
 
7. Add any additional statements that demonstrate how CLAS Standards are being used to support 

your service. 
 
  Because culture and language are vital factors in how health care services are delivered 
 and received, we understand that it is important that our staff understand and respond 
 with sensitivity to the needs and preferences that culturally and linguistically diverse 
 patients bring to the health encounter. Providing culturally and linguistically 
 appropriate services (CLAS) to these patients improves access to care, quality of care, 
 and, ultimately, health outcomes.  Our case manager has received training in cultural 
 competency for our areas diverse populations.  Trainings include “Service Provider 
 Diversity and Cultural Sensitivity Training”, the “Indian Health Services HIV/AIDS 
 Collaborative Regional Training” (cultural competency for the Native American 
 population), and Managing Patients in the Border Region” (cultural competency for the 
 Hispanic population). 
 
8. Attach all Memorandums of Agreement (MOA’s), Memorandums of Understanding (MOU’s), and/ 

or Letters of Support (LOS) with subcontractors.  All MOA’s, MOU’s or LOS’ shall contain 
language demonstrating commitment by the subcontractor(s) to comply with CLAS standards. 

 
 



ATTACHMENT 2 

CULTURAL COMPETENCY ASSESSMENT 

RFP NO. ADHS11-00000347 

 

9. Describe the plan to address complaints related to cultural/linguistic competencies. 
 
 Culturally competent complaints and/or suggestions for change will be addressed to the 
 deputy director for resolution.  Improvements will be handled with an improvement plan 
 and actions taken documented. 
 
 
 
Resources: Office of Minority Health, www.minorityhealth.hhs.gov 
  National Center for Cultural Competence, www.11.georgetown.edu 
  National Institutes of Health, www.nih.gov 
   
 

http://www.minorityhealth.hhs.gov/
http://www.11.georgetown.edu/
http://www.nih.gov/


ATTACHMENT 3 

PROGRAM EVALUATION PLAN 

RFP NO. ADHS11-00000347 

 

Program Evaluation Plan 
 
 
 

Contractor Name:  Gila County___________________ 
 

A detailed plan for the first year of the full funding period/project cycle (April 1, 2011 through March 31, 2012) is to be 
submitted.  The plan should specify specific Evaluation tools and service delivery monitoring measures which will be taken 
to establish baseline measures for the Program Implementation Plan.  In addition, the Program Evaluation Plan must 
demonstrate how specific variables required by HRSA, or by the ADHS Quality Management Plan as shown in Exhibit 3 will 
be measured and reported. 
 
Using this form, submit an evaluation plan which is a detailed plan for the first year of this funding period/project cycle.  
Reference Exhibit 5 for more detail on how to prepare the Program Evaluation Plan   
 
An update of this plan will be required annually, and beginning in the second year of the project cycle, it will be required to 
include specific measures that assess goals for program improvement outlined under the 2nd year Program 
Implementation Plan. 
 
 

Monitoring and Evaluation Plan 
Evaluation and Monitoring 

Questions 
Use and Purpose Evaluation and Monitoring Tools 

Event/Time Used 

Responsible Party 

Case Management (Non-

Medical) 

 

Does each client have a 

current (updated within the 

past 6 months) 

comprehensive individualized 

care plan? 

 

 

 

 

 

To look at strengths and gaps in 

programs or performance, trends 

in service and emerging issues. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Review of Client Charts 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Event:  Quarterly Review 

Time Used:  6 hours or as 

needed. 

Responsible Party: 

Case Manager and Deputy 

Director of Prevention. 

 



ATTACHMENT 3 

PROGRAM EVALUATION PLAN 

RFP NO. ADHS11-00000347 

 

Emergency Financial 

Assistance 

 

Were all clients requesting 

Emergency Financial 

Assistance screened for 

eligibility and were all other 

avenues of assistance 

eliminated before the 

assistance was provided? 

 

 

Psychosocial Support 

Services 

 

Are the support groups 

implemented as intended and 

reach the target audience? 

 

 

 

Treatment Adherence 

Counseling 

 

Were individuals affected by 

HIV/AIDS provided with 

support? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To determine in detail how the 

intervention was delivered and to 

determine gaps in assistance 

available at the local level. 

 

To be accountable to clients and 

funders. 

 

 

 

 

 

To determine how the service 

program is being implemented. 

Quality Assurance. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To determine strengths or gaps in 

program or performance. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The number and types of Emergency 

Financial Assistance provided to 

clients will be tracked based on the 

Case Managers records. A review will 

determine the purposes of the EFA’s, 

the needs of local clients, and any 

gaps in resources. CAREWare. 

 

 

 

 

 

A record will be kept regarding 

attendance (HIV/Aides Infected or 

HIV/Aides Affected).  Topics 

discussed.  What curriculum and 

material were used? 

 

 

 

 

Number and types of encounters with 

individuals affected by HIV/AIDS will 

be monitored. (list) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Event:  Ongoing. Reviewed 

Quarterly. 

Time used: As needed  

Responsible Party:  Case 

Manager and Deputy Director of 

Prevention. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Monthly Support Group Sessions. 

Time used: 8 hours 

Responsible Party:  Case 

Manager 

 

 

 

 

 

Event: Ongoing. Reviewed 

Quarterly 

Time used: As needed 

Responsible Party:  Case 

Manager and Deputy Director of 

Prevention. 

 



ATTACHMENT 3 

PROGRAM EVALUATION PLAN 

RFP NO. ADHS11-00000347 

 

 

Food Bank/Home-Delivered 

Meals 

 

How many food cards and gift 

cards for clients were 

provided? 

 

 

Housing Services 

 

Were all clients requesting 

Housing Assistance screened 

for eligibility and were all other 

avenues of assistance 

eliminated before the 

assistance was provided? 

 

 

Medical Transportation 

Services 

 

Were all clients requesting 

Medical Transportation 

Services screened for 

eligibility and were all other 

avenues of assistance 

eliminated before the 

assistance was provided? 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Needs Assessment, baseline data.  

To help design and/or modify 

intervention. 

 

 

 

 

To determine in detail how the 

intervention was delivered and to 

determine gaps in assistance 

available at the local level. 

 

To be accountable to clients and 

funders 

 

 

 

 

To determine in detail how the 

intervention was delivered and to 

determine gaps in assistance 

available at the local level. 

 

To be accountable to clients and 

funders 

 

 

 

 

 

Number, types and amount of food 

and gift cards provided to client. 

CAREWare 

 

 

 

 

The number and requests for housing 

assistance provided to clients, 

process used and outcome will be 

tracked based on the Case Managers 

records. A review will determine the 

needs of local clients, and any gaps 

in resources.  

CAREWare 

 

 

 

The number and requests for medical 

transportation provided to clients, 

process used and outcome (gas card/ 

taxi, etc) will be tracked based on the 

Case Managers records. A review will 

determine the needs of local clients, 

and any gaps in resources.  

CAREWare 

 

 

 

 

Event:  Ongoing, Reviewed 

Quarterly 

Time Used:  As needed 

Responsible Party: Case Manager  

 

 

 

Event:  Ongoing, Reviewed 

Quarterly.  

Responsible Party:  Case 

Manager and Deputy Director of 

Prevention. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Event:  Ongoing, Reviewed 

Quarterly. 

Time used: As needed  

Responsible Party:  Case 

Manager and Deputy Director of 

Prevention. 

 



ATTACHMENT 3 

PROGRAM EVALUATION PLAN 

RFP NO. ADHS11-00000347 

 

 

Evaluation plans shall be in accordance with requirements laid out in the Method of Approach and Scope of Work for the Proposal.   

 

 

 



ATTACHMENT 4 

KEY PERSONNEL FORM 

RFP NO. ADHS11-00000347 

 

Key Personnel Form 
 

 
 
Key personnel is defined as all staff persons with responsibility for fulfilling any component of the 
contracted service categories.   List all personnel in the table below, including those positions that may 
need to be filled. 
 

Name Position/Title % Time Assigned to Contract 

 
Malinda Williams 

 
HIV Program Coordinator 

 
90% 

 
Michelle Craft 

 
Public Health/Epi Nurse 

 
3% as a back up 

 
Renee Omstead 

 
Accounting Clerk 

 
10% 

 
Paula Horn 

 
Deputy Director of Prevention  

 
5% 

 
 

  

 
 

  

 
 

  

 
 

  

 
 
Provide resumes for existing staff that will be part of the project.  Resumes shall include name, title, key 
responsibilities and previous experiences that are relative to that field.  Include all professional licensure, 
certifications, education preparation, etc. 
 
 
Provide job descriptions for all positions that will be funded in any part by this Contract.  Describe staff 
accountabilities, required expertise, minimum qualifications necessary to fulfill job duties, preferred 
qualifications, description of work to be performed by this position, and what personnel (titles) the position 
reports to.  List how much time each person will spend on the project. 



ATTACHMENT 5 

COLLABORATIONS AND/OR PROPOSED SUBCONTRACTORS 

RFP NO. ADHS11-00000347 

 

 

 
 

Collaborations and/or Proposed Subcontractors 
 

 
If the service or program described in response to this Contract proposes either subcontractors or 
collaborations, provide a description for each one included. 
 
Documentation of agreement or a support letter, one (1) format provided in Attachment 5, must 
accompany each identified collaborative partner or proposed subcontract. 

 
 

 
Proposed Collaboration(s)  

 
Terms 

 
Relation to proposed project 

(How will this collaboration enhance 
the provision of services in the current 

proposal) 
 

 
Northland Cares 

 
 
 

To provide outpatient 
medical services for Gila, 

Apache and Navajo 
Counties. 

Satellite clinic and telemedicine will be 

provided making it more convenient for 
these clients to access HIV care. 

 
 

North Country Healthcare 
 
 

To provide core medical 
services for Apache and 

Navajo Counties. 

The core services include outpatient 
and ambulatory health services, 

medial case management, oral health, 
health insurance premium cost 
sharing, AIDS pharmaceutical 

assistance, early intervention and 
mental health. 

 
 

Bread and Soup for You, PLLC 
 
 

To provide HIV support 
group services for Apache 

and Navajo Counties. 

Provides psychosocial support 
services for clients and their affected 

care givers.  

Apache County Public Health 
Services District 

 
 

To provide HIV case 
management to Apache 

County residents who are 
infected and affected with 

HIV. 

Work with Gila County case 
management in early identification of 

individuals with HIV/AIDS. 

 
Navajo County Public Health 

Services District 
 
 

To provide HIV case 
management to Navajo 

County residents who are 
infected and affected with 

HIV. 

Work with Gila County case 
management in early identification of 

individuals with HIV/AIDS. 

Add additional collaborators as needed 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ATTACHMENT 5 

COLLABORATIONS AND/OR PROPOSED SUBCONTRACTORS 

RFP NO. ADHS11-00000347 

 

 

 
Proposed Subcontractor(s)  

 
Terms 

 
Relation to proposed project 

(How will this subcontractor 
enhance the provision of services 

in the current proposal) 
 

 
 
N/A 
 

  

 
 
 
 

  

 
 
 
 

  

Add additional subcontractors as needed 
DOCUMENTATION OF COLLABORATIVE PARTNER and/or SUBCONTRACTOR 

 
You have been identified in the response to RFP ADHS11-00000347 as either a proposed 
subcontractor or a collaborating partner in a HIV Care Services project by (Offeror) _____________ 
for (Service Category) ____________. Please respond to the following question: 
 
1. How will you (your program/agency) be working to support the terms of the offeror’s proposed HIV 

prevention programming? 
 

1.1 If your proposed role will be as a subcontractor please include the following information: 
proposed budget details, staffing, and subcontract if available. 

 
1.2 If your proposed role will be as a collaborative partner please include the following information: 

description of in-kind resource(s) to be provided, staffing. 
 

 







ATTACHMENT 7 

OFFERORS ADDITIONAL INTERNAL RESOURCES (IF APPLICABLE) 

RFP NO. ADHS11-00000347 

 

Offeror’s Additional Internal Resources 
 
 

Use the table format provided below to list all other funding, in-kind and collaborative resources 
that will be used in conjunction with the proposed project. Include financial resources, in-kind 
support and proposed collaborative efforts that will be used to enhance program delivery. Limit the 
named existing resources to those received within the last five (5) years. 

 

 

 

 
Name and Type of 
 Existing Funding 

(Federal, State, local, other) 
 

Annual Amount/ 
Term of Funding  

(Effective 
date/Ending date) 

Relation to proposed project 
(How will this funding enhance the provision of 

services in the current proposal) 

 
 

HIV Prevention-State from ADHS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

$4,508.00 

HIV Prevention provides HIV counseling and 
testing services for Gila County residents.  

The funding will work together to determine 
early identification of individuals with 

HIV/AIDS.   

 
In-Kind Support 

(Supplies, referrals, other existing 
programs within the agency, etc.) 

 

Terms 

 
Relation to proposed project 

(How will this support enhance the provision 
of services in the current proposal) 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 
 





ATTACHMENT 9 
MATERIALS REVIEW ACCEPTANCE 

RFP NO. ADHS11-00000347 

 
 
 

Materials Review Acceptance 
 

 
All materials (such as forms, documents, publications, etc.) developed or utilized by Programs shall be 
approved by the ADHS, Office of HIV, STD and Hepatitis Services, HIV Care and Services (Ryan White 
Part B) Program prior to any use by the Program.  Please review Exhibit 7, Offerors Additional Information 
Resources, for more information. 
 
 
 
As the responsible Party for the service described in this Proposal, I understand it is a contractual 
requirement to ensure that all materials are submitted and approved prior to use.  I also understand that 
failure to do so may jeopardize funding.  
 
 
 
Agency:  ______Gila County_____________________________________ 
 
 
Name:      ______Michael A. Pastor______________________ 
 
 
Title:  ______Chairman of the Board of Supervisors_________ 
 
 
 
Signature:  __________________________________________________ 
 
Date:  _____________________________ 
 
 
 



ATTACHMENT 10 

PRICE SHEET 

RFP NO. ADHS11-00000347 

 

 

 

Price Sheet 
Effective April 1, 2010 

 

 

Cost Reimbursement Line Items Annual Amount 

Personnel and Employee Related Expenses  $45,068.49 

Professional and Outside Services  $22,500.00  

Travel   $13,183.04  

Other Operating Expenses  $3,025.00  

Indirect (if applicable, must have an approved and current letter from 
HHS stating the indirect rate) 

 $5,052.66  

Total not to exceed:  $88,829.19  

 

With prior written authorization from the ADHS Ryan White Part B Program Manager, the Contractor may 
transfer up to fifteen percent (15%) of the total Annual Amount among line items. Transfers beyond fifteen 
percent (15%) shall require written notice of a Contract Amendment. 

Capital Outlay Expenses are not allowed 
Indirect Expenses are not allowed without an approved and current letter issued by HHS stating the 
indirect rate (must show proof). 
Direct Expenses must be detailed in the budget narrative 
Food and beverage expenses are not allowed 
Out of State travel expenses are not allowed 
 

 



ATTACHMENT 11 

BUDGET JUSTIFICATION AND NARRATIVE 

RFP NO. ADHS11-00000347 

 

Offerors will provide information covering Personnel Services, Employee Related Expenses, Professional and Outside Services, Other Operating 
Expenses, and Travel in the tables below, for each separate service category proposed, as well as a detailed narrative covering each item listed in 
the tables.  Administrative costs are those which are necessary for the logistical operation of the program, but are not directly related to the 
delivery of the services provided.  Quality Management costs are those which are directly related to the programs clinical quality management 
activity, the program's participation in the Ryan White Part B statewide quality management program, or any data collection or reporting activity 
required for clinical quality management. 
 

Ryan White Part B Line Item Budget Preperation 
         Amount Reqeusted: 

           

Line Item 

Full Salary 
FTE % for 
Program 

Core 
Medical 

FTE 

Core 
Medical 

$  

Support 
Services 

FTE 

Suport 
Services 

$  
QM FTE 

QM 
$  

Admin 
FTE 

*Admin 
$ 

Total 
$ 

A. Personnel                       
 HIV Case Manager/Program 
Coordinator  $35,412.52  90%      85% 30,100.64 5%  1,770.78      31,871.42 

Accounting Clerk $33,250.00 10%         
 

   10% $3,325.00   3,325.00 

    
 

            
                           

                        

                        

Sub-total Personnel                      35,196.42 

B. Fringe                       
Employee Related Expenses 
(ERE)                       
 HIV Case Manager/Program 
Coordinator  10,968.97 90%     85% 9,323.62 5% 548.45      9,872.07 

Sub-total ERE                       

                        

C. In-State Travel         
 

            

Mileage per year -20,508 miles            7,793.04           

Hotel             4,200.00           



ATTACHMENT 11 

BUDGET JUSTIFICATION AND NARRATIVE 

RFP NO. ADHS11-00000347 

 

Per Diem 
     

1,190.00 
     Sub-total Travel             13,183.04          13,183.04 

                        

D. Equipment                       

 
                      

                        

Sub-total Equipment                      0 

E. Supplies                       

Office Supplies            1,000.00           
 General Operating-
Telephones           2,025.00           

Sub-total Supplies                      $3,025.00 

F. Contractual                       
Emergency Financial 
Assistance           

5,000.00 
           

Food Bank/Home Delivered 
Meals           2,000.00           

Medical  Transportation              5,500.00           

Housing           4,000.00           

Psychosocial Support 
     

6,000.00 
    

22,500.00 

Sub-total Contractual                       

 G. Other                       

Sub-total Other                       

Total Direct Costs                     83,776.53 

H. Indirect Costs if applicable                        5,052.66 

Grand Total                     $88,829.19 

Percentage                       
*Total Admin across all 
services is capped at 10%.  

           



ATTACHMENT 11 

BUDGET JUSTIFICATION AND NARRATIVE 

RFP NO. ADHS11-00000347 

 

Total Quality Management 
across all services is capped at 
5%. 

 

 

 



ATTACHMENT 3 

PROGRAM EVALUATION PLAN 

RFP NO. ADHS11-00000347 

 

Cultural Competency Program Evaluation Plan 
 
 
 

Contractor Name:  _____Gila County__________ 
 

A detailed plan for the first year of the full funding period/project cycle (April 1, 2011 through March 31, 2012) is to be 
submitted.  The plan should specify specific Evaluation tools and service delivery monitoring measures which will be taken 
to establish baseline measures for the Program Implementation Plan.  In addition, the Program Evaluation Plan must 
demonstrate how specific variables required by HRSA, or by the ADHS Quality Management Plan as shown in Exhibit 3 will 
be measured and reported. 
 
Using this form, submit an evaluation plan which is a detailed plan for the first year of this funding period/project cycle.  
Reference Exhibit 5 for more detail on how to prepare the Program Evaluation Plan   
 
An update of this plan will be required annually, and beginning in the second year of the project cycle, it will be required to 
include specific measures that assess goals for program improvement outlined under the 2nd year Program 
Implementation Plan. 
 
 

Monitoring and Evaluation Plan- Cultural Competency 
Evaluation and Monitoring 

Questions 
Use and Purpose Evaluation and Monitoring Tools 

Event/Time Used 

Responsible Party 

 

Are services provided to the 

client provided in the 

appropriate language and 

compatible with their cultural 

beliefs and practices?  

 

 

 

 

Determine if the case manager 

provides the client effective, 

understandable and respectful 

care compatible with their cultural 

beliefs and practices and preferred 

language? 

To provide Culturally Competent 

Non-Medical Case Management 

 

 

Validation that services and 

information were provided in the 

clients language through review of 

patient charts. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Event:  Assessment of printed 

materials and documentation of 

an interpreter. 

Quarterly Review 

Case Manager and Deputy 

Director of Prevention 

 

 

 

 



ATTACHMENT 3 

PROGRAM EVALUATION PLAN 

RFP NO. ADHS11-00000347 

 

 

Has staff at all levels received 

ongoing education and 

training in culturally and 

linguistically appropriate 

service delivery? 

 

Does the client intake include 

the client’s race, ethnicity, and 

spoken and written language? 

 

 

Does the case manager 

collaborate and consult with 

community-based 

organizations, providers, and 

leaders for the purposes of 

partnering on outreach? 

 

Does the Case Manager have 

a current demographic, 

cultural, and epidemiological 

profile of the community as 

well as a needs assessment 

to accurately plan for and 

implement services that 

respond to the cultural and 

linguistic characteristics of the 

service area? 

 

 

 

The evaluation of employee skills 

in culturally competency. 

 

 

 

 

To adequately identify population 

groups within a service area.  To 

assure that health care services 

are provided equitably. 

 

To ensure the case managers 

understanding of the needs of the 

clients served. 

 

 

 

 

To determine cultural factors 

related to client needs, attitudes, 

behaviors, health practices, and 

concerns about using health care 

services as well as the 

surrounding communities 

resources, assets and needs 

related to cultural competency. 

 

Client Satisfaction Surveys 

 

 

 

 

 

CAREWare 

 

 

 

 

Chart Review 

Referral lists 

 

 

 

 

 

Census figures 

School enrollment profiles 

County and State health status 

reports 

Data from Community Agencies 

 

Event:  Annual Satisfaction 

Surveys provided to clients.  

Responses will be confidential 

and reviewed by the Deputy 

Director of Prevention. 

 

Event:  Quarterly Review 

Time:  As needed 

Case Manager and Deputy 

Director of Prevention 

 

Event:  Quarterly Review 

Time:  As needed 

Case Manager and Deputy 

Director of Prevention 

 

 

 

Event:  Annual evaluation of 

program.  Update of goals and 

implementation plan. 

Time:  8 hours 

Case Manager 



ATTACHMENT 3 

PROGRAM EVALUATION PLAN 

RFP NO. ADHS11-00000347 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Evaluation plans shall be in accordance with requirements laid out in the Method of Approach and Scope of Work for the Proposal.   

 

 























    Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- C     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 02/01/2011  

Submitted For: Barbara Valencia, WIA Program Coordinator

Submitted By: Barbara Valencia, Health & Community Services Division

Department: Community Services Division

Division: Community Services Department

Fiscal Year: 2010/2011  Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates - Begin & End: July 1, 2010 through June 30, 2013 

Grant?: Yes

Matching Requirement?: No  Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information

Request/Subject

Intergovernmental Agreement Contract Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. DE111006001 with the Arizona Department of

Economic Security and the Gila County Board of Supervisors.

Background Information

The Governor's Council on Workforce Policy determines each program year the amount of Governor's discretionary funds to

set aside for incentives for the state's Local Workforce Investment Areas.  Incentive funds will be awarded to a Local

Workforce Investment Area based on each core measure that is exceeded.

Evaluation

Under the Local Workforce Investment Area there are 15 core measures.  For Program Year 2009/Fiscal Year 2010, each core

measure that is exceeded is assigned an average of $2,985.  To exceed a performance measure means the local area must have

achieved over 100% of the negotiated level.   Twelve out of 15 core measures have been met.

Additional dollars have been added to this Contract under Section 6.1 Compensation.  These additional dollars reflect an

increase of $37,809.  The Contract has been increased from $2,987,834 to $3,025,643. 

Conclusion

Additional dollars added to Section 6.1 Compensation reflects an  increase to the Contract of $37,809.  The Contract Agreement

between the Arizona Department of Economic Security and Gila County Board of Supervisors has increased from $2,987,834

to a new total of $3,025,643.

Recommendation

Recommendation is to approve the Intergovernment Agreement Contract Amendment No. 3 between the Arizona Department

of Economic Security and Gila County Board of Supervisors.  This Amendment No. 3 incresed the contract from $2,987,834

to a new total of $3,025,643 which reflects an increase of $37,809.  Additional funds were added to contract for exceeding 12

out of 15 core performance measures.

Suggested Motion

Approval of Amendment No. 3 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. DE111006001) between the Arizona

Department of Economic Security and Gila County Board of Supervisors increasing the Contract amount from $2,987,834

to $3,025,643, an increase of $37,809. 

Attachments

Link: DES Contract No. DE111006001

Link: Amendment No.3



























































































 
 

 

 

 
 
 

 
Intergovernmental Agreement 

CONTRACT AMENDMENT 
1.  CONTRACTOR (Name and address) 
         Gila County Board of Supervisors 

 5515 S Apache Blvd 
 Globe, AZ  85501 
  
 

 2.  CONTRACT ID NUMBER 
 
        DE111006001 
 
  3.  AMENDMENT NUMBER 
              03 

 
4. THE PARTIES AGREE TO THE FOLLOWING AMENDMENT 
 
 
Pursuant to Section 6.1 Compensation, the following changes are being made: 
 
                                                               FROM                              TO 
PY10 Set a Side                                  $    0                             $   37,809 (CFDA# 17.259, Youth) 
 
  
The above funds are Incentive Dollars awarded for PY09/FY10 contract performance. The funds have an effective date 
from July 1, 2010 through June 30, 2013. 
 
These funds shall be reported separately from any other set-a-side dollars received. 
 
 
The Contract total of $2,987,834.00 is increased by $37,809.00 to  a new total of $3,025,643.00 

5.     EXCEPT AS PROVIDED HEREIN, ALL TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE ORIGINAL CONTRACT AS HERETOFORE CHANGED AND/OR 
AMENDED REMAIN UNCHANGED AND IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT.  THE AMENDMENT SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE ON THE DATE 
OF LAST SIGNATURE UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED HEREIN.  BY SIGNING THIS FORM ON BEHALF OF THE CONTRACTOR, THE 
SIGNATORY CERTIFIES HE/SHE HAS THE AUTHORITY TO BIND THE CONTRACTOR TO THIS CONTRACT. 

6. 
 ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC SECURITY 

7.  NAME OF CONTRACTOR 
 Gila County Board of Supervisors 

SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED INDIVIDUAL SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED INDIVIDUAL 

TYPED NAME 
Cathie G. Rodman 

TYPED NAME 
Michael A. Pastor 

TITLE 
Procurement Manager 

TITLE 
Chairman of the Board of Supervisors 

DATE 
 

DATE 
 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH ARS §11-952 THIS CONTRACT AMENDMENT HAS BEEN REVIEWED BY THE UNDERSIGNED WHO HAVE DETERMINED THAT THIS 
CONTRACT AMENDMENT IS IN APPROPRIATE FORM AND WITHIN THE POWERS AND AUTHORITY GRANTED TO EACH RESPECTIVE PUBLIC BODY. 
 

ARIZONA ATTORNEY GENERAL’S OFFICE  
 
By:  _________________________________________   By: ____________________________________ 
 Assistant Attorney General         Public Agency Legal Counsel 
 
Date: _______________________________________   Date: __________________________________ 



    Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- D     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 02/01/2011  

Submitted For: Barbara Valencia, WIA Program Coordinator

Submitted By: Barbara Valencia, Health & Community Services Division

Department: Community Services Division

Division: Community Services Department

Fiscal Year: 2010/2011  Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates - Begin & End: April 1, 2010 - June 30, 2013 

Grant?: Yes

Matching Requirement?: No  Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information

Request/Subject

Amendment No. 2 to Intergovernmental Agreement No. DE111006001 between the Arizona Department of Economic Security

and the Gila County Board of Supervisors.

Background Information

The purpose of this agreement is to provide Workforce Investment Act (WIA) Title 1B services to eligible youth, adults, and

dislocated workers throughout the designated Local Workforce Investment Area.  These services will be provided in

accordance with Federal and State regulations and the most current Local Area Plan.

Evaluation

Additional dollars have been added to this Contract under  Section 6.1 Compensation.  These additional dollars reflect an

increase to the Dislocated Worker Program as follows:

PY10 DW Administration - an increase from $33,086 to $40,967

FY11 DW Administration - an increase from $87,888 to $108,823

PY10 Dislocated Worker - an increase from $297,781 to $368,711

FY11 Dislocated Worker - an increase from $790,999 to $979,412

PY10 Rapid Response -  an increase from $50,253 to $69,145

FY 11 Rapid Response - an increase from $133,486 to $183,061

The Contract has been increased from $2,631,208 to $2,987,834.  This reflects an increase of $356,626.

Conclusion

Additional dollars added to Section 6.1 Compensation reflects an increase to the Dislocated Worker Program.  The Contract

Agreement between the Arizona Department of Economic Security and Gila County Board of Supervisors has increased from

$2,631,208 to a new total of $2,987,934.

Recommendation

Recommendation is to approve the Intergovernmental Agreement Contract Amendment No. 2 between the Arizona

Department of Economic Security and Gila County Board of Supervisors .  This Amendment No. 2 increases the contract from

$2,631,208 to a new total of $2,987,834 which reflects an increase of $356,626.

Suggested Motion

Approval of Amendment No. 2 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. DE111006001) between the Arizona

Department of Economic Security and Gila County Board of Supervisors increasing the contract amount from $2,631,208 to

$2,987,834, an increase of $356,626.

Attachments



Link: AMENDMENT NO. 2



 
 

 
 
 
 

 

Intergovernmental Agreement 
CONTRACT AMENDMENT 

1.  CONTRACTOR (Name and address) 
         Gila County Board of Supervisors 

 5515 S Apache Blvd 
 Globe, AZ  85501 
  
 

 2.  CONTRACT ID NUMBER 

 
        DE111006001 
 
  3.  AMENDMENT NUMBER 

              02 
 

4. THE PARTIES AGREE TO THE FOLLOWING AMENDMENT 
 
 

Pursuant to Section 6.1 Compensation, the following changes are being made: 
 
                                                               FROM                           TO 
PY10 DW Admin                                 $   33,086                      $   40,967 
FY11 DW Admin                                 $   87,888                      $  108,823 
PY10 Dislocated Worker                     $ 297,781                      $  368,711 
FY11 Dislocated Worker                     $ 790,999                      $  979,412 
PY10 Rapid Response                        $  50,253                       $   69,145 
FY11 Rapid Response                        $ 133,486                      $  183,061 
  
The Contract total of $2,631,208.00 is increased by $356,626.00 to  a new total of $2,987,834.00 

 
5.     EXCEPT AS PROVIDED HEREIN, ALL TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE ORIGINAL CONTRACT AS HERETOFORE CHANGED AND/OR 

AMENDED REMAIN UNCHANGED AND IN FULL FORCE AND EFFECT.  THE AMENDMENT SHALL BECOME EFFECTIVE ON THE DATE 
OF LAST SIGNATURE UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED HEREIN.  BY SIGNING THIS FORM ON BEHALF OF THE CONTRACTOR, THE 
SIGNATORY CERTIFIES HE/SHE HAS THE AUTHORITY TO BIND THE CONTRACTOR TO THIS CONTRACT. 

6. 

 ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC SECURITY 
7.  NAME OF CONTRACTOR 

  

SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED INDIVIDUAL SIGNATURE OF AUTHORIZED INDIVIDUAL 

TYPED NAME 

 
TYPED NAME 

 

TITLE 

 
TITLE 

 

DATE 

 
DATE 

 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH ARS §11-952 THIS CONTRACT AMENDMENT HAS BEEN REVIEWED BY THE UNDERSIGNED WHO HAVE DETERMINED THAT THIS 
CONTRACT AMENDMENT IS IN APPROPRIATE FORM AND WITHIN THE POWERS AND AUTHORITY GRANTED TO EACH RESPECTIVE PUBLIC BODY. 
 

ARIZONA ATTORNEY GENERAL’S OFFICE  
 
By:  _________________________________________   By: ____________________________________ 
 Assistant Attorney General         Public Agency Legal Counsel 
 
Date: _______________________________________   Date: __________________________________ 

 



    Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- E     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 02/01/2011  

Submitted For: Misti Williams, Finance and Purchasing Specialist

Submitted By: Misti Williams, Deputy County Manager

Department: Deputy County Manager Division: Finance

Fiscal Year: 2011-2012  Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates - Begin & End: 01/11-01/14 

Grant?: No

Matching Requirement?: No  Fund?: Replacement

Presenter's Name:

Information

Request/Subject

Purchase of a BH C-280 Copier/Scanner/Fax for use by the Payson Constable.

Background Information

This purchase is to replace a leased copier for the Payson Constable.

Evaluation

This purchase will save the County money by purchasing rather than leasing.

Conclusion

This purchase will save the County money by purchasing rather than leasing.

Recommendation

It is recommended that the County purchase this copier as opposed to continuing to lease same.

Suggested Motion

Authorization of the Chairman's signature on various documents entered into between Gila County and

Konica Minolta Business Solutions U.S.A., Inc. (KMBS) for the purchase of a Konica Minolta Bizhub

C-280 copier that will be used by the Payson Regional Constable as follows: Order Agreement in the

amount of $4,930.00, Advantage CPS Maintenance Contract at a cost of $68.50 per month ($822.00 per

year); and Contract Information Form.

Attachments

Link: Order Agreement with Konica Minolta Business Solutions

Link: Advantage CPC Maintenance Contract with KMBS

Link: Contact & Agreement Info with KMBS

Link: Addendum

Link: addendum 2

Link: E-mail Re: Pro-rate























    Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- F     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 02/01/2011  

Submitted For: Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director

Submitted By: Valrie Bejarano, Public Works Division

Department: Public Works Division Division: Roads

Fiscal Year: FY 2010-2011  Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates - Begin & End: Dec. 17, 2010 to Dec. 16, 2011 

Grant?: No

Matching Requirement?: No  Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information

Request/Subject

Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 050709-1 Chips and Asphalt for the Copper Region to extend the

contract for one year.

Background Information

Effective August 17, 2009, Gila County and Southwest Asphalt entered into a contract

whereby Southwest Asphalt provides 1/2" chips and asphalt to various locations in the Copper Region of

Gila County. The contract expires on December 17, 2010.  Amendment No. 1 will extend that date to

December 16, 2011.

Evaluation

Per Section 2.2 of Contract No. 050709-1, the County shall have the right, at its sole option, to renew the

contract for chips and asphalt for two additional one-year periods. This would be the first of the two

years. All terms, conditions and provisions of the original contract shall remain the same and apply

during the renewal period.

Conclusion

The Consolidated Roads Department requires chips and asphalt in order to maintain roads in Gila

County.  Extending  Contract No. 050709-1 with Southwest Asphalt would provide these products for

the Copper Region for one more year.

Recommendation

The Public Works Division recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve the extension of Contract

No. 050709-1 chips and asphalt Copper Region to December 16, 2011.

Suggested Motion

Authorization of the Chairman's signature on Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 050709-1 between Gila

County and Southwest Asphalt to extend the Contract, per Section 2.2, from the period of December 17,

2010, to December 16, 2011; and to provide for the purchase of 1/2" chips and asphalt, all of which are

used in the Copper Region of Gila County.

Attachments

Link: Amendment #1

Link: Contract 050709-1















































































    Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- G     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 02/01/2011  

Submitted For: Matthew Bolinger, Epidemiologist/Emergency Mgt & Health Preparedness Div Dir

Submitted By: Debra Williams, Emergency Management

Department: Health & Emergency Services Division: Emergency Services

Fiscal Year: FFY2009/CoFY2011  Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates - Begin & End: 10/01/2009 thru 12/31/2010 

Grant?: Yes

Matching Requirement?: No  Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information

Request/Subject

Subgrantee Agreement Amendment #1 09-AZDOHS-HSGP-555300-03

Background Information

Subgrantee Agreement 09-AZDOHS-HSGP-555300-03 between the Arizona Department of Homeland

Security (AZDOHS) and the Gila County Division of Emergency Management was originally accepted

by the BOS on January 12, 2010, for grant period October 1, 2009, through September 30, 2010. 

Evaluation

This grant award supported the FFY2009 East Region Communications Exercise series.  A contractor

was hired to deliver and execute tabletop and drill exercises, including Homeland Security required

meetings, documentation and After Action Review.  All tasks were successfully accomplished by

09/27/2010. 

Conclusion

This Amendment #1 provides a performance period extension thru December 31, 2010 to allow sufficient

time for reporting and production of required proof of expenditure documentation to be delivered to

AZDOHS for reimbursement purposes.

Recommendation

Recommendation is for approval of Subgrantee Agreement AMENDMENT#1

09-AZDOHS-HSGP-555300-03 between the Arizona Department of Homeland Security and the Gila

County Division of Health and Emergency Services for the purpose of obtaining reimbursement in the

amount of $44,548.64.

Suggested Motion

Approval of Subgrantee Agreement Amendment #1 09-AZDOHS-HSGP-555300-03 between the

Arizona Department of Homeland Security and the Gila County Division of Health and Emergency

Services for the purpose performance period extension through December 31, 2010.

Attachments

Link: Amendment#1

Link: BOS Signature Page-Amendment #1 AZDOHS-HSGP-555300-03



               09-AZDOHS-HSGP-#555300-03  
   V-08-01-AMD#1 Extension Page 1 
L:\Homeland\Strategic Planning\Grant Supporting Documents 

SUBGRANTEE AGREEMENT Amendment #1 
09-AZDOHS-HSGP-#555300-03 

Between 
The Arizona Department of Homeland Security 

And 
Gila County Division of Health and Emergency Services 

 
 
WHEREAS, A.R.S. § 41-4254 charges the Arizona Department of Homeland Security (AZDOHS) with the 
responsibility of administering funds. 
 
Pursuant to Section XII of the subgrantee Agreement between the Arizona Department of Homeland Security 
and the subgrantee the following section of the above referenced Subgrantee Agreement is hereby amended 
as follows to extend the period of performance. 

 
II. TERM OF AGREEMENT, TERMINATION AND AMENDMENTS 

 
This Agreement shall become effective on October 1, 2009 and shall terminate on September 30, 2010. 

SHALL BE CHANGED TO READ: 
This Agreement shall become effective on October 1, 2009 and shall terminate on December 31, 2010. 

All other terms of the original Subgrantee Agreement remain effective. 

In Witness Whereof, the parties have set their hands to this AMENDMENT as of the day and year herein 
indicated and agree that all parties are obligated to follow all terms and conditions of the original subgrantee 
agreement and are liable for all funds received by the AZDOHS.   

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF 

 
The parties hereto agree to execute this Amendment. 

 
FOR AND BEHALF OF THE FOR AND BEHALF OF THE 
 
Gila County Div of Health/Emerg Services  Arizona Department of Homeland Security 
Enter the Name of the Subgrantee above 
         
Authorized Signature above  Gilbert M. Orrantia 
  Director 
Print Name & Title above 
         
Enter Date above  Date 

 
(Please be sure to complete and mail two original documents to the Arizona Department of Homeland Security.) 

 
Any unauthorized changes to this document will result in termination of this award. 

 



Subgrantee Agreement AMENDMENT#1 09-AZDOHS-HSGP-555300-03 
Between 

Arizona Department of Homeland Security 
and 

Gila County Division of Health and Emergency Services 
 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Authorized Signature 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR 
Name Typed or Printed 
 
Chairman, Board of Supervisors  
Title 
 
 
Dated this _______ day of ______________________, 2011 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
_________________________________________________ 
County Attorney/Deputy County Attorney 
 
 
ATTEST: __________________________________________ 
Clerk of the Board/County Manager           Date     



    Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- H     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 02/01/2011  

Submitted For: Linda

Eastlick,

Elections

Director

Submitted By: Linda Eastlick, Elections

Department: Elections

Presenter's Name: Linda

Eastlick 

Information

Request/Subject

Pine Water Association Domestic Water Improvement Governing Board vacancy appointment

Background Information

ARS 48-803(B) provides that if a vacancy occurs on the district board other than from expiration of a

term, the remaining board members shall fill the vacancy by appointment of an interim member.

Evaluation

At the Pine Water Association Governing Board meeting of November 13, 2010, the Governing Board

accepted the resignation of Walter Lee Hunsaker effective November 13, 2010 and agreed that Mike

Ward be appointed to complete Mr. Hunsaker's term of office which expires December 31, 2014. 

Conclusion

Mr. Ward has agreed to serve out the term of Mr. Hunsaker.

Recommendation

It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors acknowledge the resignation of Walter Lee Hunsaker

and the appointment of  Mike Ward as the new Governing Board member for the Pine Water Association

Domestic Water Improvement District.

Suggested Motion

Acknowledgement of Mr. Walter Lee Hunsaker's resignation from the Pine Water Association Domestic

Water Improvement District Governing Board and the appointment of Mr. Michael Ward to complete the

term of Mr. Hunsaker, which expires December 31, 2014. 

Attachments

Link: ARS 48-803

Link: Pine Water Mtg Minutes-Resignation-Oath



48-803. District administered by a district board 

B. If a vacancy occurs on the district board other than from expiration of a term, the remaining 

board members shall fill the vacancy by appointment of an interim member. If the entire board 

resigns or for any reason cannot fulfill its duties, the board of supervisors shall appoint an 

administrator to administer the district with the same duties and obligations of the elected board. 

If the board of supervisors fails to appoint an administrator within thirty days, a special election 

shall be held to fill the vacancies on the fire district board. 











    Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- I     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 02/01/2011  

Submitted For: Linda

Eastlick,

Elections

Director

Submitted By: David Rogers, Elections

Department: Elections

Presenter's Name: Linda

Eastlick 

Information

Request/Subject

Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) for Election Services between Gila County Elections Department

and the  Town of Hayden to provide election services on March 8, 2011, and May 17, 2011 (if needed)

Background Information

The Gila County Elections Department performs election services for other governmental entities

including cities, towns, school districts, fire districts, water districts and sanitary districts. Historically we

have created agreements with participating entities for each election wherein they request County

assistance with the election.

The most recent changes to the County policy with regard to Conduct of District Elections, including the

fee schedule, were adopted by the Board of Supervisors (BOS) on October 18, 2005.

The IGAs themselves are reviewed and updated by the Chief Deputy County Attorney each time an

election is conducted for the district and an IGA is created and submitted for BOS approval.

The agreement has been signed by the Town of Hayden.

Evaluation

Prior to each election, the Gila County Elections Director presents the BOS with IGAs for any entity that

has requested the Gila County Elections Departments' assistance with their election.

Conclusion

The Town of Hayden has requested that the Gila County Elections Department conduct their mayoral

election to be held on March 8, 2011, and their run-off election on May 17, 2011 (if needed).

Recommendation

The Elections Director recommends the Board's approval of the IGA.

Suggested Motion

Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement for Election Services between Gila County Division of

Elections and the Town of Hayden to provide mayoral election services on March 8, 2011, and run-off

election services on May 17, 2011 (if needed).

Attachments

Link: 2011 Town of Hayden IGA





 
Agreement for Election Services  
Town of Hayden 
Date of Election:  March 8, 2011 
Election Style: Vote-By-Mail         Page 1 

 
 
 
 
 

INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR ELECTION SERVICES BETWEEN 
GILA COUNTY DIVISION OF ELECTIONS 

AND THE TOWN OF HAYDEN 
 
 Pursuant to A.R.S. §§ 11-951, 11-952, and 16-205, the Gila County Division of 
Elections, by and through the Gila County Board of Supervisors (hereinafter Gila 
County) and the Town of Hayden (hereinafter Town), enter into this agreement for 
election operational services.   
 

Date of Election:  March 8, 2011 and May 17, 2011 (if needed) 
Type of Election  Vote by Mail Mayor Election and Run-off Election 
    Not held in consolidation with a County election 
Town Contact   Laura Romero, Town Clerk 
Mailing Address  Box B, Hayden, AZ  85135 
Telephone Number  (520) 356-7801 
Fax Number   (520) 356-6334 
Email Address  romero_laure@yahoo.com 
 
County Contact:  Linda Eastlick, Gila County Division of Elections 
Mailing Address:  1400 E Ash Street, Globe, AZ  85501 
Telephone:     928.402.8708 
Fax:      928.402.4319 
Email:    leastlick@co.gila.az.us 

 
 This agreement confirms that the Town has requested the County to conduct 
specific duties in the above referenced elections on behalf of the Town.  The Governing 
Board of the Town has called these elections.  The Town agrees to reimburse the 
County for all costs incurred in the preparation and conduct of the elections, as 
specified in the Fee Schedule and the Delegation of Tasks, attached hereto. 
 
 Each party agrees that from its own funds it is responsible to finance and 
maintain a budget for its respective responsibilities and obligations under this 
agreement.  Each party will use its personnel, property, and resources for 
accomplishing its respective obligations under this agreement.  Each party will maintain 
its respective property after termination of this agreement and will eventually dispose of 
any elections materials used under this agreement in a manner provided for by state 
and federal law. 
 
 The parties agree that this agreement is subject to the cancellation provisions of 
A.R.S. § 38-511 which are incorporated into this agreement by this reference. 
 



 
Agreement for Election Services  
Town of Hayden 
Date of Election:  March 8, 2011 
Election Style: Vote-By-Mail         Page 2 

 The parties further agree that they will comply with all federal and state laws in 
carrying out their obligations under this agreement. 
 
 By signing this agreement the Town agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the 
County from any claims resulting from the County participating in the election and 
agrees to the terms specified in the agreement. 
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________   _____________________ 
Chairman, Gila County Board of Supervisors   Date 
 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
 
______________________________________  _____________________ 
Gila County Attorney      Date 
 
 
 
 
 
 
____________________________________   _____________________ 
Authorized Representative      Date 
Town of Hayden 
 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
 
______________________________________  _____________________ 
Attorney for the Town      Date 
 
 



 
Agreement for Election Services  
Town of Hayden 
Date of Election:  March 8, 2011 
Election Style: Vote-By-Mail         Page 3 

Gila County Division of Elections 
 

Fee Schedule 
 
 
1.  Special Election or Election not held in consolidation with a County-wide election: 
            
 $1.25 per Registered Voter 
 
 $25.00 per Accu-Vote Ballot Scanner 
 
 $25.00 per Touchscreen 
 
 $25.00 per Ballot Box  
 
 $25.00 per Memory Card  
 
 $10.00 per Hour for Labor 
 
 $15.00 per Hour for Overtime Labor after 5:00 p.m. 
 
 Actual Cost of Voter Outreach and Translation Services\ 
 
 Actual Cost of Any Necessary Travel, Per Diem and Lodging. 
 
2.  Election held in consolidation with a County-wide election: 
 
 $ .35 per Registered Voter 
 
3.  Ballot Question: 
 
 $100 per Question  
 

No less than seventy-five (75) days before the election date, the Town shall 
submit to the County the ballot question(s) and informational pamphlet text, in 
English, and in compliance with all requirements pursuant to Arizona Revised 
Statutes. 

 
4.  Additional Charges: 

 
Additional charges will include any additional costs incurred by the County which 
are not included in this Fee Schedule or any agreed Delegation of Tasks.  Any 
costs or fees initiated by the Town shall be paid by the Town. 



 
Agreement for Election Services  
Town of Hayden 
Date of Election:  March 8, 2011 
Election Style: Vote-By-Mail         Page 4 

 
Gila County Division of Elections 

 
Delegation of Tasks 

 
 

 
TASK 

 
COUNTY 

 
TOWN 

IGA Preparation X  

Department of Justice Submission X  

Signature Requirements  X 

Candidate Packets  X 

Candidate Filing  X 

Campaign Finance Filing  X 

Legal Publications  X 

     Call of Election/Notice of Election  X 

     Logic and Accuracy Testing X  

   

Publicity   

     Informational Pamphlet Text, Translation, & Printing N/A  

     Mailing Inserts N/A  

     Other – Specify N/A  

Voter Outreach Services N/A  

Translation Services (Touchscreen, Publicity) X X 

Sample Ballots X  

Worker Recruitment and Training X  

Ballot Replacement Site Acquisition & Staffing  X 

Supply / Equipment Acquisition and Testing X  

Supply / Equipment Delivery and Pickup X  

Election Day Support X  

Ballot Layout and Programming X  

Ballot Printing X  

Mail Ballot Processing X  

Ballot Tabulation X  

Consulting Fees  X 

Vendor Charges  X 

Election Worker Wages  X 

Polling Place User Fee  X 

 



    Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- J     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 02/01/2011  

Submitted For: Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk, BOS

Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Presenter's Name:

Information

Request/Subject

Request approval of an Application for a Special Event License submitted by the Kiwanis Club of Tonto Basin

Community Service Foundation.

Background Information

A qualified organization may submit an application to serve liquor at a special event for up to 10 days per year. 

The Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control (Department) approves all liquor-related applications;

however, part of the Department's process requires the local governing board to review and approve the application

for any establishment located within the jurisdiction of that local governing body.

Evaluation

The Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board of Supervisors has reviewed this application and has determined that it has

been filled out correctly.

Conclusion

This application has been filled out correctly and if the Board of Supervisors approves the application, the Kiwanis

Club of Tonto Basin Community Service Foundation will have used 1 day of the 10 allowable days to serve liquor

at a special event in the year 2011.

Recommendation

The Chief Deputy Clerk recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve this application.  Upon approval, the

applicant has the responsibility to submit the application to the Department for its final approval.

Suggested Motion

Approval of an Application for Special Event License submitted by the Kiwanis Club of Tonto Basin Community

Service Foundation to serve liquor at a fund-raiser event on February 26, 2011, in Tonto Basin.

Attachments

Link: Kiwanis Club Special Event Application

Link: Kiwanis Club proof of non-profit status



















    Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- K     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 02/01/2011  

Submitted For: Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk, BOS

Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Presenter's Name:

Information

Request/Subject

Request approval of an Application for a Special Event License submitted by the Lions Club of Globe, Arizona,

Inc.

Background Information

A qualified organization may submit an application to serve liquor at a special event for up to 10 days per year.

The Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control (Department) approves all liquor-related applications;

however, part of the Department's process requires the local governing board to review and approve the application

for any establishment located within the jurisdiction of that local governing body.

Evaluation

The Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board of Supervisors has reviewed this application and has determined that it has

been filled out correctly.

Conclusion

This application has been filled out correctly and if the Board of Supervisors approves the application, the Lions

Club of Globe, Arizona, Inc. will have used 1 day of the 10 allowable days to serve liquor at a special event in the

year 2011.

Recommendation

The Chief Deputy Clerk recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve this application.  Upon approval, the

applicant has the responsibility to submit the application to the Department for its final approval.

Suggested Motion

Approval of an Application for Special Event License submitted by the Lions Club of Globe, Arizona, Inc. to serve

liquor at the Gila County Sheriff's Reserve Dance on February 12, 2011, in Globe.

Attachments

Link: Lions Club Special Event Application











    Item #:  5- L     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 02/01/2011  

Reporting Period: July 14, 2010, July 27, 2010, & August 3, 2010, BOS meeting minutes

Submitted For: Marilyn Brewer, Deputy

Clerk, BOS

Submitted By: Marilyn Brewer, Clerk of

the Board of Supervisors

Information

Subject

July 14, 2010, July 27, 2010, & August 3, 2010, BOS meeting minutes

Suggested Motion

Approval of the July 14, 2010, July 27, 2010, and August 3, 2010, BOS meeting minutes.

Attachments

Link: BOS 07-14-10 Meeting Minutes

Link: BOs 07-27-10 Meeting Minutes

Link: BOS 08-03-10 Meeting Minutes



1 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  July 14, 2010 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR      JOHN F. NELSON 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN      By: Marilyn Brewer 
Vice-Chairman             Deputy Clerk 
 
SHIRLEY L. DAWSON      Gila County Courthouse 
Member        Globe, Arizona 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman 
(via ITV conferencing); Shirley L. Dawson, Supervisor; Don E. McDaniel, Jr., 
County Manager; John Nelson, Deputy County Manager, Marian Sheppard, 
Chief Deputy Clerk; and Bryan Chambers, Chief Deputy County Attorney. 
 
Item 1 – Call to Order – Pledge of Allegiance – Invocation 
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in Special Session at 10:00 a.m. this 
date in the Board of Supervisors hearing room.  John Armer led the Pledge of 
Allegiance and Reverend Dennis Bennet of the Ponderosa Baptist Church in 
Payson delivered the invocation.   
 
Item 2 - Update on the activities of the County Supervisors Association 
(CSA) by Craig Sullivan, CSA Executive Director, including a discussion of 
recent legislative activities. 
 
Craig Sullivan, CSA Executive Director, introduced his staff members Todd 
Madeska, Legislative Director, and Annabell Abarka, CSA’s new Research 
Analyst.  Mr. Sullivan stated that he appreciated the ongoing participation and 
commitment that this County has had in the coalition of counties at the CSA.  
He stated, “We benefit from your involvement and we really appreciate all the 
time you spend helping us serve the counties and county constituents.”  He 
then gave a PowerPoint presentation beginning with CSA’s purpose, core goals 
and services.  He then moved on to a Legislative Session Report in which CSA’s 
directives were the State’s budget and minimizing and mitigating fiscal damage 
to counties by the State; advancing county-initiated CSA-sponsored legislation; 
and protecting county interests before the Legislature.  Included in the Session 
Report were the budget impacts to counties by the State where in January, the 
Executive proposal was to shift an additional $10.8 million in FY10 down to the 
15 counties.  This was of grave concern because the counties were already 
dealing with the fiscal downturn and these shifts would have come late in the 



2 

fiscal year and caused additional damage to the county finances.  Through 
CSA’s collective efforts and the counties working together with their legislators, 
this was reduced from $10.8 million to $2.6 million.  It is also anticipated that 
this will be further reduced through a series of grants from the ARRA 
(American Recovery and Reinvestment Act) resources to compensate reducing 
the impact to $825,000.  For FY11, the Executive proposed $97.4 million in 
shifts and fund sweeps impacting counties, including the elimination of the 
State of the Arizona Department of Juvenile Corrections at a savings to the 
State of $63 million and shifting those costs and that inmate population to the 
counties.  The final FY11 budget contained $78.3 million in impacts to 
counties, which included the following:  1) mandated payments from Maricopa 
County; 2) mandated payments to the Arizona State Hospital; 3) required 
Maricopa County to pay 100% of the Superior Court judge salaries; 4) 
eliminated the County Assistance Fund and 5) eliminated Proposition 204 Hold 
Harmless.  CSA is also reviewing additional impacts that are coming down from 
State agencies such as the Arizona Department of Water Resources and the 
Arizona Department of Environmental Quality that received reductions in their 
programs and will no longer be passing down grants and other resources to the 
counties.  So the $78.3 million in impacts is really much larger.  Included in 
the Session Report: State Budget Impacts, Mr. Sullivan stated that the transfer 
of the Arizona Department of Juvenile Corrections and responsibilities to the 
counties was prevented for an additional year to June 30, 2011, and an off 
season commission was put in place to review juvenile justice reform.  
Chairman Pastor inquired if that commission has held a meeting.  Mr. Sullivan 
replied that the committee has assigned its members, but they have not held a 
meeting and he didn’t expect them to meet until after the summer.  The 
‘flexibility language’ was also expanded as follows:  1) for FY11 and FY12, a 
county may meet any county fiscal obligation from any source of county 
revenue, including special taxing districts controlled by the boards of 
supervisors; and 2) exempted major county impacts from expenditure 
limitations.  He reported that the State Legislature did enact the following for 
the FY11 Budget, which did impact all counties including Gila County:  1)  
HURF (Highway User Revenue Funds) were shifted to the Department of Public 
Safety impacting Gila County by $242,250; 2) eliminated the County 
Assistance Fund at a cost to Gila of $550,035; 3) 100% of the Restoration to 
Competency Funds for those prisoners housed at the Arizona State Hospital 
were shifted to the counties at a cost to Gila County of $329,461; 4) 25% of the 
costs for sexually violent prisoners also housed at the Arizona State Hospital 
were shifted to the counties, but did not impact Gila County; 5) maintained the 
increase in the county share of the Justice of the Peace salaries at a cost to 
Gila County of $37,682; and 6) eliminated Proposition 204 Hold Harmless—did 
not impact Gila County; 7) required Maricopa County only to pay 100% of 
Superior Court judge salaries; and 8) county transfers (only for Maricopa and 
Pima Counties).  The total of the costs the State shifted to Gila County was 
$1,159,428.  Mr. Sullivan presented a chart showing the Estimated County 
Impacts in the State budget for FY08-FY11.  Continuing with his Session 



3 

Report, Mr. Sullivan reported on the Estimated Aggregate Impacts for FY08-
FY11 that impacted Gila County as follows:  1) HURF Shifts--$726,750; 2) Lost 
Revenue Streams--$823,190; 3) Program Shifts $792,758; and 4) Mandated 
Contributions/Swept ALTCS (Arizona Long Term Care System) Overpayment--
$183,743 for an estimated total fiscal impact to Gila County of $2,526,441.  He 
reported on legislation that was supported through the work of CSA, whereby 8 
of the 8 CSA-sponsored bills were enacted into law; HB2627 was amended; and 
the Arizona Association of Counties’ agenda was supported.  CSA effectively 
was able to get legislation modified whereby 7 bills were amended to address 
county concerns and legislators were educated regarding elements of the “Jobs 
Bill” and state parks legislation.  Legislation that was directly opposed by CSA 
included 5 bills that were all killed; however, SB1017--elected county officer’s 
authority--and an effort to cap special districts are likely to come back to the 
Legislature in some form next year.  In conclusion, Mr. Sullivan reported that 
the next steps will include the following:  1) with the passage of Proposition 
100, the FY11 State budget depends on 3 additional actions in the amount of 
$863 million as follows:  A)  repeal and sweep of First Things First ($345 
million); B) sweep of the Land Conservation Fund ($124 million); and C) 
extension of the Enhanced FMAP (Federal Medical Assistance Percentages) 
($394 million); 2) a commission on Juvenile Corrections reform is to be set up 
by the State and will include 2 county supervisors or designee with a report 
due to the Legislature by November 20, 2010; and 3) inform legislative 
candidates and constituents regarding impacts of State action on county 
operations.  Mr. Sullivan reminded the Board that the County legislative 
proposals for the next legislative session are due to CSA by September 1, 2010, 
and a review of all county proposals by the supervisors in conjunction with 
CSA will be conducted at the CSA Legislative Policy Summit to be held in 
Thatcher, Arizona on November 8-10, 2010.  He encouraged all supervisors to 
attend.  Supervisor Dawson addressed the damage that was done by the State 
Legislature this year and the programs that were closed and the issues 
counties will be facing in the coming year.  She thanked Mr. Sullivan and his 
staff for their dedication and responsiveness to Arizona counties.  Vice-
Chairman Martin thanked Mr. Sullivan and staff for the clarity and simplicity 
of the information that he shares with not only the supervisors, but with the 
legislators.  She inquired of Mr. Sullivan about his thoughts for the upcoming 
year.  Mr. Sullivan replied that there is a lot of unpredictability right now and 
he believes a full third of the legislators are going to change.  He believes the 
fiscal situation of the State will remain grave and the tools to solve problems 
are more limited.  CSA will be working on monitoring people in the Legislature 
who know local government in the rural areas and are willing to stand up for 
same.  John Nelson, Deputy County Manager, inquired if the commission on 
juvenile correction reform was given a directive on how to do juvenile 
corrections better or on how to transfer it to the counties.  Mr. Sullivan stated 
that there was enormous pressure from CSA that any commission should be 
about the future of juvenile corrections, how the State is going to serve the 
population, how the State is going to resource it and that having a 



4 

predetermined outcome is something that CSA and the counties would never 
accept.  When leadership met with the governor, the charge came out that said, 
“Let’s evaluate the process and oh, by the way, evaluate as well whether we can 
shift it to the counties.”  So it’s still a threat, but he did not believe the 
commission itself has a predetermined outcome.  CSA will be working with the 
membership of the commission to ensure they work with CSA and not be 
driven towards a budget number for the State.  Mr. Nelson also mentioned the 
2 propositions that are now on the November General Election ballot that could 
bring $400 million into the State and questioned if the State has any plans if 
the propositions do not pass.  Mr. Sullivan stated that if the State does have 
plans, they have not been shared with CSA.  Mr. Sullivan stated that John 
Arnold, Office of Strategic Planning and Budgeting (OSPB) Director for the 
governor, will be attending CSA’s management meeting on August 13, 2010, 
and he has requested that Mr. Arnold present the State’s contingency plans on 
that issue.  Mr. Nelson also inquired if OSPB or the Joint Legislative Budget 
Committee (JLBC) have ever come out with an estimate of the amount SB1070 
(Support Our Law Enforcement and Safe Neighborhoods Act) will cost local 
governments.  Mr. Sullivan replied, “Not to my knowledge.”  Mr. Nelson 
inquired if there is any plan by the State for funding local governments for this 
mandated SB1070.  Mr. Sullivan stated that there is no plan at the Legislature, 
but CSA is moving in that direction.  He will also be talking to county 
managers in August on how to put in place tracking mechanisms to help CSA 
build a case once SB1070 is implemented so that CSA can go back and ask for 
additional resources or a resource stream to fund this State mandate.  
Chairman Pastor introduced Don McDaniel, the new Gila County Manager, to 
Mr. Sullivan and thanked Mr. Sullivan for his presentation.   
 
Item 3 - Public Hearing - Truth In Taxation Hearing for 2010-2011. 
Information/Discussion/Action to levy increased property taxes in the 
amount of $493,993.  (Action will be taken by a roll call vote.) 
 
Vice-Chairman Martin advised that she had 2 requests from the public in 
Payson to speak on this item.  John Nelson stated that last week, Gila County 
was fortunate to host members from the Arizona Tax Research Association 
(ATRA), Salt River Project and Arizona Public Service for a review of Gila 
County’s budget.  One of the main areas they reviewed was what the State has 
done to Gila County and how Gila County has handled it.  Mr. Nelson stated 
that what he reported to ATRA was that cost shifts from the State of Arizona to 
Gila County totaled $1.8 million.  He stated that although Mr. Sullivan in his 
CSA presentation stated that the impact to Gila County was $1.159 million, 
Mr. Nelson has also added in the program changes that have affected Gila 
County such as the County’s $300,000 contribution to the community college 
and the cost it will pay for the school resource officers.  He stated that the $1.8 
million cost shifts by the State to Gila County along with the 2% increase from 
both last year and this year totals $900,000, of which half of that has been 
passed on to the taxpayer and the County has absorbed the other half.  With 



5 

the half of the costs absorbed by the County plus the decrease in sales tax of 
$1.5 million along with other cost increases, the total effect to Gila County has 
been $2.5 million.  The budget currently being presented to the Board has a 
budgeted loss of $2.4 million.  The budget has been balanced as required by 
law because the County had the foresight to choose to set aside a rainy day 
fund instead of expanding programs.  If everything in the budget goes as 
projected this year, the County will still have a loss in this year’s budget of $2.4 
million even though half of the hit by the State is being passed onto the 
County’s taxpayers.  Chairman Pastor opened the public hearing and called for 
public comment.  Stan Langham, Joe Pickens and Jeanie Langham, all 
residents of Payson, gave statements on their reasons for opposing an increase 
in property taxes.  Jesse Bryant representing KQSS Radio questioned 
Supervisor Dawson about her comments a few weeks ago when she stated that 
she would be meeting with Mr. Nelson and finding a way in the budget to keep 
from raising taxes and he was curious about the outcome of that meeting.  
Supervisor Dawson replied that the Board would be discussing this as they go 
through the budget process and she had certainly looked very carefully at this 
budget and what needs to be done.  In reference to comments made by the 
public, Supervisor Dawson stated, “I have often stated I would much rather 
give my money to public schools than to the Sheriff’s Office and in particular to 
prisons and building more jails, but that’s where we are at and the more we cut 
money for education, the bigger the jails need to grow.  We, in this budget, 
have money that’s going to fund the operation of a new women’s jail dormitory.  
I often look at those women and wonder if they would have had the opportunity 
for programs that we have eliminated from the public schools, would their life 
have been different?  If we decided not to open the new jail, which is certainly 
an option, we could eliminate $400,000 from this budget.  It would take about 
a year maybe before the federal government would be in here.  We have 32 
women at an average and 40 this morning in an 18-bed facility.  We have little 
plastic boats that they stack underneath the bunks and pull them out for beds.  
I don’t want to pay more taxes.  I don’t want to hurt any small or large 
business, but I want to be able to protect the citizens of this County from the 
federal government coming in here and taking over our jail.  That was a place 
where I really hoped there was a way we could cut costs.  We are mandated to 
treat people humanely.”  She also discussed all of the programs and services 
that have been eliminated by the State for the handicapped children, the 
requirements for treating the county’s prisoners humanely and the various 
other costs that have been passed down to the counties including the full cost 
of restoration to competency ensuring that prisoners have their fair day in 
court.  She stated, “That’s an expense that you and I get to share and if we 
don’t want to share it, there are certainly other countries we can go to where 
people are not given that privilege.  So it comes down to what is the price for 
living in the USA and then it comes down to what is the price for living in 
Arizona?  The price right now in Arizona, I believe, is added to by the State 
leadership that we lack and when we continually vote to pay our legislators 
$24,000/year we get what we have—people who do a really poor job in 



6 

representing us.  I believe that those of us who choose to live in Gila County 
should look carefully at the fact that one of the reasons we don’t live in 
Scottsdale is because we don’t like traffic or crime…I like living in Globe.  So 
with that privilege of living in Gila County, I have to be able to say that my tax 
dollar that I pay won’t go as far as the tax dollar I would pay in Maricopa 
County because there are a thousand people plus to every person in Gila 
County and the amount of land that we have to help support the services that 
are required is only 4%.”  Vice-Chairman Martin stated that County services 
are a full one-third of the County’s budget to operate the Sheriff’s Office and 
another third for the courts and indigent health care.  She stated that when the 
counties were formed, they were formed as an arm of the State, so the County 
has to supply those services and for some services, the County is mandated to 
pay for the entire cost.  Some of the mandates come with funding and some 
don’t.  Vice-Chairman Martin stated, “It’s the strangest setup I ever looked at.  
There is so much that we have to do and we have absolutely no say over where 
the money comes from except for the one little piece we are doing this year and 
years past.  Now the assessed valuation has fallen this year and some of you 
will be paying less taxes because of that.  The 2% increase will be less than 
inflation as that is the cap.”  She stated that the final third of the budget goes 
into health and roads, etc. and the Board has reviewed the budget with a “fine-
tooth comb” and has implemented a 120-day hiring freeze.  She stated that the 
County is doing more with less all the way across the Board as are the other 
elected officials and the County is caught between no leadership at the State 
level while still being mandated to provide services however it can.  She stated 
that because the County had the foresight to put away a rainy day fund over 
the past 10 years, the Board does not now have to shift all of these additional 
costs from the State on to the taxpayers at one time.  She also commented that 
it is true that the taxpayers live on 4% private land in Gila County, but only 
1.5% is productive.  The other 2.5% is generally mine dumps.  So this County 
is run on 1.5% of private land.  She stated that 1 penny in property tax in 
Maricopa County raises approximately $400 million and 1 penny in property 
tax in Gila County raises approximately $40,000.  Vice-Chairman Martin 
stated, “That is why I am always on a tangent to get the forest productive in 
order to get some of the taxes off the back of the small business owner and 
small home owners and get it back onto this natural resource base that we’re 
sitting on and letting it burn up, wash away, etc.”  Ted Lake, a resident of both 
Globe and Mesa and a local reporter, stated that he believes the Board has 
done very well considering what it is facing this year with the budget, but all 
indications are that if there is no improvement in the economy of this State 
there will be a real problem coming.  He stated, “Mr. Nelson said that he put 
this budget together facing a $2.4 million shortfall from the State.  What are 
you going to do next year?  I think you’ve used most of your rainy day fund, 
which is gone and you’ve got a real critical situation.”  Vice-Chairman Martin 
stated to Mr. Lake’s comments that the County does have a deficit budget this 
year of $2.4 million and that is the reason the Board is recommending putting 
in place a hiring freeze of 120 days.  If the County can maintain a 10% vacancy 



7 

factor in the General Fund, which will be tough, it will save the County almost 
$2 million to take down that deficit.  However, as the State starts passing new 
costs to the County, that deficit is going to increase.  She stated, “It is not our 
intention to pass this budget and then forget it.  With the economy we are in 
and the state we are living in, this is going to be a week by week process…Mr. 
Lake is correct.  We cannot spend it (the rainy day fund) all this year.  We’ve 
got a couple more years to go and then we’re going to have to take more drastic 
measures.”  Chairman Pastor stated that this is his second budget review and 
he believes the work Mr. Nelson has done in managing the County finances 
over the last 15 years and moving it in a positive direction, is very 
commendable.  Chairman Pastor stated, “I understand the need we have for 
providing services for our constituents.  I think it’s important and it’s 
unfortunate that they don’t understand all the services that we do provide 
them, but they are there for every citizen that pays taxes in this County and we 
provide them with much pride.”  Vice-Chairman Martin stated, “I would also 
like to echo your appreciation to Mr. Nelson and the Finance Department as it’s 
not an easy thing and they just come through in spades.”  Chairman Pastor 
closed the public hearing and entertained a motion.  Supervisor Dawson made 
the motion to approve a levy to increase property taxes in the amount of 
$493,993.  The motion was seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin.  Chairman 
Pastor then called on Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk, to take the vote by 
roll call.  Chairman Pastor, Vice-Chairman Martin and Supervisor Dawson all 
individually voted “aye” to unanimously increase property taxes in the amount 
of $493,993. 
 
Item 4 – Motion to convene as the Gila County Library District Board of 
Directors.  Information/Discussion/Action to adopt the 2010-2011 fiscal 
year budget for the Gila County Library District in the amount of 
$1,712,058.  
 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Dawson, the 
Board convened as the Gila County Library District Board of Directors.   
 
Jacque Griffin, Assistant County Manager/Librarian, stated that this is the 
same budget that was presented to the Board a few weeks ago and it is listed 
on page 7 of the budget.  There were no changes and the grants that were 
applied for and budgeted for are being received.  The tax rate for the Library 
District will remain the same at $.20 as a secondary tax rate.  She requested 
that the Board adopt the Gila County Library District budget.  Upon motion by 
Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board 
unanimously adopted the 2010-2011 fiscal year budget for the Gila County 
Library District in the amount of $1,712,058.   
 
Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board reconvened as the Gila County Board of Supervisors.   
 



8 

Item 5 – Public Hearing - Information/Discussion/Action to adopt 
Resolution No. 10-07-02, which authorizes the adoption of the 2010-2011 
fiscal year budget for Gila County in the amount of $104,308,843.  (John 
Nelson)  (Action will be taken by a roll call vote.) 
 
Mr. Nelson stated that the budget being presented today is very similar to the 
tentative budget that was previously approved by the Board.  He did make a 
few changes based on the recent hiring of some employees and some 
reorganization.  One position has been moved from Emergency Services-
Fairgrounds to the Board of Supervisors to closer align how the County is set 
up, but no dollar amounts have changed and the total dollars remain the same 
as the tentative budget.  He then reviewed the highlights that were presented 
during the tentative budget process, which included the following:  the tax rate 
proposed in this budget is $4.19, a 2% increase in the tax levy from last year; 
the budget includes 6 new positions for the new 40-bed women’s jail dorm 
expansion and 1 new position for the Sheriff’s Office evidence and storage 
management; and funding for 2 school resource officers that the state is no 
longer funding.  This budget does require $1.8 million from the rainy day fund 
to balance the General Fund.  The General Fund budget, even with the $1.8 
million of rainy day funds, goes from a beginning fund balance of $2 million to 
a contingency or ending fund balance of $1.4 million or a $600,000 loss.  
Recommended in the budget is a continuation of the 120-day hiring freeze and 
no salaries increases are included.  He also noted that listed in the green 
section of the budget are the budgeted positions along with a summary sheet of 
where those positions reside.  About 70% of the cost of the total budget goes to 
law enforcement and the courts and in reviewing the authorized positions in 
the General Fund, 71% of those positions are in the same 2 areas.  Included in 
this budget there are 699.88 budgeted positions and compared to FY 2009, 
there were 708 positions so even with the expansion of staffing for the women’s 
jail and the evidence storage, the County has still decreased slightly about 8 
positions in the last 2 years.  Chairman Pastor opened the public hearing and 
called for public comment; none was received.  Chairman Pastor then closed 
the public hearing.  Supervisor Dawson made some closing comments about 
other counties having made 10%-20% cuts in positions; however Gila County 
has not done that, but instead implemented a hiring freeze.  She also noted the 
many homes in the Hayden-Winkelman area that are boarded shut, but many 
are still paying taxes on their property and hoping that one day they can 
return.  She stated that on a regularly scheduled basis the budget will be 
reviewed during the year and requested the need for all elected officials and 
department heads to be diligent in keeping down costs.  She stated, “I have no 
reason to look at the State Legislature and believe that sanity is going to 
suddenly happen…so we need to be very judicious in this coming year.”  She 
agreed with Mr. Lake’s comments about the upcoming year not looking good so 
the Board will have to watch carefully where the County will be in the coming 
year.  Vice-Chairman Martin thanked all the elected officials for “rolling up 
their sleeves and pulling together…; however next year will be just as tough.”  



9 

She stated, “I appreciate that we have not had to lay anybody off, furlough 
anybody or cut back on services; in fact, we’ve been able to add some services 
in these times.  I think it’s the right thing to do in the times we are in.  I too 
can’t believe the lack of leadership that we have at the state level and what we 
have to do to bridge that gap, but we are all bridging that gap and I’m very 
appreciative of all of us pulling together and making this work.”  She stated 
that the following 2 years could possibly be worse and we could possibly be 
looking at a new bottom in the economy.  Chairman Pastor stated that in 
reviewing the budget and looking at each individual department managed 
through the County, he can see where some of those savings have been gained 
over the year and “It’s a testament to everyone banding together and trying to 
keep us in the position that we are in…Each elected official has taken it upon 
themselves to manage their budgets within restraints and that’s helped us out.  
I just want to express my gratitude.”  Chairman Pastor inquired if a new 
Finance Director has been hired yet.  Mr. Nelson replied that a new Finance 
Director has been hired and he will begin work on June 19, 2010.  Vice-
Chairman Martin made the motion to adopt Resolution No. 10-07-02, which 
authorized the adoption of the 2010-2011 fiscal year budget for Gila County in 
the amount of $104,308,843.  The motion was seconded by Supervisor 
Dawson.  There was a question as to whether Chairman Pastor had closed the 
public hearing; so he closed the public hearing again.  Vice-Chairman Martin 
and Supervisor Dawson repeated the motion and second.  Chairman Pastor 
called on Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk, to take the vote by roll call.  
Chairman Pastor, Vice-Chairman Martin and Supervisor Dawson all 
individually voted “aye” to unanimously adopt Resolution No. 10-07-02.  (A 
copy of the Resolution and the budget are permanently on file in the 
Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
Item 6 - Information/Discussion/Action to discuss the Board of 
Supervisors’ options to proceed with filling the position of Globe Regional 
Justice of the Peace.   
 
Daisy Flores, County Attorney, stated that it was her understanding that Judge 
Patty Nolan, Globe Regional Justice of the Peace, had tendered her resignation 
effective July 30, 2010, leaving a vacancy in that position.  She then read aloud 
the statute A.R.S. §16-230, which states, “The Board (of Supervisors) shall 
appoint a person of the same political party as the person vacating the office to 
fill the portion of the term until the next regular general election.”  She advised 
that Judge Nolan was a Democrat so whoever would be appointed would also 
have to be a Democrat.  The appointed person would only be able to start 
serving after August 1, 2010, and would only serve to the end of the year, a 
period of approximately 5 months.  The person would not be able to run for 
that office because the time for filing petitions and getting on the ballot had 
passed.  Ms. Flores stated, “This is an unusual situation in that whoever takes 
this position is the absolute lame duck because they will not be able to serve 
past the end of December 2010.  Whoever is elected in the General Election 



10 

would begin in January 2011 when they are sworn into office.”  She explained 
that the Board must consider how it will undertake appointing someone to that 
position.  She briefed the Board on the process other counties have used in 
making similar appointments, which included the Board appointing a person to 
serve on a citizens committee that would make a recommendation to the Board 
or people could put in letters of interest directly to the Board or the outgoing 
person could make a recommendation to the Board.  The statute does not set a 
time limit for when the Board needs to make an appointment; it just says that 
“you shall.”  Ms. Flores stated that it is her understanding from Superior Court 
Judge Cahill that even though there will be a new Justice of the Peace coming 
in if the Board determines to appoint somebody, he still has authority over the 
Justice Court, through a directive from the presiding judge of the Supreme 
Court.  He still has the power to appoint a pro tempore (pro tem) judge who can 
still function and keep the court running during the time that there is not a 
Justice of the Peace, in order to hear whatever matters come before the court.  
She stated that Rebecca Baeza, as a Magistrate, has sat from time to time for 
Judge Nolan and she would still be there.  It was also Ms. Flores’ 
understanding that Judge Cahill does have a plan for appointing a pro tem 
judge.  She then reviewed the qualifications for any candidate, which would 
include being a Democrat, must be at least 18 years old, live in the jurisdiction 
that they would possibly be elected from, be able to sign their name and be 
registered to vote.  If an attorney is interested in the position, he/she is 
required to cease privately practicing law because a judge cannot have his/her 
own separate law practice while serving as a Justice of the Peace.  She advised 
that decision would be made by the Board as to how to determine if anyone is 
interested in being appointed to the position and what process the Board would 
go through in determining who it would like to appoint.  Chairman Pastor 
stated that he met with Superior Court Judge Cahill several times in the past 
couple of weeks and the Judge stated that there is an attorney, a retired 
Justice of the Peace, another sitting Justice of the Peace and others that have 
been used as pro tem judges and the suggestion has been that the Board 
possibly ask them to fill in through scheduling by Judge Cahill’s office to serve 
as pro tem judges and in instances when none of them could be available, 
Rebecca Baeza would pick up that load and stay in her current position.  That 
would allow the Court to run without any temporary appointment since it is 
only for 5 months and there are currently 3 candidates running for the office of 
the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace.  Chairman Pastor stated that the 
Board could appoint one of the 3, but he would rather afford all 3 candidates 
the opportunity to run and be elected by the voters.  Supervisor Dawson stated 
that she would like to leave the position in the hands of Judge Cahill and as 
soon as the Board canvasses the General Election results in November, 
whoever is elected could take office at that time even though the person’s term 
would not start until January 1st.  And if the Democrat person running wins 
the election, the Board could appoint that person to finish out the last 2 
months of Judge Nolan’s term.  Vice-Chairman Martin stated that it makes 
sense to her to let Judge Cahill fill in with pro tem judges since it’s only 5 



11 

months and if a Democrat is elected, the Board could appoint that individual 
after the election.  Chairman Pastor stated, “The Globe Regional Justice Court 
has been under the Supreme Court’s umbrella for the past year and with 
Presiding Judge Cahill managing it, I think his suggestion has some value for 
the County.  Legally we would be okay following that plan and then if we have 
to, we will appoint someone.”  Ms. Flores advised, “All the statute says is that 
‘you shall appoint.’  It doesn’t tell when you have to appoint and we are in a 
very unusual situation.  I couldn’t find anything that was similar in Arizona 
especially in this scenario since Judge Cahill does actually have specific 
authority over the court already and it appears that he can maintain judicial 
guidance over the court in the interim.”  Mary Hawkins, Court Administrator, 
stated that she wanted to make it clear that Judge Cahill will either work with 
whomever the Board appoints at this time or work with the pro tems.  Upon 
motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board 
unanimously approved leaving the position of Globe Regional Justice of the 
Peace open with Judge Cahill appointing pro tem judges to fill in and he would 
return to the Board if that becomes a difficulty or a problem in the functioning 
of the Globe Regional Justice Court.   
 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 11:34 a.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
________________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk 



1 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  July 27, 2010 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR      JOHN F. NELSON 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN      By: Marilyn Brewer 
Vice-Chairman             Deputy Clerk 
 
SHIRLEY L. DAWSON      Gila County Courthouse 
Member        Globe, Arizona 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman 
(via ITV conferencing); Shirley L. Dawson, Supervisor; John Nelson, Deputy 
County Manager, Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk; and Bryan Chambers, 
Chief Deputy County Attorney. 
 
Item 1 – Call to Order – Pledge of Allegiance – Invocation 
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in Special Session at 10:00 a.m. this 
date in the Board of Supervisors hearing room.  Darryl Griffin led the Pledge of 
Allegiance and Reverend Rula Colvin of St. Paul’s United Methodist Church in 
Globe delivered the invocation.   
 
Item 2 - Presentation of the Gila County Probation Department’s 
Employee Recognition Awards.   
 
Kendall Rhyne, Chief Probation Officer, presented the 2009 Employee 
Recognition awards to the following employees of the Probation and Juvenile 
Detention Departments:  The “Employee of the Year” was awarded to Traci 
Borquez; the “Detention Officer of the Year” was awarded to Roland Valencia; 
the “Probation Officer of the Year” was awarded to Brenda Newton; and the 
“Supervisor of the Year” was awarded to Debbie Carl.  Mr. Rhyne thanked the 
Board for the opportunity to recognize these employees.  He stated that last 
week was the American Probation and Parole Association Week in which all 
probation staff and detention officers were honored with a small token of 
appreciation and he also presented a token of appreciation to each Board 
member.  On behalf of the Board, Chairman Pastor thanked Mr. Rhyne and his 
staff for their dedication and efforts.   
 
Item 3 - Motion to convene as the Gila County Library District Board of 
Directors.  Information/Discussion/Action to accept Arizona Early 
Childhood Development and Health Board Grant (also known as First 
Things First Grant) number FTF-RC004-0272-00 in the amount of $45,000 



2 

to expand the capacity of existing early language and literacy programs 
throughout the service area of the “Gila Regional Partnership Council.”   
 
Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board convened as the Gila County Library District Board of Directors.  
 
Jacque Griffin, Assistant County Manager/Librarian, requested that the Board 
accept this grant award of $45,000 for the Gila County Library District to act 
as the pass-through agency and facilitator for this First Things First grant.  
The Library District staff and the local public library staffs throughout Gila 
County will host workshops teaching parents and caregivers about the 
importance of early literacy and what early literacy skills are, etc.  Parents 
attending workshops are eligible to be enrolled in the Imagination Library 
Effort, which is the Dolly Parton Foundation for providing books to children at 
home to help foster a love of reading and encourage parents to read to their 
children.  The grant provides additional training, travel, programming and 
books that will be mailed to the children’s homes.  The Gila Regional 
Partnership service area is all of Gila County except for San Carlos and the 
White Mountain areas as they have their own regional council, which did not 
identify early literacy as a priority for their First Things First efforts; however, 
training will be provided to the San Carlos Library staff.  Ms. Griffin stated that 
about 30% of the children that start kindergarten do not have the language 
skills necessary to be successful readers, so the Library District is attempting 
to affect change.  However, it will take more than one year so Ms. Griffin would 
like to have this be a sustaining program.  If First Things First retains its 
funding, the Library District will be applying for funding again next year; 
however, if it is not funded, Ms. Griffin will need to be fundraising in other 
areas to try to sustain this effort.  The Board discussed the possible cuts in 
State funding, but highly supported the continuation of this program.  Upon 
motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Dawson, the Board 
unanimously accepted the Arizona Early Childhood Development and Health 
Board Grant (also known as First Things First Grant) number FTF-RC004-
0272-00 in the amount of $45,000 to expand the capacity of existing early 
language and literacy programs throughout the service area of the “Gila 
Regional Partnership Council.”   
 
Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board reconvened as the Gila County Board of Supervisors.   
 
Item 4 – Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 10-07-03 
reorganizing the Canyon Fire District as regulated by Arizona House Bill 
2666 (A.R.S. §48-804 and §48-805), which goes into effect on July 29, 
2010.   
 
Linda Eastlick, Elections Director, stated that reorganizing the Canyon Fire 
District as regulated by Arizona House Bill 2666 was passed by the Legislature 
and it affects all fire districts in the State that currently have an elected fire 



3 

chief and secretary/treasurer.  Gila County has 2 such fire districts—Canyon 
Fire District and Tri-City Fire District.  All of the other fire districts are run by a 
board of directors.  By virtue of HB 2666, it requires that all fire districts be 
changed from a fire chief and secretary/treasurer to either a 3 or 5-member 
board and that is determined by population.  A.R.S. §48-803 requires that the 
Board of Supervisors estimate the population so that the size of the elected 
board can be determined.  A.R.S §48-803 was used to estimate the population 
based upon the census data available as well as dwelling statistics from the 
Gila County Assessor’s Office.  It has been determined that the Canyon Fire 
District would result in a 3-member board and the Tri-City Fire District would 
result in a 5-member board (agenda item number 5 below).  Ms. Eastlick then 
read aloud the proposed Resolution.  Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, 
seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously adopted 
Resolution No. 10-07-03 reorganizing the Canyon Fire District as regulated by 
Arizona House Bill 2666 (A.R.S. §48-804 and §48-805), which goes into effect 
on July 29, 2010.  Vice-Chairman Martin questioned for clarification that 
between now and December 1, 2010, whether the subject fire districts are in 
the process of electing a board of directors.  Ms. Eastlick stated that those 
candidates will be placed on the November 2010 General Election ballot.   (A 
copy of the Resolution is permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ 
Office.) 
 
Item 5 – Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No. 10-07-04 
reorganizing the Tri-City Fire District as regulated by Arizona House Bill 
2666 (A.R.S. §48-804 and §48-805), which goes into effect on July 29, 
2010.   
 
Ms. Eastlick stated that the elements of this Resolution are essentially the 
same as they were for the Canyon Fire District (agenda item number 4 above); 
however, in the case of the Tri-City Fire District because the population is 
higher with an estimated 7,399 inhabitants, it will go to a 5-member board.  
Upon inquiry by Chairman Pastor, Ms. Eastlick clarified that all candidates 
that are interested in serving on the board, regardless of the number, will all be 
listed on the ballot; however, only 5 people will be elected for the Tri-City Fire 
District board and only 3 will be elected for the Canyon Fire District board.  
Vice-Chairman Martin inquired as to the deadline for submitting petitions to 
run for these board positions.  Ms. Eastlick replied that the deadline is August 
4, 2010, and quite a few petitions have been requested.  Upon motion by 
Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board 
unanimously adopted Resolution No. 10-07-04 reorganizing the Tri-City Fire 
District as regulated by Arizona House Bill 2666 (A.R.S. §48-804 and §48-805), 
which goes into effect on July 29, 2010.  (A copy of the Resolution is 
permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
Item 6 - Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Resolution No 10-07-05 
authorizing the submission of a Grant Application to the Arizona 
Department of Transportation (ADOT) for Transportation Enhancement 



4 

(TE) Program Round 18 funds in the amount of $506,903 with a match 
requirement of $28,893 to be used for landscaping and scenic 
beautification and pedestrian/bus stops in the Pine and Strawberry areas.   
 
Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director, stated that this grant was 
previously applied for and denied.  He stated that Diana Jones, Public Works 
Management Analyst, researched the reason the application was denied and it 
had to do with the style of the bus stop shelters.  The ADOT board did not feel 
that it was aesthetically pleasing with the landscape in the Pine/Strawberry 
area.  Ms. Jones is now reviewing different bus stop shelters and in particular 
one that is currently being used in the United Kingdom that might be better.  
They are wood and if the County receives the grant, there will be an attempt to 
find a composite material that appears to be wood, but be would water 
resistant and not decay.  He stated that this is a normal transportation 
enhancement grant that the County applies for yearly.  In past years the grants 
received have been used for the Fairgrounds entrance, preparation to go into 
the design phase for college sidewalks, and the sidewalks that go from Horne 
Motor Company to the 4-way stop at the cemetery.  He stated that it does seem 
like a lot of money for bus stops; however, because federal dollars are involved, 
it requires the County to go through the full NEPA (National Environmental 
Policy Act) process along with a lot of other hoops to jump through.  Supervisor 
Dawson stated that she thought most bus stops were going to solar stops and 
inquired if that would be something that doesn’t fit aesthetically with the Pine 
and Strawberry areas.  Mr. Stratton stated that if the grant is awarded to Gila 
County, the County will look further into other details for the bus stops, but 
right now it is just the style that is being reviewed.  Chairman Pastor stated 
that since the bus stops will be located in the Pine-Strawberry area with all the 
trees there, the County should make sure that there is adequate sunlight 
before committing to solar stops.  Mr. Stratton agreed.  Vice-Chairman Martin 
stated that she was just in that area recently and the bus stops really do need 
to be replaced so she is glad that he is submitting this grant application again.  
Mr. Stratton stated that if the Board approves the submittal of this grant 
application, it will then be given to Bill Leister, Transportation Manager of 
Central Arizona Association of Governments, to make a presentation to the 
ADOT committee.  Vice-Chairman Martin inquired if part of the design was the 
problem because it wasn’t visible enough inside the bus stop.  Mr. Stratton 
stated that the feedback Ms. Jones received was that they looked too modern.  
The latest one being reviewed is completely plexi-glass with a steel frame 
around it for safety reasons.  He will continue to work with the committee to 
find something that is aesthetically pleasing to them and still provide for the 
safety of the citizens.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by 
Supervisor Dawson, the Board unanimously adopted Resolution No 10-07-05 
authorizing the submission of a Grant Application to the Arizona Department 
of Transportation (ADOT) for Transportation Enhancement (TE) Program Round 
18 funds in the amount of $506,903 with a match requirement of $28,893 to 
be used for landscaping and scenic beautification and pedestrian/bus stops in 



5 

the Pine and Strawberry areas.  (A copy of the Resolution is permanently on 
file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
Item 7 - Information/Discussion/Action to award a contract for Request 
for Sealed Bids No. 052510-1 – Public Works Complex Privacy Wall. 
 
Mr. Stratton stated that a few weeks ago the Board authorized the newspaper 
advertisement of this project.  The privacy wall will be approximately 700 feet 
long and will border the Bearup and Teague properties as a separation between 
their properties and the County complex.  The wall will be designed like the 
ADOT sound walls that are used on freeways so it will not only be a privacy 
wall, but a sound deflection to the neighbors as well.  He stated that in the 
plans it shows the wall being 7 feet to 7.5 feet high; however, one foot of the 
wall will be buried on the bottom per ADOT specs so the actual height of the 
wall will be 6 feet in most places and 6.5 feet in a couple of places because of 
the terrain.  The colored block will be tan or brown smooth-faced block, the top 
2 courses will be split-faced on both sides and the columns will be 10% split-
faced on both sides so that either side of the wall will look the same.  He 
recommended that the contract be awarded to SDB, Inc. in the amount of 
$82,988.  Chairman Pastor questioned if the 60-day completion time would be 
sufficient.  Mr. Stratton stated that would be sufficient time and he noted that 
SDB, Inc. is already on site working on the truck shop in the road yard and is 
willing to start the project on Monday.  They could start the project between the 
Administration Building and the Bearup property and get out of that area 
quickly before it becomes very congested with other construction.  Chairman 
Pastor inquired if the Public Facilities project will be completed by the end of 
this year.  Mr. Stratton replied that he was hoping to be in the building by the 
end of October; however, the building manufacturers have pushed back the 
building date, which is out of the County’s control, so the estimated time of 
completion is now December.  Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded 
by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously awarded a contract for 
Request for Sealed Bids No. 052510-1 for the Public Works Complex Privacy 
Wall to SDB, Inc. in the amount of $82,988. 
 
Item 8 - Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of 
Request for Sealed Bids No. 060110-1 for janitorial services in all Gila 
County Globe, Arizona facilities.   
 
Mr. Stratton stated that the County would like to advertise for janitorial 
services to clean the buildings at night because it is time to go out and review 
new bids.  Vice-Chairman Martin inquired about prisoners doing the janitorial 
services.  Mr. Stratton stated that there are a lot of confidential areas and 
everyone that is employed by the janitorial service company has to clear a 
background check by the Sheriff’s Office.  If they don’t clear the background 
check, they cannot be employed to work in the County’s complex.  So it’s a 
security issue.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by 



6 

Supervisor Dawson, the Board unanimously authorized the advertisement of 
Request for Sealed Bids No. 060110-1 for janitorial services in all Gila County 
Globe, Arizona facilities.   
 
Item 9 - Information/Discussion/Action to award a contract for Request 
for Sealed Bids No. 042910-1 for the purchase of new full size, two door, 
¾ ton, 4x4 truck(s) for Gila County Fleet Management. 
 
Mr. Stratton stated that the County would like to award a contract for 2 
trucks—1 to the Roads Department and 1 to Fleet Management to be utilized 
by the Facilities Department.  He recommended that the contract be awarded 
to McSpadden Ford in the amount of $24,482.99 per truck.  Upon motion by 
Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board 
unanimously awarded a contract to McSpadden Ford for Request for Sealed 
Bids No. 042910-1 for the purchase of 2 full sized, two door, ¾ ton, 4x4 trucks, 
1 for the Roads Department and 1 for Fleet Management  in the amount of 
$24,482.99 per truck.  Mr. Stratton stated that this will not increase the size of 
the fleet as both are replacement vehicles.   
 
Item 10 - CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS: 
 
A. Approval to accept an application submitted by William Glaunsinger for 

the transfer of a water utility franchise from Bonita Creek Land and 
Homeowners Association to Bonita Creek Property and Preservation 
Association. 
 

B. Approval of an Order to appoint election board workers for the purpose 
of conducting the Primary Election on Tuesday, August 24, 2010. 
 

C. Approval of an Order to appoint poll workers for the purpose of 
conducting the Primary Election on Tuesday, August 24, 2010. 
 

D. Approval of an Order to designate polling places for the Primary 
Election on Tuesday, August 24, 2010. 
 

E. Approval of a Peace Officer Training Fund Grant Agreement (AZ POST      
Contract No. 2010-044) between the Arizona Peace Officer Standards 
and Training Board and the Gila County Sheriff’s Office in the amount 
of $4,000 of which said funds will be used to purchase associated 
equipment for the firearms simulator. 
 

F. Approval of Intergovernmental Agreement Amendment No. 1 (Contract 
No. YH08-0080-01) between the Arizona Health Care Cost Containment 
System (AHCCCS) Administration, Division of Business and Finance, 
and the Gila County Sheriff’s Office to update rates and extend the 
term of this agreement from November 25, 2009, through November 



7 

24, 2010.  This agreement applies to Gila County 
Inmate/Eligibility/Inpatient Health Care Services. 
 

G. Approval of Amendment No. 2 to Gila County Contract No. 020708-1 
(MC-800TR Chip Seal Oil) that is between Gila County and Wright 
Asphalt Products Co. to extend the contract period for one (1) year, 
from August 22, 2010, to August 22, 2011, per Section 3.2 of the 
contract.  
 

H. Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Gila County Contract No. 120307-2 
(Pavement Marking) that is between Gila County and Traffic Safety Inc. 
to extend the contract period for one (1) year, from August 4, 2010, to 
August 4, 2011, per Section 2.2 of the contract.  
 

I. Approval of revisions to Public Works Division Policy No. 10-01 –       
“Hazardous Energy Control/Lockout-Tagout” for minor changes in 
Section 2 of the Policy. 
 

J. Approval of Amendment No. 13 (RFQVA No. DDD-704011) between the 
Arizona Department of Economic Security/Division of Developmental 
Disabilities (DES/DDD) and Gila County Division of Health and 
Community Services, Gila Employment and Special Training, to allow 
qualified vendors to add respiratory therapy services under this 
agreement. 
 

K. Approval of 3 Amendments to the Intergovernmental Agreements 
between Gila County d/b/a Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Board and 
the following providers:  Manpower, Central Arizona Association of 
Governments (CAAG), and Gila County Re-Employment and Pre-Layoff 
Center (REPAC) to reflect an increase in square footage in the Casa 
Grande Comprehensive One-Stop Center beginning July 1, 2010, in 
order to provide integrated employment and training services in 
accordance with the Workforce Investment Act. 
 

L. Approval of Amendment No. 1 to an Intergovernmental Agreement 
Contract No. DE101144-001) between Gila County d/b/a Gila/Pinal 
Workforce Investment Board and Arizona Department of Economic 
Security, Rehabilitation Services Administration, to change the 
contract termination date from June 20, 2014, to July 15, 2010. 
 

M. Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. HG050277) 
between the Arizona Department of Health Services and Gila County 
Health Department (Division of Health and Community Services) to 
continue providing WIC (Women, Infants & Children) services to the 
population of Gila and Greenlee Counties for the period October 1, 
2010, through September 30, 2013.   
 



8 

N. Approval for renewal of a Grant Application which also becomes the 
grant award contract (GRA-STATE-10-0070-01) between First Things 
First and the Gila County Health Department (Division of Health and 
Community Services) to continue providing child care health 
consultant services.  The term has been extended from July 1, 2010, to 
June 30, 2011, and the contract amount has been increased to 
$26,667. 
 

O. Approval of Amendment No. 4 to an Intergovernmental Agreement 
(Contract No. HG854565) between the Arizona Department of Health 
Services and the Gila County Health Department (Division of Health 
and Community Services) for the County to provide continued 
Tuberculosis Control Program services.  This amendment changes the 
line item expenses. 

 
P. Approval of Grant Contract No. HI161015 between the Arizona 

Department of Health Services (ADHS) and the Gila County Health 
Department (Division of Health and Community Services) for the 
continued provision of Health Start Program services.  ADHS has 
issued this amendment to cover July 1, 2010, and it shall continue for 
a period of 3 months until the RFP (Request for Proposal) is awarded. 
 

Q. Approval of the appointment of John Perlman as Globe Regional 
Justice of the Peace Pro Tempore for the period of August 1, 2010, to 
July 31, 2011. 
 

R. Approval of the June 8, 2010, BOS meeting minutes.    
 

S. Approval of the June 2010 monthly departmental activity reports 
submitted by the Clerk of the Superior Court, Globe Regional Justice of 
the Peace, Payson Regional Justice of the Peace, Globe Regional 
Constable and Payson Regional Constable, and approval of the Globe 
Regional Constable’s yearly report.  (Copies of these reports are 
available in the Clerk of the Board Department.) 
 

T. Approval of personnel reports/actions for the weeks July 14, 2010,       
July 20, 2010, and July 27, 2010. 
 
July 14, 2010 
 
Temporary Hires to County Service: 
1. Ronald Carnahan – County Attorney – IT Administration and Support 

Technician – 07/12/10 – General Fund 
Departmental Transfers: 
2. Porter Wilbanks – Public Works Consolidated Roads – From Road 

Maintenance/Equipment Operator – To Road Maintenance/Equipment 
Operator Senior – 07/05/10 – Public Works Fund 



9 

SHERIFF’S PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS 
Departures from  County Service: 
3. Catherine Hines - Sheriff's Office – 911 Dispatcher – 06/23/10 – General 

Fund – DOH 06/21/10 - Resigned 
Hires to County Service: 
4. Anjanette Bollinger - Sheriff's Office – RN – 07/19/10 - General Fund – 

New Position 
5. Charlene Gable – Sheriff's Office – 911 Dispatcher – 07/19/10- General 

Fund – Replacing Catherine Hines 
 
July 20, 2010 
Departure from County Service: 
1. James Parker – County Attorney – Deputy County Attorney Senior – 

07/16/10 – Drug Prosecution Recovery Act Fund – DOH 05/27/07 – 
Resigned 

Hire to County Service: 
2. Joseph Heatherly – Finance – Finance Director – 07/19/10 – General 

Fund – Replacing Richard Gaona 
Temporary Hire to County Service: 
3. Peter DeNinno – Judge Pro Tempore – Temporary Judge Pro Tempore – 

07/05/10 – From General Fund to Payson Court Commissioner Fund 
Departmental Transfers: 
4. Chris Phillips – Health and Community Services – From Accounting 

Clerk – To Community Health Assistant Senior – 06/28/10 – Change in 
Funding Percentages 

End Probationary Period: 
5. Elizabeth Mata – Elections – Administrative Clerk – 06/21/10 – General 

Fund 
6. Sue Pontel – Assessor – Mapping Technician – 07/05/10 – General Fund 
Position Review: 
7. Ramai Alvarez – County Attorney – Deputy County Attorney Senior – 

07/19/10 – General Fund – Five years trial practice three step increase 
8. Gary Scales – Superior Court – Judge Pro Tempore – 07/05/10 – Change 

in Funding Percentages 
SHERIFF’S PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS 
Departures from County Service: 
9. Malinda Harris – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 07/09/10 – General 

Fund – DOH 10/16/06 – Terminated 
10. Brenda Cornell – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 07/06/10 – 

   General Fund – DOH 04/30/07 – Resigned 
Departmental Transfers: 
11. Sarah Haynie – Sheriff’s Office – From Administrative Clerk – To 9/11    

   Dispatcher – 08/16/10 – General Fund 
 
July 27, 2010 
Departures from County Service: 



10 

1. Loretta Rende – Public Fiduciary – Public Fiduciary Assistant – 07/08/10 
- General Fund – DOH 12/31/07 – Resigned 

2. Genevieve Martinez – Probation Juvenile Detention – Juvenile Detention 
Shift Supervisor – 07/16/10 - General Fund – DOH 11/25/98 – 
Terminated 

Hires to County Service: 
3. Joanna McDaniel – Public Fiduciary – Public Fiduciary Assistant – 

07/19/10 - General Fund – Replacing Loretta Rende 
Temporary Hire to County Service: 
4. Renee Omstead - Health and Community Services – Accounting Clerk – 

07/12/10 – Various Funds  
5. John R. Dzera – Constituent Services II – Temporary Laborer – 07/26/10 

– General Fund 
6. Amanda Roady – Division of Health and Community Services – 

Accountant – 07/27/10 – WIA and Housing Funds 
Position Review: 
7. Janice McGann – County Attorney – Legal Secretary Senior – 07/01/10 –

From 20% ACJC Fund and 80% General Fund To 100% General Fund 
Request Permission to Post: 
8. Public Works Engineering – Construction Project Manager – Vacated by 

Lex Sheppard 
SHERIFF’S PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS 
Hires to County Service: 
9. Edward McGuire - Sheriff's Office – 911 Dispatcher – 08/02/10 – 

General Fund -Replacing LeeAnn Hulbert 
Departmental Transfers: 
10. Annamaria Schutter – From Assessor – To Sheriff's Office – From  

  Property Appraiser I – To 911 Dispatcher – 08/02/10 - General Fund  
 

U. Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of July 
14, 2010, July 20, 2010, and July 27, 2010.  (separate handout) 

 
July 14, 2010 
 
$2,098,055.50 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 
228563 through 228754. 

 
July 20, 2010 
 
$1,821,364.39 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 
228755 through 228940.   
 
July 27, 2010 
 
$2,090,324.43 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 
228941 through 229156.  (An itemized list of disbursements is 
permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.)   



11 

 
Chairman Pastor stated that although the recommendation for a new County 
Finance Director is on the Consent Agenda (Item T above) today for approval by 
the Board, he wanted to introduce Joseph Heatherly, who was one of the 
candidates and has actually been on the job for 2 weeks.  He stated that Mr. 
Heatherly is a local gentleman having started his career in the Globe-Miami 
area.  Mr. Pastor stated, “He’s been out in the world working in various 
financial positions in the mining industry and I just wanted to introduce him.”  
Mr. Heatherly was welcomed by the Board members.  Upon motion by 
Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board 
unanimously approved Consent Agenda item numbers 10A-10U.   
 
Item 11 - CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 
benefit to allow individuals to address issue(s) within the Board’s 
jurisdiction.  Board members may not discuss items that are not 
specifically identified on the agenda. Therefore, pursuant to Arizona 
Revised Statute §38-431.01(G), action taken as a result of public 
comment will be limited to directing staff to study the matter, responding 
to criticism, or scheduling the matter for further discussion and decision 
at a future date. 
 
There were no requests to speak from the public. 
 
Item 12 - At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
31.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the Chief 
Administrator may present a brief summary of current events.  No action 
may be taken on issues presented.   
 
Each Board member presented information on current events.   
 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 10:57 a.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
________________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk 
 



1 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  August 3, 2010 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR      JOHN F. NELSON 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN      By: Marian Sheppard 
Vice-Chairman             Chief Deputy Clerk 
 
SHIRLEY L. DAWSON      Gila County Courthouse 
Member        Globe, Arizona 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman 
(via ITV conferencing); Shirley L. Dawson, Supervisor; Don McDaniel, Jr., 
County Manager; John  Nelson, Deputy County Manager; Marian Sheppard, 
Chief Deputy Clerk; and Bryan Chambers, Chief Deputy County Attorney. 
 
Item 1 – Call to Order – Pledge of Allegiance – Invocation 
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a regular session at 10:00 a.m. 
this date in the Board of Supervisors hearing room.  Due to some technical 
difficulty with the audio recording system, Chairman Pastor did not call the 
meeting to order until 10:20 a.m.  Joe Heatherly led the Pledge of Allegiance 
and Reverend Rich Richie of the First Church of the Nazarene in Payson 
delivered the invocation.   
 
Item 2 - Recognition of 17 employees for July’s “Spotlight on Employees” 
program.  
 
Juley Bocardo-Homan, Deputy Personnel Director, read aloud a letter dated 
February 1, 2010, that was sent by 12 residents of lower Sycamore Lane in 
Tonto Basin to commend 17employees of the Gila County Public Works 
Division and Sheriff’s Office during a flooding event in that area earlier this 
year.  The following employees were recognized:  Mark Cline, Lonny Cline, 
Brent Cline, Peter Licavoli, Karen Baltz, Thoreina Hensley, John France, 
Thomas Buckner, Thor Nudson, Craig Smith, Chris Bender, J. Adam 
Shepherd, David Hornung, Tim Scott, Leonard Kerszykowski, Wayne Dorsett 
and William Newman.  Each Board member thanked these employees for their 
efforts and Chairman Pastor commented that it was gratifying to see this 
number of citizens make the effort to show their appreciation.   
 



2 

Item 3 - Information/Discussion/Action to award a contract for Request 
for Statement of Qualifications No. 040110 - Central Heights Storage 
Building Roof Replacement Project.  
 
Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director, advised that when a company 
submits a statement of qualifications and experience, the next step in the 
process is to grade that company based on the following criteria:  general 
information, experience and qualifications, experience of key personnel 
assigned to the project, an understanding of the project, the approach that will 
be taken to complete the project, and the principle office and local 
participation.  There were 5 evaluators for this project and Custom Roofing 
Company, Inc. received the highest grade.  Mr. Stratton recommended that a 
contract be awarded to Custom Roofing Company, Inc. in the amount of 
$68,464.  He added that the cost estimate for this project was $100,000 to 
$150,000.  Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman 
Martin, the Board unanimously awarded a contract for Statement of 
Qualifications No. 040110 - Central Heights Storage Building Roof 
Replacement Project to Custom Roofing Company, Inc. in the amount of 
$68,464.  Mr. Stratton stated that until the roof is removed, the cost of the 
decking material is unknown; however, a per square foot price of $45 per 
plywood sheet was quoted by Custom Roofing.  He added that if the whole deck 
is bad, the per square foot price will be even further reduced. 
 
Item 4 - Information/Discussion/Action regarding Request for Sealed Bids 
No. 051410-1 – VHF Radio Equipment and Installation for the Gila County 
Sheriff’s Detention Bureau. 
 
Adam Shepherd, Undersheriff, stated, “When we started this bid, we found out 
that our bid specs we had originally let out were coming up a bit short…Since 
this is a one shot deal, we really wanted to spend this money wisely…We’re 
planning some upgrades.”  He then requested that the Board reject all bids and 
he added that to his knowledge no bids were submitted.  Upon motion by Vice-
Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Dawson, the Board unanimously 
rejected all bids submitted for Request for Sealed Bids No. 051410-1 – VHF 
Radio Equipment and Installation for the Gila County Sheriff’s Detention 
Bureau. 
 
Item 5 - Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Chairman to 
sign a letter to the Arizona Department of Administration authorizing 
Accenture LLP to act on the County’s behalf with regard to 
telecommunications services with Qwest and Cox Communications. 
 
Darryl Griffin, Information Technology Department Director, provided 
information for this agenda item.  Accenture has the contract 
(through 2012) to manage the State's telecommunications network (also known 
as AZNet) for roughly 140 State agencies and boards.  As part of the 



3 

management contact, Accenture does the ordering of all carrier services - both 
local and long distance - for those State agencies and boards, which would of 
course include the Arizona Department of Administration (ADOA).  After Mr. 
Griffin briefly explained the services provided to Gila County by Qwest and Cox 
Communications, Chairman Pastor asked for a motion on this agenda item.  
Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board unanimously authorized the Chairman to sign a letter to the Arizona 
Department of Administration authorizing Accenture LLP to act on the 
County’s behalf with regard to telecommunications services with Qwest and 
Cox Communications. 
 
Before asking for a motion to approve the Consent Agenda items, Chairman 
Pastor advised that a discussion needed to be held regarding item 6C.  This 
item was an approval of an agreement with SuiteOne Media.  Vice-Chairman 
Martin asked Darryl Griffin to clarify that when “streaming media” is 
discussed, it means only streaming the audio portion of the Board meetings.  
Mr. Griffin confirmed that streaming media only refers to audio streaming at 
this time.  No further discussion was held on this item. 
 
Chairman Pastor advised that Consent Agenda item 6A needed to be tabled 
and he requested a motion. Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by 
Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously tabled Consent Agenda item 
6A.  
 
Item 6 - CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS: 
 
A.  Approval of Contract Solicitation No. ADHS11-00000128 (if approved 
this paperwork then becomes the Contract Agreement) being submitted by 
the Division of Health and Community Services to the Arizona 
Department of Health Services (ADHS) to provide folic acid services to 
eligible clients in Gila County.  (Tabled above) 

 
B.  Approval of Amendment No. 1 to an Intergovernmental Agreement 
(Contract No. DE101133001) between the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors d/b/a Gila-Pinal Workforce Investment Board and the Arizona 
Department of Economic Security to reflect an increase in office and 
storage space in the Casa Grande Comprehensive One-Stop Center 
effective September 1, 2009 in order to provide integrated employment 
and training services in accordance with the Workforce Investment Act. 

 
C.  Approval of the SuiteOne Media Services Agreement between SuiteOne 
Media, Inc. and Gila County to provide and administer streaming media 
and media content management services for the Gila County Board of 
Supervisors’ meetings through a managed services solution effective 
September 1, 2010, through August 31, 2011. 
 



4 

D. Approval of the June 2010 monthly departmental activity report 
submitted by the Recorder. (A copy of this report is on file in the Clerk of 
the Board Department.) 
 
E.  Approval of personnel reports/actions for the week of August 3, 2010. 
 
Departures from County Service: 
1. Joshua Cota – BOS – Temporary Laborer – 07/22/10 – Constituent Services 

II Fund – DOH  06/07/10 – Terminated 
2. Daniel Mikolay - Health and Community Services – Accountant – 07/30/10 

– Various Funds – DOH 02/22/10 – Resigned 
3. Angela Ramirez – Globe Regional JP Court – Justice Court Clerk Associate – 

07/23/10 – General Fund – DOH 08/09/00 – Resigned 
4. John Sanchez – Public Works Facilities Management – Building 

Maintenance Technician – 08/27/10 – Facilities Management Fund – DOH 
01/18/05 – Resigned 

5. Christopher Siegel – BOS - Temporary Laborer – 07/22/10 – Constituent 
Services II Fund – DOH 05/26/09 - Terminated 

Hires to County Service: 
6. Joy Riddle – County Attorney – Attorney – 08/22/10 – Drug Prosecution 

Recovery Act Fund – Replacing James Parker 
7. J. Dee Flake – Superior Court General – Part Time Court Commissioner – 

07/01/10 – General Fund 
Temporary Hires to County Service: 
8. John Perlman – Globe Justice Court – Justice of the Peace Pro Tempore – 

08/02/10 - General Fund 
Departmental Transfers: 
9. John Dzera – BOS – From Temporary Laborer – To Temporary Building 

Maintenance Technician – 08/02/10 – Constituent Services II Fund 
Position Review: 
10. Rebecca Baeza – Globe Justice of the Peace Court – Collections 

 Officer/Judge Pro Tempore – 08/01/10 - General Fund – Increasing Pro 
 Tempore Hours 

11. Leona Bowman - Health and Community Services – Community Services 
 Worker Senior – 07/12/10 – GEST Fund - From Full Time – To Part Time 

SHERIFF’S PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS 
Departures from County Service: 
12. Dan Evans - Sheriff's Office – Detention Officer – 07/26/10 – General 

 Fund – DOH 04/04/01 – Terminated 
13. Guy Jones - Sheriff's Office - Detention Officer – 07/22/10 - General Fund 

 – DOH 08/04/08 – Resigned 
14. Edward Morgan - Sheriff's Office – Deputy Sheriff – 07/15/10 - General 

 Fund – DOH 05/24/10 – Resigned  
End Probationary Period: 
15. Megan Anne Miller - Sheriff's Office – 911 Dispatcher – 08/02/10 – 

 General Fund 



5 

16. Amelia Yvette Baxley - Sheriff's Office – 911 Dispatcher Supervisor – 
 08/02/10 - General Fund 

 
F.  Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the week of August 
3, 2010.  (separate handout) 
 
$626,753.88 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 229157 
through 229159 and 229162 through 229316.  (An itemized list of 
disbursements is permanently on file in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.)   
 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Dawson, the 
Board unanimously approved Consent Agenda items 6B through 6F. 
 
Item 7 - CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 
benefit to    allow individuals to address issue(s) within the Board’s 
jurisdiction.  Board members may not discuss items that are not 
specifically identified on the agenda.  Therefore, pursuant to Arizona 
Revised Statute §38-431.01(G), action taken as a result of public 
comment will be limited to directing staff to study the matter, responding 
to criticism, or scheduling the matter for further discussion and decision 
at a future date. 
 
There were no requests to speak from the public. 
 
Item 8 - At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the Chief 
Administrator may present a brief summary of current events.  No action 
may be taken on issues presented. 
 
Each Board member and Mr. McDaniel presented information on current 
events.   
 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 10:52 a.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
________________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk 



    Item #:  5- M     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 02/01/2011  

Reporting Period: Payson Constable Monthly Report for December 2010

Submitted For: Colt White, Payson

Constable

Submitted By: Cheryle Wood, Constable

- Payson

Information

Subject

Payson Regional Constable's December 2010 monthly departmental activity report.

Suggested Motion

Approval of the December 2010 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the Payson Regional

Constable.

Attachments

Link: Payson Regional Constable December 2010 Monthly Report































































    Item #:  5- N     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 02/01/2011  

Reporting Period: Recorder's Office Monthly Report for December 2010

Submitted For: Dawn Caldera, Chief

Deputy Recorder

Submitted By: Dawn Caldera,

Recorder's Office

Information

Subject

Recorder's December 2010 monthly departmental activity report.

Suggested Motion

Approval of the December 2010 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the Recorder's Office.

Attachments

Link: Recorder's December 2010 Monthly Report





















    Item #:  5- O     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 02/01/2011  

Reporting Period: Globe Regional J.P. December 2010 Monthly Report

Submitted For: Mary Navarro, Justice Court Operations Mgr

Submitted By: Mary Navarro, Superior Court

Information

Subject

Globe Regional Justice of the Peace's December 2010 monthly departmental activity report.

Suggested Motion

Approval of the December 2010 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the Globe Regional

Justice Court

Attachments

Link: Globe Justice Court Report for 12/10

Link: Globe Justice Court Report for 12/10







    Item #:  5- P     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 02/01/2011  

Reporting Period: Payson Regional Justice of the Peace Monthly Report for December 2010

Submitted For: Dorothy Little, Justice of the Peace-Payson Region

Submitted By: Dorothy Little, Superior Court

Information

Subject

Payson Regional Justice of the Peace's December 2010 monthly departmental activity report.

Suggested Motion

Approval of the December 2010 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the Payson Regional

Justice of the Peace.

Attachments

Link: Payson Regional Justice of the Peace December 2010 Monthly Report



Page 1 Processing

LIMITED JURISDICTION COURTS MONTHLY STATISTICAL REPORT

PAYSON REGIONAL JUSTICE COURT December 2010

TOTAL

     (d)

All Other
Violations
     (c)

Serious*
Violations
      (b)

D.U.I.
  (a)

CRIMINAL TRAFFIC

Report Month/Year:County:

Court ID: 404

22121

000

000

1475

15013

87Pending 1st of Month

Filed

Transferred In

Pending End of Month

Transferred Out

SUBTOTAL

Other Terminations

Statistical Correction 0

TOTAL TERMINATIONS

239

28

479 140 223

100

21

0

5 162 267

0

44

1 22 44

0 0 0

*A.R.S.  28-661 (if misdemeanor),  -662,-663,-664,-665,-693,-708.   See Instructions.

0 0

3

CIVIL TRAFFIC
Pending
1st of
Month

Filed Trans
 In

SUB-
TOTAL

Trans
Out

Other
Term.

TOTAL
TERM.

Default
Judg-
ment

Stat.
Corr.

Pending
End of
Month

1,170 290 0 880241 0929 131 276

Civil Traffic Hearings Held:

Criminal Traffic/FTA Court Trials Held: Criminal Traffic/FTA Jury Trials Held:

TRAFFIC FAILURE TO APPEAR**

Pending
1st of
Month

Filed Trans
 In

SUB-
TOTAL

Trans
 Out

Other
Term.

TOTAL
TERM.

Stat.
Corr.

Pending
End of
Month

**READ:     These are FORMAL FTA FILINGS AND DISPOSITIONS CHARGING ANOTHER CRIMINAL
OFFENSE, not bench warrants for failure to appear.  FTA filings should also have original traffic complaint
recorded in the CRIMINAL TRAFFIC SECTION above until that traffic filing has been terminated.  Issuing a bench
warrant or an FTA does not terminate the traffic filing.

265 4 0 269 0 2 2 0 267

VIOLATIONS OF A.R.S.  28-702.01 AND  28-702.04
(Part of Civil Traffic Above)

Filed 113 Trans  In 0 TOTAL 113

01/13/11Printed: 09:40:02AMLJ Page 1, Ver. 02.15.05



LIMITED JURISDICTION COURTS MONTHLY STATISTICAL REPORT

Page 2 Processing
County:

MISDEMEANOR

Pending
1st of

Month
(a)

Filed

(b)

Trans
In

(c)

SUB
TOTAL

(d)

Tran
Out

(e)

Other
Term

(f)

TOTAL
TERM

(g)

Stat.
Corr.

(h)

Pending
End of

Month (j)

PAYSON REGIONAL JUSTICE COURT December 2010Report Month/Year:

Court ID: 404

Misdemeanor
(Non-Traffic) 0593 60 53343550 0 0 60

2 0

0 134

Filed SUB-
TOTAL

Terminated Pending
End of
Month

Parking

Non-Parking

LOCAL NON-CRIMINAL ORDINANCES

TOTAL

Pending
 1st of
Month

Stat.
Corr.

0

0

0

0

0

0

0 0 0 0 0 0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Felony, Misdemeanor, Criminal Traffic Initial: Appearances:Felony Preliminary Hearings Held:

450348

Pending
End of

Month (j)

Stat.
Corr.

(h)

TOTAL
TERM

(g)

Other
Term

(f)

Trans
Out
(e)

SUB
TOTAL

(d)

Trans
In
(c)

Filed

(b)

Pending
1st of

Month (a)

FELONY

42 6 0 30

TRIALS HELD

Misdemeanor/FTA Jury Trials Held:Misdemeanor Court/FTA Trials Held:

Failure to Appear
(Non-Traffic) 086 0 8683 3 0 0 0

633 46 0 679 0 60 60 0 619TOTAL

01/13/11Printed: 09:50:04AMLJ - Page 2, Rev.01.27.04



LIMITED JURISDICTION COURTS MONTHLY STATISTICAL REPORT

Page 3 Processing

County: Report Month/Year:

CIVIL COMPLAINTS

Small Claims

(a)

Other Civil

(c)

December 2010PAYSON REGIONAL JUSTICE COURT
404Court ID:

Forcible Detainer/
Eviction Action

(b)

TOTAL

(d)

53 15 297 365

Statistical Correction 00 0 0

3276Other Terminations

TOTAL TERMINATIONS 6

45

7 32 45

268

000

2978

845Pending 1st of Month

Filed

Transferred In

SUBTOTAL

321

44

0

000Transferred Out 0

Pending End of Month 847 265 320

1

0

0

0

0

6 7

14

5

2

2

16

7

DOMESTIC VIOLENCE/HARASSMENT PETITIONS

Filed Order Issued Petition Denied
TOTAL
TERM.

Small Claims Hearings Held/Defaults: Civil Court Trials Held:

HEARINGS HELD TO REVOKE OR MODIFY ORDER OF PROTECTION
INJUNCTION AGAINST HARASSMENT

Domestic Violence

Harassment

Order of Protection:

SPECIAL PROCEEDINGS/ACTIVITIES

Peace Bond Complaints Filed:

Injunction Against:

Small Claims Hearings Held/Defaults
Before Volunteer Hearing Officer:

Civil Jury Trials Held:

Fugitive Complaints Filed:

Juvenile Hearings Held: Search Warrants Issued:

0 1

12

18

5

01/13/11Printed: 10:13:45AMLJ Page 3, Ver. 02.15.06



LIMITED JURISDICTION COURTS MONTHLY STATISTICAL REPORT

Page 4 Processing

County:
Report
Month/Year:

WARRANTS OUTSTANDING

TRAFFIC WARRANTS OUTSTANDING

December 2010PAYSON REGIONAL JUSTICE COURT

404Court ID:

862TRAFFIC TOTAL

667All Other Violations

10Serious Violations

185D.U.I.

968CRIMINAL TOTAL

838Misdemeanor

130Felony

CRIMINAL WARRANTS OUTSTANDING

MAIL BY THE 20TH WORKING DAY OF MONTH:

Arizona Supreme Court

ATTN: Research/Statistics Unit
(602) 542-9376

Signature of the Judge/Magistrate (or designee)

Name of Preparer

Date of Preparation

Administrative Office of the Courts
1501 W. Washington St., Suite 410
Phoenix, AZ 85007-3327

01/13/11Printed: 10:15:05AMLJ Page 4, Ver.02.15.05



PAYSON JUSTICE COURT TREASURER'S RECAP FY2011

DECEMBER, 2010 AZTEC ACCOUNT ACCOUNT TOTAL AMOUNT 5% FILL THE GAP ADJUSTED

FUND NAME CODE CODE CODE ALLOCATED SET ASIDE BALANCE

Alternative Dispute Resolution ZADR T848-2061 73.28$                      3.66$                        69.62$                      

Arson Detection Reward Fund 41-2167D ZADRF T901-2061 -$                          -$                          -$                          

Attorney Fee Reimbursement ZATT 1005.314-3350.00 X10501314004429 88.79$                      88.79$                      

Citizens Clean Elections ZCEF T888-2061 1,353.48$                 1,353.48$                 

Criminal Justice Enhancement 67% ZCJEF T812-2061 6,360.81$                 318.04$                    6,042.77$                 

Defensive Driving Diversion Fee ZDDS 1005.314-3400.90 X105-4609 3,500.00$                 175.00$                    3,325.00$                 

DNA State Surcharge 3% 12-116.01C ZDNAS T872-2061 830.82$                    41.54$                      789.28$                    

Elected Officials Retirement Fund 15.30% ZEORF T801-2061 547.72$                    27.39$                      520.33$                    

Base Fees (General Fund) ZFEE 1005.314-3400.15 X105-4615 1,724.68$                 86.23$                      1,638.45$                 

Base Fines (General Fund) ZFINE 1005.314-3510.10 X105-4831 11,854.40$               592.72$                    11,261.68$               

Fill the Gap Surcharge 7% ZFTGS T870-2061 947.59$                    47.38$                      900.21$                    

Failure To Pay Warrant Surcharge 10% ZFTPS 1005.314.3400.17 X10501314004861 -$                          -$                          -$                          

Extra DUI Assessment $500 ZGFDU T912-2061 2,226.00$                 111.30$                    2,114.70$                 

Judicial Collection Enhancement $7 ZJCL 4741.314-3400.15 X36001314004615 426.13$                    426.13$                    

Judicial Collection Enhancement Local % ZJCLF 4741.314-3400.15 X36001314004615 243.76$                    12.19$                      231.57$                    

Judicial Collection Enhancement $13 ZJCS T818-2061 791.38$                    791.38$                    

Judicial Collection Enhancement %PC ZJCSF T840-2061 557.75$                    27.89$                      529.86$                    

Jail (Incarceration) Fees ZJF 1005.300-3405.40 X10502340004651 797.00$                    797.00$                    

Local Costs ZLCL 1005.314-3510.10 X105-4831 -$                          -$                          -$                          

Administrative Costs ZMISC 1005.314-3400.99 X105-4886 432.31$                    21.62$                      410.69$                    

Medical Services Enhancement 13% ZMSEF T813-2061 1,759.50$                 87.98$                      1,671.52$                 

Overpayment Forfeited ZOVF 1005.314-3510.10 X105-4831 12.41$                      0.62$                        11.79$                      

Adult Probation Fee ZPBA 4042.335-3405.30 X25001335-4835 -$                          -$                          -$                          

Probation Surcharge 2006 ($10.00) ZPRS6 T871-2061 157.79$                    7.89$                        149.90$                    

Probation Surcharge 2009 ($20.00) ZPRS9 T871-2061 3,846.82$                 192.34$                    3,654.48$                 

Probation Surcharge $5.00 ZPRSU T871-2061 31.11$                      1.56$                        29.55$                      

Reimbursement to County Attorney 60% ZREIM 3544.301-3400.11 X18201301004620 1,418.54$                 1,418.54$                 

Reimbursement to Superior Court 40% ZREIM 4574.333-3400.16 X226333004864 945.69$                    945.69$                    

Warrant Fee ZWAR 1005.314-3510.10 X105-4831 201.01$                    10.05$                      190.96$                    

AZ Native Plant Fund ZANP STATE -$                          -$                          -$                          

Child Passenger Restraint ZCPRF STATE 6.77$                        0.34$                        6.43$                        

Drug and Gang Enforcement Fines ZDECJ STATE 1,291.73$                 64.59$                      1,227.14$                 

DUI Abatement ZDUIA STATE 100.00$                    5.00$                        95.00$                      

FARE Special Collection Fee 19% ZFAR1 STATE 1,597.42$                 1,597.42$                 

FARE Delinquency Fee $35.00 ZFAR2 STATE 886.75$                    886.75$                    

Game and Fish - Wildlife ZGF STATE 24.74$                      1.24$                        23.50$                      

HURF 1 28-5438, 2533C ZHRF1 STATE 85.61$                      4.28$                        81.33$                      

HURF 3 28-5433C, 4139 ZHRF3 STATE 81.41$                      4.07$                        77.34$                      

HURF - to DPS ZHRFD STATE 20.35$                      1.02$                        19.33$                      

Prison Construction Fund ZPCOF STATE 2,970.02$                 148.50$                    2,821.52$                 

Registrar of Contractors ZRCA STATE 54.06$                      2.70$                        51.36$                      

State Highway Fund ZSHWY STATE -$                          -$                          -$                          

State Highway Work Zone Fund ZSHWZ STATE -$                          -$                          -$                          

Display Suspended Plates (DPS) ZSLPD STATE -$                          -$                          -$                          

State Photo Enforcement Base Fine ZSPBF STATE -$                          -$                          -$                          

State Photo Enforcement Clean Election Surcharge ZSPCE STATE -$                          -$                          -$                          

Bad Check Program - County Attorney ZBAD COUNTY ATTY 210.01$                    210.01$                    

HURF - to Sheriff's Office 28-5533G ZHRFS SHERIFF -$                          -$                          -$                          

Display Suspended Plates (Sheriff's Office) ZSLPS SHERIFF 192.34$                    9.62$                        182.72$                    

HURF - to City Police ZHRFC CITY POLICE -$                          -$                          -$                          

Display Suspended Plates (City Police) ZSLPC CITY POLICE -$                          -$                          -$                          

TOTALS 48,649.98$               2,006.76$                 46,643.22$               

46,643.22$               

DATE CHECK NO. AMOUNT MONTHLY REMITTANCE TO:

1/4/11 4286 41,370.13$              GILA COUNTY TREASURER

4287 6,887.12$                ARIZONA STATE TREASURER

4288 210.01$                   GILA COUNTY BAD CHECK PROGRAM

4289 182.72$                   SHERIFF SUSPENDED PLATES AND HURF

-$                         CITY POLICE SUSPENDED PLATES AND HURF

48,649.98$                  TOTAL DISTRIBUTIONS THIS MONTH

2,732.55$                CHECKBOOK BALANCE AFTER ALLOCATION

I, DOROTHY A. LITTLE, Gila County Justice of the Peace, do hereby certify this is a true and correct copy of the funds collected by Payson Justice Court for DECEMBER, 2010.

___________________________________

DOROTHY A. LITTLE

Gila County Justice of the Peace

TOTAL ADJUSTED BALANCE VERIFICATION



    Item #:  5- Q     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 02/01/2011  

Reporting Period: Personnel Reports for the weeks of 1/25/11 and 2/1/11

Submitted For: Erica Raymond,

Personnel Assistant

Submitted By: Erica Raymond, Deputy

County Manager

Information

Subject

Personnel Reports for the weeks of January 25, 2011, and February 1, 2011.

Suggested Motion

Approval of personnel reports for the weeks of January 25, 2011, and February 1, 2011.

Attachments

Link: 1/25/11 Personnel Agenda

Link: 2/01/11 Personnel Agenda



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
JANUARY 25, 2011 

 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

1. Candelaria Rocha – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 01/16/11 – General 
Fund – DOH 01/24/01 – Resigned 

2. James Weeks – Payson Regional Justice Court  – Judge Pro-Tem – 01/01/11 – 
General Fund – DOH 07/01/07 – Retired 

 
HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

3. Patricia Balderree – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 01/31/11 – General 
Fund – Replacing Jessy Carter 

4. Michael Collett – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 01/31/11 – General 
Fund – replacing Nancy Hannigan 

5. Leonard McIntosh – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 01/31/11 – General 
Fund – replacing Christopher Beamon 

6. Lauryn Mooney – Probation – Administrative Clerk Senior – 01/31/11 – Adult 
Probation Service Fee Fund – replacing Veronica Gonzales 

7. Erika Pisano – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer 1 – 01/31/11 – Juvenile 
Standards Fund – Replacing Kathy Coker 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

8. Gary Holloway – Assessor – Property Appraiser III Lead – 01/01/11 – General 
Fund 

9. Michael Lorka – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 01/17/11 – General 
Fund 

10. Jo Anna McDaniel – Public Fiduciary – Public Fiduciary Assistant – 01/17/11 – 
General Fund 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 

 
11. Kathy Coker – Probation – From Deputy Probation Officer 1 – To Juvenile 

Detention Facility Manager – 01/31/11 – From Juvenile Standards Fund – To 
General Fund 

 
POSITION REVIEW: 
 

12. Bobby Baldwin – Community Services – Temporary Mobile Crew – 01/01/11 – 
GEST Fund – Change in minimum wage 

13. Eric Butler – Community Services – Temporary Mobile Crew – 01/01/11 – GEST 
Fund – Change in minimum wage 

14. Ricky Cayouette – Community Services – Temporary Mobile Crew – 01/01/11 – 
GEST Fund – Change in minimum wage 

15. Shirley Jack – Community Services – Temporary Mobile Crew – 01/01/11 – 
GEST Fund – Change in minimum wage 

16. Heather Boyer – Probation – Probation Officer Supervisor – 01/31/11 – 50% State 
Aid Enhancement Fund – 50% Adult Intensive Probation Fund – correction to 
New World database 

 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
JANUARY 25, 2011 
PAGE 2 
 

17. Bryan Kinder – Probation Officer Supervisor – 01/31/11 – 50% State Aid 
Enhancement Fund – 50% Adult Intensive Probation Fund – correction to New 
World database 

18. Cynthia Romance – Probation Officer Supervisor – 01/31/2011 – Diversion 
Intake Fund – correction to New World database 

 
 
 

SHERIFF’S PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS 
 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

19. Linda Kruse – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 01/12/11 – General Fund – Job 
Abandonment 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
FEBRUARY 1, 2011 

REVISED 
 

DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

1. Melva Warbington – Recorder – Recording Clerk – 01/04/11 – General Fund – 
DOH 04/20/09 – Resigned 

 
HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

2. Vino Burdette – Recorder – Voter Outreach – 01/24/11 – General Fund – 
Replacing Laverna Kniffin 

3. Ruben Mancha – Globe Regional Justice Court – Collections Officer – 02/07/11 – 
General Fund – replacing Daniel Alonzo 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

4. Joel McDaniel – Public Works – Road Maintenance/Equipment Operator – 
01/31/11 – Public Works Fund 

 
POSITION REVIEW: 
 

5. Mark Joerns – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer 2 – 02/07/11 – Change in 
Fund Codes 

6. Erwin Diaz – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer 2 – 02/07/11 – Change in 
Fund Codes 

 
 
 

SHERIFF’S PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS 
 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

7. Virgilio Dodd – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff Sgt. – 01/18/11 – General Fund 


	Agenda
	Item2.A.  Presentation of the Officer of the Quarter by the County Attorney to Sgt. Joni Varga of the Payson Police Department.
	Item2.B.  January Spotlight on Employees
	Item3.A.  Jake's Corner Store Liquor License Application
	Item3.A._Att1_Jake's Corner Store Liquor License Application
	Item3.A._Att2_Jake's Corner Store County Internal Reviews
	Item3.A._Att3_Jake's Corner Store Sheriff's Affidavit of Posting
	Item4.A.  Adoption of Resolution No. 11-02-01 regarding underage drinking
	Item4.A._Att1_Resolution 11-02-01-Underage Drinking
	Item4.B.  Intergovernmental Agreement No. HG161095 with Arizona Department of Health Services.
	Item4.B._Att1_Community Health Grant
	Item4.C.  Agreement for Energy Assistance for Renewable Neighborhoods Implementation between Gila County Action_Housing Services and Arizona Public Service Co.
	Item4.C._Att1_Agreement for Energy Assistance
	Item4.D.  Award of Bid No. 040108-1 Gila County Courthouse ADA_Access Improvement Project
	Item4.D._Att1_Contract 040108-1
	Item4.D._Att2_Bid Tab Form
	Item4.E.  Award of Bid No. 092210-1 Central Heights Auditorium Remodel Project6
	Item4.E._Att1_Bid Tab Form
	Item4.E._Att2_Bid Packet _ 092210-1
	Item4.E._Att3_Addendum _1 Date Changes
	Item4.E._Att4_Addendum _2 Pgs 1-84
	Item4.E._Att5_Addendum _2 85-162
	Item4.E._Att6_Addendum _2 163-251
	Item4.E._Att7_Addendum _3
	Item4.F.  Policy and Procedure for the Abandonment of County Highways, Local Streets, Avenues, Alleys and for the Extinguishment of Easements within Gila County
	Item4.F._Att1_Current Guidelines
	Item4.F._Att2_New Proposed Roadway Vacation Guidelines 
	Item4.F._Att3_Summary of Changes to Roadway Vacation Guidelines
	Item5.A.  Amendment No.2 to the 2010-2011 Utility Assistance Program with Arizona Community Action Association
	Item5.A._Att1_Amendment No. 2 to ACAA Contract
	Item5.A._Att2_ACAA07012010
	Item5.B.  Notice of Request for Proposal No. ADHS11-00000347 with Arizona Department of Health Services.
	Item5.B._Att01_Executive Summary
	Item5.B._Att02_Request for proposal
	Item5.B._Att03_Attachment 1
	Item5.B._Att04_Attachment 2
	Item5.B._Att05_Attachment 3
	Item5.B._Att06_Attachment 4
	Item5.B._Att07_Attachment 5
	Item5.B._Att08_Attachment 6
	Item5.B._Att09_Attachment 7
	Item5.B._Att10_Attachment 8
	Item5.B._Att11_Attaachment 9
	Item5.B._Att12_Attachment 10
	Item5.B._Att13_Attachment 11
	Item5.B._Att14_Cultural Compentency plan
	Item5.B._Att15_Letters of support
	Item5.B._Att16_Offeror and amendments 1 and amendment 2
	Item5.C.  Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. DE111006001 with DES
	Item5.C._Att1_DES Contract No. DE111006001
	Item5.C._Att2_Amendment No.3
	Intergovernmental Agreement
	CONTRACT AMENDMENT
	1.  CONTRACTOR (Name and address)
	 2.  CONTRACT ID NUMBER

	Item5.D.  Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. DE111006001 with DES
	Item5.D._Att1_AMENDMENT NO. 2
	Intergovernmental Agreement
	CONTRACT AMENDMENT
	 2.  CONTRACT ID NUMBER
	1.  CONTRACTOR (Name and address)

	Item5.E.  Purchase of a BH C-280 Copier_Scanner_Fax for use by the Payson Constable
	Item5.E._Att1_Order Agreement with Konica Minolta Business Solutions
	Item5.E._Att2_Advantage CPC Maintenance Contract with KMBS
	Item5.E._Att3_Contact & Agreement Info with KMBS
	Item5.E._Att4_Addendum
	Item5.E._Att5_addendum 2
	Item5.E._Att6_E-mail Re_  Pro-rate
	Item5.F.  Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 050709-1 Chips and Asphalt Copper Region
	Item5.F._Att1_Amendment _1
	Item5.F._Att2_Contract 050709-1
	Item5.G.  Subgrantee Agreement Amendment _1 09-AZDOHS-HSGP-555300-03
	Item5.G._Att1_Amendment_1
	Item5.G._Att2_BOS Signature Page-Amendment _1 AZDOHS-HSGP-555300-03
	Item5.H.  Pine Water Association Domestic Water Improvement Governing Board Vacancy Appointment
	Item5.H._Att1_ARS 48-803
	Item5.H._Att2_Pine Water Mtg Minutes-Resignation-Oath
	Item5.I.  Town of Hayden IGA for Election Services
	Item5.I._Att1_2011 Town of Hayden IGA
	Item5.J.  Kiwanis Club of Tonto Basin Community Service Foundation Special Event License Application
	Item5.J._Att1_Kiwanis Club Special Event Application
	Item5.J._Att2_Kiwanis Club proof of non-profit status
	Item5.K.  Lions Club of Globe, AZ, Inc. Special Event License Application
	Item5.K._Att1_Lions Club Special Event Application
	Item5.L.  July 14, 2010, July 27, 2010, & August 3, 2010, BOS meeting minutes
	Item5.L._Att1_BOS 07-14-10 Meeting Minutes
	Item5.L._Att2_BOs 07-27-10 Meeting Minutes
	Item5.L._Att3_BOS 08-03-10 Meeting Minutes
	Item5.M.  Payson Constable Monthly Report for December 2010
	Item5.M._Att1_Payson Regional Constable December 2010 Monthly Report
	Item5.N.  Recorder's Office Monthly Report for December 2010
	Item5.N._Att1_Recorder's December 2010 Monthly Report
	Item5.O.  Globe Regional J.P. December 2010 Monthly Report
	Item5.O._Att1_Globe Justice Court Report for 12_10
	Item5.O._Att2_Globe Justice Court  Report for 12_10
	Item5.P.  Payson Regional Justice of the Peace Monthly Report for December 2010
	Item5.P._Att1_Payson Regional Justice of the Peace December 2010 Monthly Report
	december 2010 1
	december 2010 2 - LJ - 
	december 2010 2 - LJ Pa
	December 2010 4 - LJ Pa
	PAYSON JP FY10-11 2Ledger dec

	Item5.Q.  Personnel Reports for the weeks of 1_25_11 and 2_1_11
	Item5.Q._Att1_1_25_11 Personnel Agenda
	Item5.Q._Att2_2_01_11 Personnel Agenda

